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Financial Summary

M5 mE

(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (AUDITED)

Year ended December 31

(FBESBEOUARE T TREMN)
B GRERER (BER)

BEFT=A=+—AUFE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
=% —T-MF —T-HF T F ZF—+F
Total revenue Bl 3,256,061 2,982,909 722,185 534,974 1,125,982
Finance costs, net HSER  FE (345,553)  (481,327)  (421,774)  (386,461)  (138,749)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRETISHATRE,/(E518) 454,867 236,712 (1,467,259)  (457,981) (1,012,296)
Income tax (expensel/credit s (BR), e (175,083)  (214,163) 121,118  (147,166)  (87,180)
Loss for the year from discontinued AFR|HEEFRER
operations - - (179,147)  (717,086) -
Profit/(loss) for the year REFE/(B8) 279,784 22,549  (1,525,288) (1,322,233) (1,099,476)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL SO BEAR R R (REXR)
POSITION (AUDITED)
As at December 31 R+—A=+—H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —ZT-NFE —ZT-HF T E —B—+F
Current assets REEE 1,186,639 1,650,635 1,033,667 2,260,010 1,833,381
Property, plant and equipment TEE  ITHRHRE 7,160,160 6,629,673 5633576 2,407,958 7,719,859
Intangible assets BYEE 544,469 494,552 359,595 8,849 708,193
Investments in associates HePERE - - - 246,667 182,541
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 50,422 75,541 27,105 63,330 67,132
Prepayments, deposits and other AR REEREM
receivables U 34,941 210,389 497,878 820,224 721,966
Restricted cash XRHRE 11,884 12,955 8495 = 43,285
Total assets EERE 9,302,546 9,593,567 8,090,105 5,847,628 11,308,343
Current liabilities REAE 1,555,604 1,345,118 1,191,754 479,915 2,747,026
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 4,042,512 4,683,938 4,687,355 4,727,926 8,829,778
Total liabilities BEBEE 5,598,116 6,029,066 5,879,109 5,207,841 11,576,804
Equity B 3,704,430 3,564,511 2,210,996 639,787  (268,461)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE-ZF ZET-pmF ZZ-hF T RF ZB—tF
Properties Held by Subsidiaries WEARMGEE
Sales volume HE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) Eh(BER) 5.38 5.58 3.55 3.24 2.38
China oilfields F ) E 3.77 3.67 2.44 2.12 1.98
Kazakhstan oilfields PafE R e 1.56 1.88 1.09 1.10 =
Export sales HOHE 1.28 1.44 0.96 0.95 -
Domestic sales BINHE 0.28 0.44 0.13 0.15 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) - = = = 0.39
NGL (Note) (millions of barrels) RARFBRITER (M) (BER) - - - - 0.16
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = = = 0.16
Gas (MMscf) AAR (BEEETHER) 169850 201434 202127 171770  25,315.39
Kazakhstan oilfields g R AnE 166158 195438  2,001.15  1,703.72 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 36.92 59.96 20.12 13.98 1.43
Canada oilfields 2K (Canlin) - = = - 25313.96
Net annual production volume FEEE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) BEm(EER) 5.36 5.59 3.7 3.27 2.38
China oilfields B 3.73 3.66 2.44 2.15 1.98
Kazakhstan oilfields MR AA 1.58 1.90 1.25 1.11 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.01
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) - = = = 0.39
NGL (millions of barrels) AARBNR(EER) - - - = 0.16
Canada oilfields X (Canlin) = = = = 0.16
Gas (MMscf) AAR (BEEETHER) 192972 222290 219061  1,899.18  25,320.56
Kazakhstan oilfields g R AnE 181244 214648 215078  1,875.30 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 117.28 76.42 39.83 23.88 6.6
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) - = = - 25313.96
Average daily net crude oil production B FRHEE
Crude oil (barrels) [ () 14,673 15,326 10,153 9,241 9,745
China oilfields " Bt 10,208 10,033 6,687 5,872 5,454
Kazakhstan oilfields g R AnE 4,320 5,201 3412 3,328 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 145 92 54 41 29
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = = = 4,262
NGL (barrels) KAR R (1) - - - - 1,690
Canada oilfields NE K (Canlin) = = = = 1,690
Gas (MMscf) AAR(BBBEYFHER) 5.30 6.09 6.00 5.67 275.17
Kazakhstan oilfields MR AA 5.00 5.88 5.89 5.60 =
USA oilfields %P (Condor) 0.30 0.21 0.11 0.07 0.02
Canada oilfields 2K (Canlin) = = = = 275.15

Note: Natural Gas Liquid
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Operating Summary (Continued)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE-ZF ZT-pmF ZZ-hF ZT-RF ZB—tF
Average realized price FHELRER
Crude oil (US$ per barrel of crude oil)  Eh (£, SHEM) 97.06 86.15 4579 36.74 48.96
China oilfields (Note 1) B E (M) 104.35 97.89 46.65 36.73 48.89
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiER AR 79.64 63.34 43.95 34.85 -
Export sales HOEE 87.80 70.63 48.41 38.39 -
Domestic sales BANHEE 4157 39.68 12.02 13.25 -
USA oilfields 2B (Condor) 90.30 83.11 40.68 37.77 47.44
Canada oilfields (Note 2) NE X (Canlin) (#152) = = = = 49.32
NGL (US$ per barrel) ARRBNR (X BR) - - - - 26.64
Canada oilfields JNZ X (Canlin) - - = = 26.64
Gas (US$ per MMscf) KRR (Ex/TRE
YHER) 1.44 1.27 1.03 0.83 1.50
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA 1.34 1.14 0.95 0.78 -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 6.10 6.44 2.61 2.30 4.47
Canada oilfields JZ K (Canlin) = = = = 1.50
Lifting costs (US$ per barrel of EEFBRE
oil equivalent) (Xn/BREE) 9.34 9.46 7.52 831 7.95
China oilfields (Note 3) HEDHE (fi23) 11.08 11.83 9.49 8.31 848
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE=HTA 5.18 4.85 3.66 2.25 -
Canada oilfields JNZ K (Canlin) = = = = 7.73
Cash net-back (US$ per barrel B&EEE
of oil equivalent) (X%/BREE)
China oilfields Bl A 74.22 69.62 35.56 26.94 38.87
Kazakhstan oilfields MBiE= A 41.37 29.14 10.94 14.26 -
Export sales HOHE 43.42 28.52 12.40 14.80 -
Domestic sales BINHE 31.97 31.81 5.11 9.25 =
Canada oilfields ANEX (Canlin) - - - = 5,55
Wells drilled during the year (Gross) ~ FRAEHH (BR) 114 157 3 = 15
China oilfields HE A 102 157 - = 15
Successtul Bk IhiE iR 102 151 - - 15
Dry it - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields WMERER 10 6 3 2 =
Successful PRI E R 10 6 3 2 =
Dry it : - - - -
USA oilfields %El(Condor) 2 - - - -
Successful IR 2 - - - -
Dry & - - - - -
Canada oilfields £ K (Canlin) - - - - -
Successful IR - - = - =
Dry it 2 - - - -
Note 1:  The data on the China oilfields does not include the last 16 days in 2017 as Ktar1: HEOERITESERSHEESEI6ANER
the Group has disposed of the Molging project with effect from December AAEER -_ZT—+F+_A+HBEE T IHE
15, 2017. g o
Note 2:  The data on the Canada oilfields only includes the 4th quarter of 2017 since Kta2z: MEANBRROEREENBENINEERN
the acquisition was completed in September 2017. BE o
Note 3:  Lifting costs include directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil. KtiE3: EBEEEOAKABEEE—RARZEETIESIR

Other production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses,
technical & research expenses and overhead have not been included since

they are not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of oil.

Ko BMAERANLZEE - REEM KTk
MAMAREE L ERSETTREERN - RE
BRI IE— RO EREKA
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Operating Summary (Continued)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE-ZF ZET-pmF ZZ-0F ZT-RF ZB—tF

Crude Oil Reserves (thousands BhtE (TH7)
of barrels)

Subsidiaries HBAAFEEE

Total proved RARELE 54,177 48,742 45,163 10,668 19,366
China oilfields " B 20,409 14,495 12,440 10552 8,475
Canada oilfields JNZ K (Canlin) = = - - 10,844
Kazakhstan oilfields PRE R AnE 32,497 33,799 32,525 = =
USA oilfields %[ (Condor) 1,271 448 198 116 47

Total proved+probable RAESEREAR 126,107 124,725 120,975 19,557 27,453
China oilfields " Bt 35,998 25,832 24,416 18,893 12,489
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = - - 14,893
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiE R AnE 87,374 97,864 96,150 = =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 2,735 1,029 409 664 Al

Total proved + probable + possible e MERTRKHEELR 183,991 171,189 160,404 28,319 32,274
China oilfields " B 51,617 36,248 34,088 26,487 17,281
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = - - 14,893
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiE R AnE 128,647 130,203 124,952 = =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 3,827 4,738 1,364 1,832 100

Equity-accounted entities BREZARNERIR
(MIE share) BE(FREBELSS)

Total proved RAmENE - - - 17,749 11,618
Kazakhstan oilfields RiER AN - = = 12,611 7,540
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 5,138 4,078
Sino Gas & Energy FEIFL (=340 R E) = = = = =
White Hawk B (White Hawk) - - = = -

Total proved+probable R BERELE - - - 41,549 32,568
Kazakhstan oilfields RiER AN - - = 32,457 24,984
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 9,092 7,584
Sino Gas & Energy PRI (=540 REGE) = = = = =
White Hawk B (White Hawk) - - = = -

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHEREAR - - - 49,546 53,836
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiE R ANE - = = 40,454 46,252
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 9,092 7,584
Sino Gas & Energy B (=540 R EGE) = = = = =
White Hawk B (White Hawk) - - = = -

Total proved RURELE 54,177 48,742 45,163 28,417 30,983

Total proved+probable RSB EFERE 126,107 124,725 120,975 61,106 60,021

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTERELH 183,991 171,189 160,404 77,865 86,110
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2= M —T-1F ZTF ZE—t%

NGL Reserves (thousands of barrels)  NGL#&Z (T4)

Subsidiaries WEBAGEEE

Total proved RARELE - = = = 13,069
China oilfields L = = = = =
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = - - 13,069
Kazakhstan oilfields iR A7A = = = = -
USA oilfields %P (Condor) - - - - -

Total proved+probable RAESEHEAR - - - - 19,408
China oilfields L = = = = =
Canada oilfields K (Canlin) = = - - 19,408
Kazakhstan oilfields MR AA = = = = -
USA oilfields 2 (Condor) = = - - -

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFHEAE - - = = 19,408
China oilfields L = = = = =
Canada oilfields INEAX (Canlin) = = - - 19,408
Kazakhstan oilfields iR dTA = = = = -
USA oilfields %P (Condor) - - - - -

Equity-accounted entities BRBARNERFFEE
(MIE share) (FEEELHS)

Total proved RARELE - - - 730 2,143
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA - - - - 856
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B = = - 730 1,287
Sino Gas & Energy REIFE (=3 R ) = = = = -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) = = = = -

Total proved+probable R BERELE - - - 994 4,462
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA = = = = 2,588
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 994 1,874
Sino Gas & Energy REIFE (=3 R ) = = = & -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) = = = = -

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFEEAE - - - 994 6,534
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiE= HTA = - - - 4,660
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 994 1,874
Sino Gas & Energy REIFE (=3 KR E) = = = - -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) = = = = -

Total proved Ry REAE - - - 730 15,211

Total proved+probable RSB EREAE = - = 994 23,870

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFHELE & - = 994 25,942
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —EF-MF —T-HF T F ZB-—t&
Gas Reserves (millions of SCF) AARHE
(ABEEYFHER)

Subsidiaries HBARFEEE

Total proved RARELE 40,178 44,147 36,262 155 1,210,712
China oilfields A B = 65 43 62 =
Canada oilfields JNZ K (Canlin) = = = - 1,210,705
Kazakhstan oilfields MaiE R 478 37,541 43,232 36,006 = =
USA oilfields ZH (Condor) 2,637 850 213 93 7

Total proved+probable RAESEREAR 96,090 97,249 93,050 1,356 1,801,464
China oilfields A B = 125 129 187 =
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = = - 1,801,455
Kazakhstan oilfields MR A8 90,416 95,111 92,380 = =
USA oilfields ZH (Condor) 5,674 2,013 541 1169 9

Total proved+probable+possible e MERTRKHEELR 140,592 131,880 122,081 3,829 1,801,471
China oilfields " B = 226 237 352 =
Canada oilfields & K (Canlin) = = = - 1,801,455
Kazakhstan oilfields MaiE R 478 132,653 122,219 120,438 = =
USA oilfields ZH (Condor) 7,939 9,435 1,406 3477 16

Equity-accounted entities BRZARNERFEEE
(MIE share) (FEEELSS)

Total proved REREHE 134,069 364,140 375,870 46,696 47,989
Kazakhstan oilfields MR R A1E = = = 14,373 8,708
Journey Energy Inc Journey B B - - - 32,323 39,281
Sino Gas & Energy FREIFIL (=500 REGE) 134,069 364,140 375,870 = =
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) - - = = =

Total proved+probable R HERELE 302,582 466,650 574,260 76,408 87,431
Kazakhstan oilfields iR A8 = = = 29,773 28880
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 46,635 58,551
Sino Gas & Energy FEIFL (=340 R ) 302,582 466,650 574,260 - -
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) - - = = =

Total proved+probable+possible R BERTRREELAE 499,321 579,870 781,830 84,016 113,099
Kazakhstan oilfields iR 418 - = = 37,381 54,548
Journey Energy Inc Journey 8 B - - - 46,635 58,551
Sino Gas & Energy BT (=330 k) 499,321 579,870 781,830 3 =
White Hawk Z B (White Hawk) - - = = =

Total proved REREHE 174,247 408,287 412,132 46,851 1,258,701

Total proved+probable RAESEREAR 398,672 563,899 667,310 77,764 1,888,895

Total proved+probable+possible R MERTHHEAR 639,914 711,750 903,911 87,845 1,914,571
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Chairman’s Statement
TEREE

iz

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of MIE Holdings
Corporation (“MIE"” or the “Company”, together with the
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 (“FY2017").

During FY2017, the oil and gas industry showed modest recovery
and oil price was increasing, the Group’s average realized crude oil
price was US $48.96/barrel (“bbl”), which was 33.3% higher than
that in FY2016. The Group executed its Mergers and Acquisitions
(M&A) strategy and made a transformational overseas acquisition,
leading to a significant increase in reserves. Based on the year-end
2017 oil and gas reserves estimate prepared by independent
consultants, the Group’s Proved (“1P") oil and gas reserves were
256 million Barrel Oil Equivalent (“BOE", where 1 BOE = 6,000
standard cubic feet natural gas), representing 593% increase from
year-end 2016. The Group's Proved +Probable (“2P") oil and gas
reserves were 399 million BOE ("MMBOE"), representing 431%
increase from year-end 2016. The Group's Proved +Probable +
Possible (“3P") oil and gas reserves were 431 MMBOE,
representing 361% increase from year-end 2016. Based on the
discount rate of 10%, the net present value of the Group’s 2P oil
and gas reserves at the end of 2017 (NPV10) was approximately
US$1.965 billion, an increase of 123% compared to the US$881
million at the end of 2016.

HEMEMAR -

AAZRERMIBERIER AR AR AT BHE M
BERIER ] FE AR BETARLME &
BEFe((EF ) REAKEEE_F
—tEF T A=+ HALERFERE -

ZE—EFERRITEZRLOR - RREREH
B AEBFHERRBERF48.96F
T BT NELAHTIB3I% —F
—EFEAREBEN B R E SBITETEI
IiEE - HREEREABER o ENIB X Hl
BERE - T—+tE+ - A=1+—HHAREEFN
WS -t FEFHFEA(P) BRH
ER2016FEMN593% £2.56EHE £ (6T
ZETHRERRRAAG=1RES)  FHFE+H
H([2P))hMRMBER - — /NFIEIN431% =
SOEREE: MANFER+BLE + 7] 8
([P HABER - —/NFHEMN361%E
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

During FY2017, the top theme for the Group remained liquidity
while we optimized the asset portfolio and improved the
productivity of existing assets.

On the one hand, the Group strategically acquired overseas oil and
gas projects and achieved the integration of valuable assets. The
Group successfully acquired the all the partnership interest of CQ
Energy Partnership (“CQ Energy”) at the end of September 2017.
The successful acquisition of CQ Energy contributed towards a
significant increase in the Group's sale scale, production, reserves
and benefits and its 2P reserves were 334.5 MMBOE, accounting
for 83.9% of the Group’s total reserves and nearly 5.21 times the
reserves of other projects in the Group, as of the end of 2017. The
strategic acquisition of CQ Energy has greatly enhanced the scale
of the Group and achieved the Group’s transformation, making the
Group an international oil and gas company and enhancing the
financial stability and strength of the Group, as well as expanding
the geographic coverage into North America natural gas market.

On the other hand, the Group actively communicated with the
capital market. Using a combination of our own resources and
external support, the Group successfully repaid the senior notes
issued in 2013 in principal amount of US$200 million in February
2018.In the current market environment, we also tried our best to
dispose of some projects to generate liquidity for the Group needs.
In alignment with the Group’s strategy, we sold the entire issued
share capital of Riyadh Energy Limited (“Riyadh Energy”) for
US$45 million in December 2017. We will continue to focus on
adjusting and optimizing the Group's capital structure, especially
the Group’s debt structure to protect the long-term and healthy
development of the Group.

In the same period, we have implemented a cost leadership
strategy for mature projects of the Group, such as the Daan and
Moliging projects in China, engaged our employees to reduce costs
and increase efficiency. We were able to stabilize the production of
old wells and delay the declining trend so as to create strong
operating cash flow for the Group. In 2017, the all-in cash cost for
the Daan project was US$14.51 per barrel, the overall production
declining rate was controlled at 9.22% and the lifting cost and
production declining levels were significantly optimized over the
previous year, reflecting our disciplined operational management.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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On the Group's performance, as a result of the successful
acquisition of the CQ Energy (incorporated into the group's financial
statements starting from the 2017 Q4), the Group's FY2017 annual
oil and gas gross production increased by 43.0% to 9.44 million
barrels of equivalent, and net production increased by 87.8% to
6.76 MMBOE. Benefitting from the increased production and oil
prices, sales revenue of the Group increased by 110.5% to
RMB1.126 billion in FY2017. The adjusted EBITDA increased by
22.9%to RMB348 million.

Despite the recent recovery in oil prices, natural gas prices in
Canada remain low. The Group is positive about price recovery of
oil and gas but remains cautious of the challenges we are facing.
The Group will continue to focus on its core areas, diligently
improving cost control and productivity and maximizing strategic
value and financial returns. We will continue to work hard to
balance the company’s business development with improving its
capital structure. With the joint efforts of all the staff, we are full of
confidence in the future of our Group.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
thanks to our Board and staff for riding through these trying times
with us and to our shareholders, bondholders and business
partners for your continued trust and support.

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
Chairman
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREIEE

Executive Directors

Zhang Ruilin, aged 47, has been the Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 20, 2008.
Mr. Zhang is one of the controlling shareholders of the Company.
Mr. Zhang has over 27 years of experience in the oil and gas
business. Following the takeover of the Company by Far East
Energy Limited (“FEEL") in August 2003, Mr. Zhang joined us in
September 2003 and has been a Director of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our overall strategies, planning
and day-to-day management and operations. Mr. Zhang is also a
director for the various subsidiaries of the Group.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 46, has been the Executive Director and
senior vice president of the Company since December 19, 2008.
He is one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhao
has over 25 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
Following the takeover of the Company by Far East Energy Limited
(“FEEL") in August 2003, Mr. Zhao joined the Company in
September 2003 and has since been a director of the Company. He
is and will continue to be primarily responsible for assisting the
Chairman in overseeing the operations at oilfields in the PRC. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Daging Petroleum
College in 1999.

Andrew Sherwood Harper, aged 66, has been our Executive
Director since his appointment on July 19, 2013 and has resigned
as an Executive Director and the Chief Geologist of the Company
with effect from June 30, 2017. Mr. Harper has been the
Company's chief geologist and president of the Company’s
international operations from 2001 to 2008 and rejoined the
Company in April 2010 as the chief geologist. Mr. Harper is also
the Chief Executive Officer and a director of MIE Jurassic Energy
Corporation, overseeing the group’s operations in the United
States. Mr. Harper was appointed as a director of Canlin Energy
Corporation in 2017. Mr. Harper has over 37 years of experience in
the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired his experience
working in the exploration and production team of ARCO
International Qil & Gas Company prior to joining the Company in
2001. During his time with ARCO, Mr. Harper worked extensively
overseas, including assignments in Chile, Dubai, Norway, the
United Kingdom and Indonesia, and as ARCQO's resident manager
in Bogota, Colombia. Mr. Harper also worked as a basin studies
director, Latin America exploration director and exploration project
director at the headquarters of ARCO International in the United
States from 1990 to 1996 and as an exploration manager at the
Andean Basins in ARCO Latin America Inc. from 1999 to 2000. Mr.
Harper received a bachelor’'s degree in Geology from Williams
College and a master’s degree in Geology from the University of
Southern California. Mr. Harper is certified as a Professional
Geologist by the Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists and a
Certified Petroleum Geologist of American Association of
Petroleum Geologists.
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Tian Hongtao, aged 47, has been our Executive Director since his
appointment on December 5, 2014 and resigned with effect from
June 30, 2017. Mr. Tian joined the Company in January 2014 as a
vice president, he was the executive president of the Company
from February 2015 to June 2017 and is a vice president since July
2017. He has over 23 years of experience in finance and accounting
and brings considerable risk and control management expertise to
the Company. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tian served as financial
controller of Digital China Information Service Company Ltd., a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000555.57). Before that, Mr. Tian held positions as vice general
manager, general manager, assistant president and vice president
of Digital China Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) ("'Digital
China"”, stock code: 00861), focusing on risk and control
management of Digital China. Prior to his time at Digital China, Mr.
Tian worked at the Lenovo Group, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0992). Mr. Tian graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in 1994 and then a master’s degree in 2001, both in
Economics from the Central University of Finance and Economics
in China. He also obtained a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in China in 2007. He is a non- practicing certified public accountant
in China.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Xie Na, aged 42, has been the Non-executive Director of the
Company since November 13, 2015. She has previously held
various positions at Shanghai Life Insurance Company Ltd., Sequoia
Capital China and Monitor Group. Ms. Xie has experiences in
equity investment, portfolio investment focusing on consumables
and TMT as well as marketing, operations and post-investment
management. She had led investment projects such as Peak Sport
Products Co. Limited and Sky- mobi Limited (symbol: MOBI.
NASDAQ). Ms. Xie is currently an executive council member of the
China Women’s Chamber of Commerce and the vice president of
China Energy Storage Alliance. She was also a visiting professor of
the Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xie
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer engineering from the
University of Toronto in 2002 and a master’'s degree in business
administration from Stanford University in 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Jiao Qisen, aged 37, has been a Non-executive Director of the
Company since January 29, 2018. Mr. Jiao has extensive
management experiences and is currently the chairman of
ChemChina New Material Co. Ltd, China Sam Enterprise Group Co.
Ltd., and China Jing An Ltd.. He obtained a doctoral degree in
Management from Beijing Normal University in 2010, a doctoral
degree in Philosophical Psychology from Bulacan State University
in 2012 and a postdoctoral degree from Beijing Jiaotong University
in 2016. Mr. Jiao has also published various essays and other
publications in the field of management and psychology over the
years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mei Jianping, aged 57, has been our Independent Non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Mei
has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a fellow at Financial
Institutions Center, the Wharton School of University of
Pennsylvania since 2004. He was a tenured associate professor of
finance from 1996 to 2005 and an assistant professor of finance
from 1990 to 1995 at New York University. From 2003 to 2008, he
also taught at Tsinghua University as a special term professor of
finance. Mr. Mei has been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA
since 1999. Since 2009, Mr. Mei has served on the boards of
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (stock code: 1238.HK), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and also Zhong De
Securities Company Limited. Mr. Mei also served as the chairman
of board of Shanghai Zhangjiang JRtan.com Inc. from 2000 to 2012.
From November 29, 2013, Mr. Mei has served as an independent
non-executive director of Ground Properties Company Limited
(stock code: 989.HK), and from August 11, 2014, Mr. Mei has
served as an independent non-executive director of China Rundong
Auto Group Limited (stock code: 1365.HK) (both companies listed
on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Mei worked as a consultant for
various financial institutions, such as Deutsche Bank, UBS,
Prudential Insurance of America and Asia Development Bank. Mr.
Mei has published a number of books and articles on topics related
to finance. Mr. Mei received a bachelor's degree in Mathematics
from Fudan University in 1982, a master’'s degree in Economics
and a Ph.D. in Economics (Finance) from Princeton University in
1988 and 1990, respectively.
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Jeffrey Willard Miller, aged 55, has been our Independent Non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010.
Mr. Miller has over 31 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Since 2012, Mr. Miller has been Managing Partner and
Co-Founder of Vortus Investments, an energy private equity firm
founded in later 2012. From 2008 to 2012, as the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc.
(“Mercuria”), one of the world's largest independent physical
energy trading firms, he was responsible for Mercuria and certain
of its affiliates’ global portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the
majority of which are located in North and South America. Prior to
joining Mercuria, Mr. Miller spent four years, from 2004 to 2008, as
president of Moncrief Oil International, a private oil and natural gas
company with assets in the former Soviet Union as well as North
America. Prior to his career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller was a managing
director in global energy investment banking for UBS AG, the
successor of Dillon, Read & Co, which he joined in 1993. Mr. Miller
was an investment banker with a focus on the energy industry and
has extensive experience in the fields of corporate finance.
Throughout his career as set out above, Mr. Miller has been
involved in a substantial number of transactions including initial
public offerings, debt offerings and mergers and acquisitions,
which require expertise in financial analysis. As an investment
banker, Mr. Miller also had extensive experience in valuation
analysis, which involved reviewing and analyzing audited financial
statements of public and private companies. Mr. Miller's
professional career began in a technical capacity as a petroleum
engineer with Exxon. Mr. Miller received a bachelor’'s degree,
magna cum laude, in Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M
University and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Columbia Business School.

Guo Yanjun, aged 65, has been the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 13, 2015. He has
extensive entrepreneurship experience and experience in corporate
operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated from China
People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984. Mr. Guo is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 391.HK). He is also the
chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd, CNHK Media Limited, CNHK
Media (H.K.) Advertising Limited and CNHK Publications Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mei Liming, aged 37, was our Chief Financial Officer from May 31,
2016 to April 12, 2017 and has resigned from his position with
effect from April 12, 2017. He was subsequently re-designated as
a vice president of finance and merger and acquisition. Mr. Mei
joined the Group in January 2005 and has since worked across
various functions including as an accountant, finance manager and
vice financial controller. During his career in the Group, Mr. Mei
gained extensive knowledge and experience in the oil & gas
industry, financial management and capital markets. Since joining
the Group, apart from daily financial management, Mr. Mei has also
been closely involved in many transactions including various
financings and acquisitions. He also participated in the process of
the Group’s initial public offering on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Mei graduated from Beijing Institute of
Petrochemical Technology with a Bachelor of Accounting in 2003.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mei worked as an accountant at
Sony Corporation in 2004.

Song Wu, aged 51, is our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Song has
over 28 years of experience in planning, finance, auditing and
operational management in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Song
joined the Group in January 2004 and has held different managerial
positions within the finance department. Mr. Song had ever led
MIE to be granted with the honor of “Pioneers of China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") Foreign Cooperation Projects”.
Mr. Song gained extensive knowledge and experience in the oil &
gas industry, corporate operation and financial management while
working in the Group. Mr. Song graduated from Northeast
Petroleum University with a double degree in accounting and
computer science in 1996. Prior to joining us, Mr. Song worked for
CNPC from 1989 to 2003. He obtained his accountant qualification
in the PRC in 1998.
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Lian Yunfei, aged 42, had been our general counsel from
November 2009 to January 2015. She has rejoined the Company
since August 2017 as a vice president and general counsel of the
Group. Ms. Lian has over 14 years of experience in the legal field.
Prior to joining us, Ms. Lian worked as an associate at Baker &
McKenzie Hong Kong office between 2007 and 2009 focusing on
mergers and acquisitions and general corporate advice and as
North Asia general counsel of a US multi-national corporation
between 2015 and 2017. In her early career, starting in 2001, she
worked at a law firm in Canada, focusing on general practice for
over three years. Ms. Lian obtained a juris doctor degree from the
Faculty of Law at the University of British Columbia in 2007. She
received a Master’s degree in Engineering from the University of
Florida in 2001 and a Bachelor's degree in Science from Shanghai
University of Science and Technology in 1996. She is admitted to
practice law in New York.

RELATIONSHIP AMONG DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, senior vice president and Executive
Director, who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, there are
no familial relationships between any of our Directors and senior
management.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present this
corporate governance report in the Group’'s Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITMENT

The Board of the Company has responsibilities towards the
shareholders and related stakeholders to ensure the Company’s
successful operation. Sound corporate governance is not only vital
for the Company to cope with the evolving regulatory environment
and reinforce the relationship with its shareholders and
stakeholders, but also important for the Company’s success and
sustainable development. We are committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and have promoted corporate
governance practices appropriate for our business operations and
development.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard
shareholders’ interests, enhance corporate value and
accountability, formulate its business strategies and policies and
enhance transparency.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are established
based on the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"), as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has
applied and complied with the applicable provisions of the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the Company
did not hold the Nomination Committee Meeting and the deviations
with explanations below.

The Company shall review and improve its corporate governance
practices on a regular basis to ensure a continuous compliance of
such practices with the requirements of the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors throughout
the year ended December 31, 2017.

STRUCTURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee

EREES FHEES
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THE BOARD

As at December 31, 2017, the Board comprised six members,
including two Executive Directors, a Non-executive Director and

three Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, members of the Board are listed as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)
Mr. Tian Hongtao
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Xie Na

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Mr. Jiao Qisen was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from January 29, 2018.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out under
“Directors and Senior Management” on page 15 to page 18 of this

annual report.

The relationships among members of the Board are disclosed
under “Relationships among Directors and Senior Management”

on page 20.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out under

the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and made recommendations to the Company
regarding the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the Company’s compliance with the Model Code, the code of
conduct and compliance manual for employees and Directors, and
the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Ruilin
("Mr. Zhang") is the Chairman of the Board. Apart from serving as
Chairman, Mr. Zhang has also been appointed as Chief Executive
Officer. Such appointment constitutes a deviation from the Code
Provision A.2.1. The reasons for deviation are explained as below.

Different from integrated oil companies engaged in upstream and
downstream business, the Company is engaged in the business of
oil & gas exploration and production. Therefore, the Board
considers that, the making and implementation of strategic
planning decision by the same individual is in the best the interest
of the Company’s oil & gas exploration and production business.
The Nomination Committee of the Company also agrees that it is in
the best interest of the Company that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer be performed by the same individual.
Therefore, the Company does not currently proposed appoint
another person to act as its Chief Executive Officer. However, the
Company will continue to review the effectiveness of its corporate
governance structure and consider if any changes are necessary
(including separating the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, being the Executive
Directors, act as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and vice
president respectively, and are collectively responsible for the
operation of the whole group. Executive Directors should actively
communicate with Non- executive Directors, and maintain an open
and responsible attitude in respect of any reasonable administrative
suggestions and enquiries raised by the Non-executive Directors.

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper had resigned as an Executive
Director with effect from June 30, 2017.

Mr. Tian Hongtao had resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from June 30, 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The five Non-executive Directors of the Company review the
management'’s performance in fulfilling established corporate
targets and principles. They should also ensure that financial
information is reported clearly and accurately, and the risk
management and internal control systems are implemented
effectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board) with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors assume no management
responsibilities in the Company, and hold no more than (either
legally, beneficially or deemed) 1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company; nor have they acquired any interest in securities
of the Company either by gift or other methods; hence their
independence is strongly guaranteed. In accordance with
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Independent Non-executive Directors have provided an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

HITES

WITESRIRREE MBI TIREED HIEEIA

RAERHITE RBIBH B POREZRE
hEREEESENES - NITEFTTHEIEH

TEFBE  UEHIFRTESRENEFNSE
MITBREZRLERARHARLRBRNEE -

Andrew Sherwood Harper t £ B — & —+

FRA=ZTEBRENTESE -

AREEEE R T —
TEE-

BAFATES

+HFERNA=+HEHERR

RAFSRIERTESEHEEELERME
B EMNRE FEAKIE o (I 7FERR
Eﬁf%ﬁﬂ%ﬂ/ﬁw&ﬁﬁﬁméiﬁ LA K FER R
R E IR R NI R AR M E N

BE-T—tH+-_A=+—HLEE EBF
E-HENALTRABRAZEZI =RBIIF
HTEFT(HEFE =D ) HP 2B
FATEFRABREEXER LG AR
MHERERMBAMRT °

BYIFRTEFTEAR AT EEEE R
% AEZRERESRE  AREAKALR
RADETRABENER1% » TIRARR
ﬁﬁtiﬁlﬁﬁéﬁj}ﬁt ESAR AUE(E F5 1

m REVHEETENNRE - RELTR
AIF 313 IRMIBIIEIE S| - RBIUFATES

ERFEVMEER L - ARRERZRB LI
HITESRUIME -

| BERIERAR AT / 2017 F]

25



RYRVE \

ﬂ:\% B (8)

orate Governance Report (Continued)

26

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are involved
in communications with the auditors, which fully exhibits the role
of independent supervision. During the reporting period, no
objections regarding the proposals of the Board or Board
Committees have been raised by Independent Non-executive
Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
RE-ELECTION

Non-executive Directors serving the Board and Board Committees
are equipped with different skills, specialties, backgrounds and
qualifications, benefiting the Board a lot. Independent Non-
executive Directors not only act as Non-executive Directors, but
also equip the Board with expertise and business specialty
supplementary to management, thus providing unique opinion and
independent judgment for the possible situations during the
implementation of the Company’s business. Independent Non-
executive Directors are acting as chairmen and members of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
under the Board of the Company.

The appointment and re-election of all Directors of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2017 was in compliance with the
CG Code. In accordance with the Code Provision A.4.2, all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The specific term of appointment for Directors of the
Company is three years, which is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The appointment of Non-executive
Directors of the Company shall comply with the Code Provision
A.4.1 under the CG Code, namely, all Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leading and supervising the
businesses, strategic policies and performance of the Company, as
well as being collectively responsible for facilitating the successful
development of the Company by detecting and supervising the
Company's affairs. The Board makes objective decisions in the
interest.
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The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
through him to senior management the authority and responsibility
for carrying out the Company's day-to-day management and
operation. The delegated duties and responsibilities will be
reviewed on a regular basis. The aforementioned senior executives
shall obtain the approval from the Board prior to entering into any
significant transactions.

In addition, the Board has established the Board Committees and
delegated responsibilities as set out in their respective written
terms of reference.

All Directors (including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors) have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board,
facilitating an efficient and effective operation thereof. All Directors
shall ensure that they will perform their duties in good faith, comply
with applicable laws and regulations and act in the interests of the
Company and shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company and the services and advice of the company
secretary, to ensure that procedures of the Board and all applicable
laws and regulations are complied with. Upon request, Directors,
may seek independent professional advice when appropriate for
discharging their duties to the Company, at the Company’s
expense.

Directors shall disclose to the Company details regarding other
offices held by them, and the Board shall review the contribution
required from each Director in performing his duties to the
Company on a regular basis.

The Board reserves the decision-making power over all important
issues, including the Company’s policy matters, strategies and
budget, internal controls and risk management, significant
transactions (especially those that may involve conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational issues. The responsibilities regarding to implementing
Board decisions, directing and coordinating the Company's daily
operation and management are delegated to be the Management.

In respect of legal actions against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities, the Company has
made arrangements for appropriate insurance cover Directors and
executives regarding their duties.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will obtain on-board induction upon
first occasion of his/her appointment, in order to ensure appropriate
understanding of the Company’s business and operation and full
awareness of the Directors’ duties in accordance with Listing Rules
and related laws. The Director shall keep abreast of the duties as a
Director of the Company, and the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

All Directors are continually updated on the legal and regulatory
regime as well as the business environment, so as to assist in their
performance of duties. The Company will make arrangements
when necessary and provide briefing and professional development
training to Directors.

All Directors should participate in appropriate continuing
professional development for developing and updating their own
knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that they can remain
informed and continue to make contribution to Board as
appropriate. The Company will arrange internal briefing sessions for
Directors and distribute reading material on relevant topics where
appropriate. The Company encourages all Directors to attend
related training courses at the Company.

On April 6, 2017, all Directors of the Company attended a training
titled “Duties of Directors and the Role and Functions of Board
Committees” held by the Stock Exchange.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Three Committees have been established under the Board, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to supervise particular aspects of the
Company. All Board Committees of the Company are established
based on functions and powers set out in the written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange for shareholders’ reference.

A list of the chairman and members of each Board Committee is

set out under "Company Information” on page 2. All members of
the Board Committees are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Board Committees are also equipped with sufficient resources to
perform their duties, and can seek independent professional
advices when appropriate (upon reasonable request) at the
Company’s expense.

Committees

ZEE

Audit Committee
B

L5IBE

Remuneration Committee

i
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Nomination Committee

BE

Chairman

£

Composition

AR

Independent Non-executive
Director:

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
BIUFMITES

Jeffrey Willard Miller 24

All other members are
Independent Non-executive
Directors: Mr. Mei Jianping and
Mr. Guo Yanjun
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Independent Non-executive
Director:

Mr. Mei Jianping
BUFRITES:
BRETEE

All other members are
Independent Non-executive
Directors: Mr. Jeffrey Willard
Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun
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Jeffrey Willard Miller 564
BEELE

Independent Non-executive
Director:

Mr. Mei Jianping
BIUFMITES

1B EE

All other members are Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo
Yanjun
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Audit Committee
B

Committees

Z88

Remuneration Committee

&

Nomination Committee'"

Eg (1)

Review financial statements
and reports before they are
submitted to the Board, and
consider any significant or
unusual issues raised by
external auditors o
e Review the relationship with

the external auditors by

reference to the work

performed by the auditors,

their fees and terms of °

recommendations on the

appointment, re- appointment

and removal of external

auditors to the Board
e Review the adequacy and
efficiency of the Company’s
financial reporting system, o
internal control system, risk
management system and
related procedures

Main responsibilities ¢
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Review and make
suggestions on the
remuneration of Directors and
senior management to the
Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
remuneration of Non-
executive Directors to the
Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
Company'’s remuneration
policies and structure of
remuneration of all Directors
and senior management to
the Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
appointment letter of
Executive Directors newly
appointed during the year to
the Board
Review and approve the
compensation arrangements
of Executive Directors and
senior management
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make suggestions on any
changes

Formulate and develop the
relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of
Directors

Identify suitable candidates for
appointment as Directors
Make suggestions on the
appointment or re- appointment
of and succession planning for
Directors to the Board

Assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive
Directors
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Committees

Z8g

Audit Committee

% i

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee'"

Eg (1)

Number of meetings
held in 2017 and
summary of work

Two meetings were held for
reviewing of the financial
performance and reports, financial

A meeting was held for reviewing No meeting was held.
the granting of share options to
the directors, substantial

done reporting and compliance shareholders and employees,
procedures, reviewing and granting of awarded shares to
reporting on the Company’s directors and employees. The
internal controls and risk meeting was also held for
management system and evaluating the performance of the
procedures, work scope and directors and management
further engagement of external  discussing the remuneration
auditor, related party transactions policy and structure.
and arrangements focusing the
staff on possible inappropriate
acts
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When evaluating the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider different aspects required by the Board diversity policy, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge, industry and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will discuss and reach consensus on measurable
objectives of diversification of members of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination procedures for
selection of candidates for directors by making a reference to the skills,
experience, expertise, personal conduct and time commitments of individuals,
the Company’s needs and relevant laws and regulations. WWhen necessary,
external recruitment professionals may be engaged to carry out the selection
process.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee did not take place in the year ended
December 31, 2017 and took place on January 25, 2018 instead.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The details regarding Directors’ attendance of meetings held by the
Board and the Board Committees during their tenure during the
year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in the table below:

EENZEEHEHESRNTE

BREFHEHEHANEREE_T—+F+H
=+ —BIEFERT E’Jﬁ%.a,\i%@%%@
= n?ﬂé&zlg jHX%j{ﬁEUHEﬁﬁEAT%

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ SRR
Extraordinary
Nomination Annual General
Audit Committee  Remuneration General Meeting
Board Committee (note 1) Committee Meeting (note 2)
REZEE RRKHAE
34 ENZEE (3#1) ¥HzEE RRAFAS (32)
Executive Director HiTES
Mr. Zhang Ruilin FRFRLE 6/6 N/A RiER N/A RER N/A @R n 1"
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei BIREE 6/6 NATER N/A &R N/A @R 01 on
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood Harper 5¢ & 3/6 N/A TER N/A &R N/A T 01 NA T ER
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017) (BERZZ—tERA=THET)
Mr. Tian Hongtao (Resigned with HtEEE(ERZE—14F 3/6 NATER N/A &R N/A @R 01 N/A @R
effect from June 30, 2017) NAZTEET)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Xie Na Hipat 4f6 N/A TER N/A @R N/A @R 01 o1
Independent Non-executive Director BUKYTES
Mr. Mei Jianping BRTEE 46 202 0/0 17 01 1
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 524 4/6 2/2 0/0 N Al on
Mr. Guo Yanjun DREEE 4/6 202 0/0 n 01 n
Note 17 The meeting of the Nomination Committee did not take place in the year % 1 RABINR-_T—LFERARAREEZEY B

ended December 31, 2017 and took place on January 25, 2018 instead.

Note 2 The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting on September 22, 2017
for approving the Partnership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated
May 31, 2017 (the “PSA") entered into between Direct Energy Resources
Partnership, A Partner, Canlin Energy Corporation and the Company, and the
terms and conditions thereof and the transactions contemplated thereunder
and the implementation thereof, and to authorise any one of the Directors or
other person to take such action or steps to give effect to and implement the
PSA.

The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting on September 22, 2017
for approving the Subscription Agreement dated May 31, 2017 (the
“Subscription Agreement”) entered into between CCGRF Gastown Limited,
Maple Marathon Investments Limited, Mercuria Energy Netherlands BV,
Canlin Energy Corporation and the Company, and the terms and conditions
thereof and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
implementation thereof, and to authorise any one of the Directors or other
person to take such action or steps to give effect to and implement the
Subscription Agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, apart from regular
Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings with Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) without the presence of other Executive Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and concise
annual reports and interim reports, announcements on inside
information and other disclosures as stipulated by the Listing Rules
as well as other statutory and regulatory provisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties regarding
events or situations which may cast significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The management has provided necessary explanations and
information to the Board, such that the Board can make an
informed assessment of on the Company’s financial statements
submitted for its approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers,
whose responsibilities in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 124 to 136.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors (i.e., PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms within the same network) is set out below:

EENUBHRRAENSE

EEHRRSEEAREARFBE_T—+
Fr-A=+t—RLFEZHMBEEHRE -

EEAFRELMRAUREMETE REE K
SURTERE - B R E R RS kPR
T AREE S REMKE -

BERW TABERS R AT H AR BIRFELE
EENBEBERRRNEHFRBRNEATEER
o

EEECAEFSRHELENEERER - U
BEESIUHRZTESSENRR TN
HRAEH BT -

BT

AR B Z MBI BB 3 R S Bk B & AN = 15
FROAT R IEERAGE])  EEARAE
HUEBHREREERNE124E 136 A2 BIZ
G

R-Z—tF  ENREMNTARRZHEE
TR B N AR B B B TV 251 7R
LU

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARET R

Audit and related services EitR B EBR%E
— Included in continuing operations — BEERFELE 7,183
— Service in relation to acquisition — G ERT RIS 8,318

Non-audit service I EFT RIS

— Included in continuing operations — BEEFEKE 665
16,166
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk management and internal controls are part of the core
operational management activities and business activities of the
Group. The Board aims to establish a comprehensive risk
management system which complies with the Group's strategies
and business features, perfect the organizational structure of risk
management, standardize risk management processes, adopt
qualitative and quantitative risk management methods, carry
forward risk identification, evaluation and mitigation, and facilitate
the sustainable and healthy development of different businesses of
the Company. The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system so as to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Company’s assets, and reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls on a yearly basis, with the
assistance of the Audit Committee.

The Company’s risk management system and internal control
system are established for an efficient and effective operation, so
as to ensure reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, identification and management of
potential risks and safeguarding of the Group's assets. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Senior management of the Group reviews
and evaluates internal control procedures, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on the
results and measures for handling differences and risks identified.
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Risk management structure and other details

The risk management system and internal controls of the
Group are guided by the “three lines of defense” as listed
below:

1.

2 B B EE 2R A R B B

SEHEE

w [ =Bl BA/ES

The Board
EEE

|

Audit Committee
EREEY

| |

m

X

~+*
£
%:
AP
N
®e
|z
o
=
«»

|

1st Line of Defence
Operational
Management and
Internal Controls
—iEfrs
**@ B R AE R

2nd Line of Defence
Risk I\/Ianagement
—Es
‘“é pEE

3rd Line of Defence
Internal Audit
E=Ebhs
N EBERIZIRIE

As the highest level decision-making body for the Company’s
risk management and internal controls, the Board is
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of overall risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board, performs the duties
regarding risk management and internal controls, supervises
management design, implements and monitors work
regarding risk management and internal control system, fully
understands various significant risks and corresponding
management faced by the Company, and supervises the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system.

EEgR R AREERAMEERS
HrHAREEIENER
C &

SRR
MEE -EECXEXKEZET
EERSRETRAMEIELNIBEIERE -
EETER  BHRAEER
NEEZESIERN TIE  2HEBEHEL T

MRASHE KRR MEEEAMNR - Eﬁg
R EIE R ARBEEE R ETHNARIE -
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Three lines of defence

1st line of defence: operational management and internal
controls

The 1st line of defence comprises the Company’s internal
control system, including (i) corporate policies shared with
staff via the internal network; (ii) operational policies,
procedures and practices covering authorization and

transaction approval, etc.;

(iii) application of financial reporting

standards and (iv) review of financial performance and
significant judgments.

(1)

Company policies:

The Corporate Management Manual is
categorized into three parts: the Organization
Chart, Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide,
and Management System Compilation. The
Organization Chart depicts the internal
organizational structure of the Company. The
Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide covers
the key components of all functions of the
Company’s project companies, the Board
Committees and management. It establishes clear
management responsibilities, authorization and
accountability. The Management System
Compilation covers the processes and approval
procedures related to internal controls within the
Company, clarifying the responsibilities and rights
of various departments. Since 2016, we have
initiated a plan to reorganize and amend the
Corporate Management Manual in a bid to update
related systems and enhance operation efficiency
based on the latest organizational structure.

The Staff Manual regulates the behaviors of the
staff of the Company, aiming at facilitating the
penetration of integrity and moral values into the
Company.

The Whistleblowing Policy encourages the staff
and other business-related personnel to report
events involving misconducts or fraud in the
Company, without being persecuted.
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o The Information Disclosure Policy regulates the
handling and publishing of inside information of
the Company. We ensure that inside information
is saved and accessed in an absolutely confidential
manner until the Company makes timely
disclosure.

The Information Disclosure Policy includes:

o Applicable scope of policy

o Form of information disclosure

o Periodic reports

° Management of matters relating to
information disclosure

(2) Operational policy:

The Accident Management Regulations help the
Company to systematically and timely report and handle
accidents in a detailed, unified and coordinated manner,
with corresponding follow-up and monitoring conducted
by the Internal Audit Department.

2nd line of defence: risk management function

The 2nd line of defence comprises several risk monitoring
practices of the Company, and is subject to the supervision of
the Audit Committee. The Company has adopted a risk
management event library, and developed an exhaustive plan
in respect of various risks, so as to support the Company’s
risk management program and assist the operating
departments to identify and report significant risks affecting
the Company in a timely manner. The Company's risk
management event library adopts a top-down risk
assessment approach at the corporate level, and within each
operating unit, a bottom-up approach is adopted for re-
examination by using the individual risk register (based on the
impact from risks). The risk management event library
identifies the main challenges faced by the Company, thereby
assisting the Board and the management to make informed
decisions.
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The Company’s risk management event library and register
classify risks into five different categories for assessment:
strategic, market, legal, financial and operational risks, also
comprising 70 types of risk data of the Company's project
companies. The Company has noted the major risks posing
significant impact on the above categories, and will
periodically assess each major risk for its potential impact on
finance and opportunity of occurrence. The existing controls
are able to identify and address all the major risks and help
improving the skills, benefits and costs required for the risks.

Project companies submit their respective updates on the
risk register to the Internal Audit Department semi-annually,
so as to assist in preparation of the Company's risk
management report. In 2016, after a review of the risk
management procedures, in order to comply with the
Company's financial reporting regulations, the Internal Audit
Department of the Company carried out risk review semi-
annually and approved the Company’s risk management
report, to submit to the president office meeting, Audit
Committee meeting and the Board, and finally for the
approval by the Board, to facilitate the Audit Committee
effective monitoring of the Company’s major business risks
and how the management copes with and mitigates the risks.

Details of the Company’s major risks and potential risks are
set out on page 41 to 44.

3rd defence: internal audit

The internal audit department of the Company is responsible
for internal audit, which plays an important role in assessing
the efficiency of the Company’s risk management and
internal controls system, and is responsible for reporting to
Audit Committee periodically. The audit function of the
department covers the whole Group, with evaluations
handled by the head of the internal audit department of the
Company. The head of the internal audit department of the
Company is required to report to the Chief Executive Officer
and may also contact with the Chairman of Audit Committee
directly, and periodically submit the internal audit report on
the efficiency of the controls system in accordance with the
established audit plan to Audit Committee. During the year
under review, Audit Committee is responsible for approving
the annual audit plan and reviewing reports from the Risk
Management Department.
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The head of the internal audit department reviews the
Group's internal audit function based on risks of each project
company at the operating and corporate level, and agrees on
correction and improvement measures. The head of the
internal audit department will follow up on the recommended
implementation and report relevant results to the Audit
Committee.

External auditors

External auditors of the Company raise independent queries
regarding various businesses, operations and the
performance of internal auditors (especially any significant
internal monitoring involving financial reporting confirmed
during audit), so as to further improve the 3rd line of defence.
External auditors will report any defects in the controls to the
Audit Committee.

Audit Committee and the Board

The Audit Committee reviews and examines the audit report
and statements submitted by Management, each financial
department, internal auditors and external auditors according
to the requirements on reporting, and discuss any significant
issues. Regular risk management reports can be divided into
two reports, internal audit and controls report, and company
risk management report, for further discussion. The internal
audit report is submitted in accordance with the audit plan
annually, and the Audit Committee reviews company risk
management report in order to keep in line with the timing of
financial reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee
examines the impact of any defects in respect of content of
reports, evaluation of efficiency of risk management and
internal controls system, and whether responses are valid,
and determines whether to conduct more extensive
regulation. Besides, the Audit Committee will review the
performance of internal auditors and external auditors, and
the advice of external auditors on the internal finance
department.

The Board holds meetings, proposes recommendations in
respect of the final results submitted by the Audit Committee,
and discusses to find out the final resolutions.
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Main scope of work conducted in 2017 in relation
to risk management

Based on compliance control management, the Company will
establish a sound all-around risk management system
consistent with the highest international standards and
continuously improve risk controls and technology based on
risk governance, guided by risk preference, with risk
quantitative tools and risk performance appraisal as primary
measures, so as to achieve the balance between risk control
and business development.

The specific work conducted by the Company in 2017 is as
follows:

Establish the Company’s risk management register,
record the Company's risk trend and specific ratings;

Develop and improve the guide for project risk
evaluation, provide practical and comprehensive project
tools, and help improve management of major risks
during project cycles;

Periodically prepare company risk management reports
for submission to senior management of the Company,
subsequently submit to the Audit Committee and the
Board for approval;

Discuss existing and potential major risks, and
measures and other activities adopted for addressing
such risks.
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List of significant risks

4. EZERARYT

In 2017, the top 10 major risks in relation to the Company's RZE—+F UTNFEAEBERQAE
business and operations are as below. The Company BRESHBENTATERR - NAF]
arranges, selects and prioritizes the risks encountered by 18 36 A 75 R BT A R e hn LA BR I8

existing business, to compile the list of major risks. During EENTELENT  BEFERP -
the compilation of the Company's major risks, we held a Eiﬁ‘%ﬁ’\ﬂigﬂﬁﬁﬂ’]iﬂﬁqﬂ 1M
special meeting with management to discuss and review NABEBEBRITT —RERGRL
responses to individual risks. Review of risk procedures is s A BER RS A ELIEE - LA
helpful to emphasize potential risks and identify new risks. NEBEBEZINAANES - BiTEB

Maijor risks

TERBE

BB R B R - I 3R
[\ -

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Risk of oil and gas price fluctuation

HRERKE R

Risk of oil and gas resources

HRE R E R

International oil price is subject to the impact of various factors: changes
in global and local political and economic conditions, supply and demand
of oil and gas, and contingencies and controversies with international
impact. Domestic oil price is determined and adjusted with reference to
the price of international crude oil. The Company’s businesses involve
both domestic and overseas markets and are therefore subject in
particular to the impact of risks of price fluctuation. However, the
Company avoided the risk through hedging instruments, meanwhile, set
up relevant personnel to continuously focus on the fluctuations of crude
oil price and report, thereby reducing the risk from the fluctuation of oil
and gas prices.
BIFHES 2R EBUAKHENE L  hRmERERA RABRERY
ENREBMHNFRELTEEARNTE - BHB2RERRHER
HE - BREREER TS RAEREMALE - RABREFEB IR
BN BRSNS - E L - REICEERS /BZEJJHEMEI’J%; c{BE - KA
RAEMRETIAHZERETRERE R RVEBASREBTR
HEREREIER - WHMER - FME T hRERKEHREERE -

The implementation of the Company’s business activities may be
impacted, due to the uncertainties in the exploration and development
of oil and gas resources, or the uncertainties during the purchase of oil
and gas resources with substantial funds. Although detailed assessment
and feasibility study and analysis on investment projects in the prior
period have been conducted, the Company cannot avoid the risk arising
from the uncertainties of oil and gas resources.
BRAREENABERAREREOBRNAZFETREEN - 3%
AREESBEMRERAREFEFEIETEN  BRAFRKLEIER N
REEBIINZE - AKRAREIER AT IER E1T T AR 8
ATHRS T - BAF@ 2 BNERE RN ETE 2R e @R
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Maijor risks

TERR

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Investment risk

RERER

Exchange rate risk

I m R

Risk in international operations

il Sy

Since the oil industry is a capital-intensive industry, the Company has
adopted a prudent investment strategy to carry out strict and detailed
feasibility study and analysis on investment projects. However, during
the implementation of the projects, the projects may fail to achieve the
expected benefits due to large variations in market environment, price
of equipment materials, construction cycle, etc., therefore, some
investment risks are presented.

FHITEBRESBERTE  ARRDERIMTEENKRERR - Hik
B8 B ETTERE ai?EE’JTﬁ'I‘iﬁﬁ%Eﬁ%’%ﬁ BRERE BMBERETR 1D
BRI AATHIRE  REMBONER  IEAMRFRERKRE L - &
HEEMREERON G  BtFE—CHRERR -

Although the Company has avoided exchanges rate risk by adopting
tools such as forward exchanges, however, the fluctuation in exchange
rates will inevitably have an impact on the profit of the Company.
Besides, the adjustments in the national interest rate policies will also
impact the Company's financing cost, thereby impacting the profit of
the Company.

BARNRDRBRIIINESTH - WERRERETHRE  EEXK
BINAA@EHEARRNFEEEZE o I - BRFIERBERANRE
R EERRBIREKSR - B ARARFE -

The Company engages in oil and gas businesses in some overseas
territories. Overseas businesses and assets are governed by the laws
and regulations of the country where the business, so the complexity of
internal political and economy, including international sanction, instability
of tax and fiscal policies and culture difference, may increase the risk of
overseas business expansion and operation of the Company. Although
the Company explores overseas businesses in the countries other than
those with economically or politically unstable situations, and conducts
detailed surveys prior to the commencement of projects, it is unable to
completely avoid the impact from contingencies in the countries where
its businesses are located.

RRABERINE DM RIEFMRRT o BINEBMEEX D PAEBDEE
ERHNEE  ARBERECS - KBENEML - SREEERE - MRECR
PRENRX L ZRSE - HAIBEIMARRBBINEBIRR R EHER
ﬂ&%ﬂiﬂiéﬁﬁa%‘é%ﬂiﬁ@@T\%iﬁ’ﬂ%i&ﬁxiﬁl\%?‘ﬁ’]%ﬂ% (7] B
TETE B AT BRI TRr AR GAT - BT RE R e ERMREIE NG A DA
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Maijor risks

TERR

Risk description and risk response

VB B 4 30 e P

Risk of national policies

EENEE e

Production safety and
environmental risk

R EERRRR

Market competition risk

MiZHEFERR

The Chinese government oversees the domestic oil and gas industry,
therefore, its regulatory policies may impact the Company’s business
activities. The changes in government regulatory policies, such as tax
and fiscal policies, energy-saving and emission-reducing policies, may
impact the business performance of the Company.

PRI HE AR RMRARITHEETES HEBIREZELRR
IETEE) o BITBUR - ﬁﬁﬁb)&ﬁtéﬁﬁa{%ﬁ“”ﬂzﬁ CE BRI B %K
EREBRNAINEEEE

As a high-risk and environmentally-unfriendly industry, oil exploration is
vulnerable to natural disaster threats, and the production environment is
flammable and prone to explosion. Emergencies such as well blowout
and drill sticking may result in heavy economic losses and social impact
as well as pose major harm to personal safety. Although the Company
always stresses the importance of and implements safe production, and
endeavours to avoid various accidents and makes insurance
arrangements for major assets and inventories and against losses it may
cause to any third-party, it still cannot make provisions for the full extent
of the economic losses and adverse impacts which could be brought by
such emergencies.
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With the gradual opening of certain domestic petroleum and
petrochemical markets, the Company faces more fierce competition
from other domestic oil producers and foreign oil producers in relation
to, for example, obtaining rights to enter resource countries, seizing oil
and gas resources and expanding the market when it is making efforts
to strengthen its own business. With a price advantage in a competitive
environment, the Company keeps developing more advanced
technology and reducing its cost. However, its earnings will inevitably
be impacted by market competition.
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Maijor risks

TERR

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Confidentiality

R R

Property safety risk

MEZZRAR

5. Potential risks

Information on the Company’s oil reserve and unsigned investment
projects is strictly confidential. It is a policy of the Company that any
staff in a key position should sign a confidentiality agreement and be
obligated to keep information confidential. But even so, risk of
information leakage brought by job hopping, change of employment or
other events is still unavoidable.

KRR ERER &ﬂiﬁﬁuﬁxélﬁﬁfmmiﬁﬁ%z =8 ANRATHEM
REVCEIFEIIRE WS UREEEAEREERE - BT r#E
B A B PR BER S BB - SR BN R A R

With oil and gas exploitation as its principal business, the Company
establishes comprehensive rules and regulations and strict monitoring
process on aspects such as use of assets, production and
transportation. But since oil and gas exploitation is an outdoor activity,
there is still a risk that assets may be lost or stolen.
RAREBREHRMALESE  BARNRRHEEER £E  EWF
ERERE E’J%ﬁa%ﬂfﬂkﬁiﬂﬁﬁ % BEMNERAREBEEINE
7 AR IR EREE - ERNEERKIIBRNER

5. BERMK

In addition to addressing various major risks faced by the BRESAQFAEENSBEEZRRI -
Company, the Audit Committee also reviews specific ERZESHRETREENELRR -
potential risks. Such potential risks often stem from changes hEEERRBERELE  BUR &
in economic, political, legal or technical environments, and BAHEMBRNEY  SLEHA z1E|
may but not necessarily fall into the scope of current major T*EEEAJ@%’%E’JIKH 2 X8R o R A
risk categories. In the opinion of the Company's Audit EBERLZEERA  REBERRILE
Committee, such potential risks may have a significant impact WEKE’]%E P8 BtgRd B EER
on the Company; therefore, it will aim to minimize such RNEIHBIE R Z W KR ERRAETE]

impact and develop risk mitigation plans.

Potential risks

EBIERR

Risk description and risk response

BB B 4 o

Network security risk

Due to increase in network viruses, hacker attacks and failure in network
maintenance, leakage of data information becomes more and more
frequent. Although the Company has installed software such as firewall
to protect data and reduce network security risks, it is unable to
eliminate the impact of such risks as it has both domestic and overseas
businesses.
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Work focus in 2018

In 2018, the Company will focus on improving its risk
management framework and procedures, strengthening
internal risk communication, raising risk awareness and
defining risk bearers in accordance with the CG Code and
best practices in the industry. We will arrange risk awareness
related trainings for our main operating departments, and
continue to assist the various business departments to
enhance their risk management procedures in accordance
with the Company’s risk management framework and
guidance. In addition, we will identify major risks and make
arrangements in relation to the report and improvement of
risk countermeasures, potential risk framework and close
monitoring initiatives.

Statement of the Board on internal control
responsibilities

The Company's internal controls are aimed at reasonably
ensuring operation legality and compliance, asset safety and
authenticity and completeness of financial report and related
information, improving operating efficiency and effectiveness,
and facilitating the implementation of development strategy.
The Company has comprehensively assessed the
effectiveness of its own internal controls and reported such
assessment to the Audit Committee and the Board in 2017.
No material weakness was identified during the assessment.
In the opinion of the Board, for the year ended December 31,
2017, no events that may have significant impact on the
Company'’s operation, financial reporting and compliance have
been identified, and the existing risk management and
internal control system remains effective and adequate to
guarantee the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND MANAGEMENT
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company discloses information in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong
Kong and the Stock Exchange, releases its periodic reports and
interim announcements to the public in accordance with law, and
discloses important information such as the Company’s financial
results, material information changes and information on significant
projects to the market on a timely basis, bearing in mind the
timeliness, fairness, accuracy, authenticity and completeness of
information disclosure, therefore protecting the legal interests of
investors and stakeholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Sau Mei of Tricor Services Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company, as its company
secretary. Ms. Wong Sau Mei has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year. The company secretary
reports to the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
regarding corporate governance issues, and all Directors can seek
her advice and support. The company secretary is also responsible
for providing advice to Directors and the Board Committees on the
latest laws and regulations, such that procedures of the Board as
well as all applicable laws, regulations and rules are complied with.
The company secretary’s primary contact person at the Company
is Ms. Lian Yunfei, the general counsel of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, the Company
will propose a separate resolution in respect of each significant
matter (including the election of individual Directors) at general
meetings. All resolutions put forward at the general meeting will be
voted on by poll in accordance with the Listing Rules, and the poll
results will be announced on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EERBNAREEE

RRGIRBEBELA R ESBERZESY
BT EIAE %Eﬁﬁ%ﬁmiﬁfﬂzu?ﬁ%/ﬁ
B KEAHEINERS *Emﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁuuﬁi“
& RFMTSBIEE T ARRMIEEES -

_I

EXEEEE EKIEEI MEERES {Eﬁl
BT EREBEOLEE  AFME - @Y &
BEUMTEYE  AREREERMNEHBEAL
HE A

RNEAME

SNERISHER A EREXRBERARZES
XX LEARDRBHATWE - EFXLL

BETEMRAF3 2906 RAFEHERT
AOR+RENFHEBERE - ARIMWE

MEREEMESTS TR MTHBE=E
BEFHIRERATMENER N ITE -
Miﬁﬁﬁﬁ§$&£AEMEﬁM£é
ahfgﬁuﬁﬁ§$A&F&%ﬁL%£
2 RAIRENERSET - ERNARRIZE
BB A BN AREERBEMEERZL -

&'ﬁﬁ

R SRR

RIRERRERRERN - KAREREERE
H(BRERENES) MBRASRZB IR
I MRARE LREZMARBRSGRIE L
MRAETRERR - ERERAZERERN
FBEBRRAG S RENARE B8t &
TIE -



Corp

MMz

PEERRS (B)

orate Governance Report (Continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one- tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may
also be convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send the written enquiry to the Company by post or email as per
the below contact information.

CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests by post or
email:
Address: Room 521-26, 5F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(with the Board of Directors as designated recipient)
Tel: 852-2511-0028
Fax: 852-2511-1983
Email: investors@mienergy.com.cn

Shareholders must deposit or send (as the case may be) the
original of the duly signed written requisitions, notices or
statements or enquires to the above address, and provide their full
names, contact details and identification such that the Company
could reply to them. It is likely that the shareholder information will
be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for strengthening relationships with
investors and increasing investors’ understanding of the Company'’s
business performance and strategy. Also, the Company
understands that maintaining transparency and disclosing the
Company's information on a timely basis are very important for
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

For this purpose, the Company has set up a website
(http://www.mienergy.com.cn), where relevant latest information,
the up-to-date state of the Company’'s business operation and
development, the Company's financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.
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The Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders, especially through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Non- executive
Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairmen
of all Board Committees (or their representatives) will attend annual
general meetings to meet shareholders and respond to their
enquires. The Company’s general meeting is a platform for the
Board and shareholders to communicate with each other.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, no changes have been made to
Articles of Association of the Company. An up-to-date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal business of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint
controlled entities is to engage in the exploration, development,
production and sale of crude oil and other petroleum products
under production sharing contracts and other similar arrangements.
The Group currently has the following oil and gas properties: (1)
one producing production oil sharing contract in northeast China; (2)
a diverse producing, resource and infrastructure oil and gas asset
throughout Western Canada; (3) a working interest in the Niobrara
shale oil and gas asset in the United States of America held by
Condor Energy Technology LLC's; (4) participating an exploration
contract and four production contracts in Kazakhstan held by Emir-
Qil; (5) Invested in Canadian listed company Journey Energy Inc;
and (6) participating one producing production oil sharing contract
in South China Sea.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 139 to 141.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year has been set out in
pages 11 to 14 of the Chairman’s Statement, pages 96 to 123 of
the Management Discussion and Analysis, and this Report of the
Directors.

RESERVES

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 142 to 143 and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 262 to 263 for movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of the senior notes are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at December 31, 2017 are
disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

BUY-BACK, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company
repurchased a portion of its 6.875% senior notes due in 2018 and
7.5% senior notes due in 2019 listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange (2018 Notes” and “2019 Notes"”) pursuant to a tender
offer made to its noteholders. The repurchase price paid in relation
to the 2018 Notes and the 2019 Notes validly tendered and
accepted by the Company was US$117.6 million in aggregate. On
July 13, 2017, (i) the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes repurchased by
the Company were cancelled; and (ii) US$497.6 million in aggregate
principal amount of the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes remain
outstanding. Subsequently on February 6, 2018, the Company
repaid the 2018 Notes that remain outstanding in full upon its
maturity.
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Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31,
2017, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had bought-back,
sold or redeemed any other listed securities of the Company.

A summary of the buy-back, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities is set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

(i)

Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, provide additional incentive to employees and
directors and promote the success of our business. Under
the Plan, a total of 29,902,758 share options were granted to
Directors, executives and employees, of which 7,880,387
share options lapsed. The share options were granted at nil
consideration.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to or
higher than the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of the Company. The share options
granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or three year
period at each anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each vesting
date.

The Company has undertaken that no further share options
will be granted under the Plan upon the listing of the
Company, but the provisions of the Plan shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and share options
granted under the Plan prior to the listing of the Company
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Plan and
agreements entered into pursuant to the Plan.
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(ii)

Details of the share options outstanding as at December 31, R-ZT—+E+_A=+—08 " RBE%
2017 which have been granted under the Plan are as follows: FEEEEEREKRITE ZEREFS
T
Number of Number of
options options
Held at granted exercised Held at
January 1, during during  December 31,  Exercise price
Name 2017 the year the year 2017 (per Share) Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-t%F
RZE-t§& AEERL: AFEEAE t-A=1-H TEE
%% -A-BEE  BREHE EREHA B8 (R) BHAH TF M
Independent non-executive
Directors
BIFYTES
Mr. Mei Jianping 1,267,933 - - 1,267,933 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 from November 23, 2011
BETEE 025%1 “F-TF+-A=1=1 to November 22, 2020
B-%3——§+-A=1=R
ECTCREL-ACTCA
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller 1,811,333 - - 1,811,333 US$0.25  November 23, 2010 from November 23, 2011
Jeffrey Willard Miller % 025%n —F-TF+-A=1+=AR to November 22, 2020
EZT——f+-A=+=H
E S =
Other employees 17,048,120 - - 10,986,312 USS$0.13 November 20, 2009 from November 20, 2011
EfET 01351 ZTENE+-A=1H to November 19, 2019
B-3——5+-A=1H
EZE-AET-ATAA
Total &3t 20,127,386 - - 14,065,578
Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) (i) RS ([ BRETE )
On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme to RZE—ZF+—A=-++tH EEE
enable the Company to grant options to selected participants HABEKETE - ARG AETSE
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to our Group. ERDBERE  ERREUAREEME
Participants of the Scheme include any executive Director, BRI R E R o BRE B2 MR
non-executive Director or full time employee of the Group as PREFSEFENASEEMNITE
invited by the Board. The Scheme shall be valid and effective EENTEFLEBES - BIRER
for a period of 10 years commencing from the approval of the SR E AT O BRI A R R AR
Scheme.
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The exercise period of any option granted under the Scheme
must not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
must be made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee. The
exercise price determined by the Board will be at the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

The share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year starting from the
subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and other
performance evaluation results.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to
the Scheme adopted by the Company on November 27,
2010, share options to certain employees of the Company,
entitling the option holders to subscribe for an aggregate of
112,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company of USD0.001
each at the exercise price of HK$2.254 per Share (“2011
Grant”).

Since February 2013, the exercise price of the vested options
has been higher than the prevailing market price of the
Shares. As a result, the options could no longer serve as an
effective incentive. In view of this, the Company offered
these option holders a cash consideration of HK$0.20 per
Share to cancel vested options under the 2011 Grant, subject
to the option holders consenting to such cancellation. As a
result, options in respect of 65,358,066 Shares were
cancelled on March 21, 2014.
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Grant of Options

On March 21, 2014, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 151 eligible participants
comprising certain directors, substantial shareholders and
employees of the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of
97,280,000 Shares. These options have an exercise price of
HK$1.40 per share and a term of 10 years from the grant
date, and will vest over the next three or four years.

The closing price per share as at March 20, 2014, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$1.34.

On December 9, 2016, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 93 eligible participants comprising
certain directors, substantial shareholders and employees of
the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of 95,920,000
Shares. These options have an exercise price of HK$0.816
per share and a term of 10 years from the grant date, and will
vest over the next three years.

The closing price per share as at December 8, 2016, being
the date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$0.78.
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Under the Scheme, a total of 305,248,000 share options were
granted to Directors, executives and employees, of which
68,649,619 share options were lapsed during the year ended
December 31, 2017. Details of the share options outstanding
as at December 31, 2017 which have been granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

RIREERE AT &) - & 305,248,000 7 i
Hﬁ*ﬁaﬁ%%% CITBRAEBREER -
—E—+F+-_A=Z+—HIt+ -
+ H 168,649,619 B ik - 1R
ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂeﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁé:%—tﬁ
+Z A=+ —HEARTENEREFES
o

Number of Number of Number of
options options Number of options
Held at granted exercised  options lapsed cancelled Held at
January 1, during the during during the during  December 31, Exercise price
Name 2017 period the period period the period 2017 (per Share)  Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-t& RZB-tF
-A-B  REARE: REAGEZ  REABAN  RMEAERE TZAZ1-B
33 ¥8  EREHA BREHA EhRE"A BREHA bt TEE(ER) #EA TFIREE
Executive Directors
g
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 2,347,000 - - - - 2,347,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
FRRLE 254 —E——ENA=TH to September 19, 2021
A-5-—Ef-A=-BE
EZZC-FAATARLE
2,640,000 - - - - 2,640,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
140%8r —F-MEZB-+-B to March 20, 2024
BCE-FZACT-BR
EZ3-ME=A-TAL
2,900,000 - - - - 2,900,000 HKS0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
08163 —F-~ET=ANA to December 8, 2026
-5-RETZANER
ECECRETCANEL
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 2,347,000 - - - - 2,347,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
BIREE 26481 Z5——FNAZTH to September 19, 2021
A-5-—Ef-A=-BE
EZZC-FAATARLE
2,640,000 - - - - 2,640,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
140%r —3-ME=A=+-B to March 20, 2024
BCE-FZACT-BR
EZ3-MEZA-TAL
2,900,000 - - - - 2,900,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816%T —F-~FT=ANA to December 8, 2026
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Number of Number of Number of
options options Number of options
Held at granted exercised  options lapsed cancelled Held at
January 1, during the during during the during  December 31, Exercise price
Name 2017 period the period period the period 2017 (per Share)  Date of grant Exercisable period
RZZ-tF RZg-tf
-A-A  RERRHz  RERTEZ  REREAN REAERE +-A=t-B
i34 2] BREHA BREHE BREHA BREHE bt TEE(ER) BER TFEHE
Mr. Andrew Sherwood 441,000 - - 441,000 - 0 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
Harer (Resigned as 20548 “E-—ENA-TH to September 19, 2021
an Executive Director B-E—Ft-AZt+-Bi
with effect from ER--FAATARL
June 30, 2017) 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - 0 HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2016
Andrew Sherwood Harper 1408 —5-NE=A=+-R to March 20, 2024
FERZE-tE BZ5—E-Azt-AR
~RZTREE E-E-MEZA-HAL
H1783%) 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 - 0 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816 —F-~ETZANA to December 8, 2026
BZE-"FTZANAR
EZRORETZANBL
Mr. Tian Hongtao 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2015
(Resigned as an 140%T —5-RE=A=+-8 to March 20, 2024
Executive Director B-E-RFZA-t-H#
with effect from E-E-MEZA-TALE
June 30, 2017) 17,000,000 - - - - 17,000,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
BRELE 081631 —F-—~FTZANA to December 8, 2026
(RZE-t% -5 ETZANBR
~RZTREE EZENETCANBLE
WnEs)
Other employees 21,827,334 - - 7,397,334 - 14,430,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
EftET 2545 “E——FAR1H to September 19, 2021
B-F-Ft-A=1-HE
EZ3--FAATARL
60,230,505 - - 16,964,153 - 43,266,352 HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2015
1403r —Z-ME=A-t-H to March 20, 2024/
from March 21, 2016
to March 20, 2024
A-F-REZA-T-BE
ECECME-A-TAL/
B-F-AEZACT-BE
EITCMEZACTRLE
69,120,000 - - 13,050,000 - 56,070,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816 T ~ETZANA to December 8, 2026
-5 ETZANBR
EZZEHANBLE
Total 8t 194,392,839 - - 44,852,487 - 149,540,362

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

57



Report of the Directors (Continued)

-

Nne=<

& HE ()

53

(iii) 2012 Share Award Scheme (“2012 Share Award

Scheme”)

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of the share
appreciation rights (“SARs"), the Board resolved to adopt a
2012 Share Award Scheme on May 30, 2012, pursuant to
which the Company granted to selected grantees who are
persons holding SARs under the Plan, such number of
awarded shares as is equal to the number of outstanding
notional shares to which the SARs of the selected grantees
relates. The 2012 Share Award Scheme does not constitute a
share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

The Board resolved to adopt on November 20, 2015 the
amended Plan, pursuant to which, restrictions on grant price
of SARs granted after the adoption of amended Plan are
removed. Lapsed SARs will be re-used and re-granted upon
terms and conditions determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company in its sole discretion, in
accordance with the amended Plan.

According to the 2012 Share Award Scheme, shares of up to
44,415,800 of the Company will be purchased by a trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Company and
be held in trust for the benefit of the selected grantees
pending the exercise of the SARs. Upon exercise of the SAR
by the selected grantees, the trustee will sell the awarded
shares to which the SAR so exercised relates and pay the
selected grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations in relation to the SAR under the Plan. Unless early
terminated by the board of the Company, the 2012 Share
Award Scheme shall continue in full force and effect until the
date when all the SARs are exercised, terminated or expired.

As at December 31, 2017, the trustee held 41,195,002 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$77,337,547 (including
transaction costs). As at December 31, 2017, the trustee sold
3,218,998 shares upon exercise of SARs so exercised by
certain grantees.
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(iv)

2015 Share Award Scheme (“2015 Share Award
Scheme”)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees and to give
incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group, the
Board resolved to adopt on January 6, 2015 and amend on
November 20, 2015 the 2015 Share Award Scheme, pursuant
to which the Board may at their absolute discretion select any
grantee, who is an employee or consultant of the Group or of
any affiliate, for participation in the 2015 Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares to be
granted to such grantee. The 2015 Share Award Scheme
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme
of the Company, and will be in effect in parallel with the Plan,
the Scheme and the 2012 Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, existing
shares will be purchased by a trustee from open market out
of cash which will be paid by the Company as trust shares
and be held on trust for the grantees until the relevant
award(s) is vested in accordance with the relevant award
agreement and the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules. Upon
vesting, the trustee shall transfer the relevant trust shares as
awarded shares to the relevant grantee, or upon receipt of
the instructions from the grantees, dispose of the relevant
awarded shares in open market and transfer the proceeds of
the sale of the relevant awarded shares (after deduction of
the relevant charges, expenses, stamp duty and levy) to the
relevant grantee.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, the
2015 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective from
January 6, 2015 to the date of the last of the awarded shares
has been vested and transferred to the relevant grantee or
has lapsed, whichever is later, in accordance with the 2015
Share Award Scheme rules, provided that no award shall be
made on or after the 10th anniversary date of the adoption
date.
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(v)

As at December 31, 2017, the trustee held 79,704,000 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$67,700,095 (including
transaction costs).

On November 20, 2015, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to certain directors and employees 14,200,000 shares
under the 2015 Share Award Scheme.

On December 9, 2016, the Board has resolved to offer to
certain director 12,000,000 shares under the 2015 Share
Award Scheme.

Others

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under each of
the Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the 2012 annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme and the Plan is
264,784,079 shares and 14,065,578 shares respectively,
representing approximately 9.01% and 0.48% of the issued
share capital respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)
Mr. Tian Hongtao
(Resigned with effect from June 30, 2017)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Xie Na
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Mr. Jiao Qisen was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from January 29, 2018.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Xie Na, Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo
Yanjun shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. In addition, Mr. Jiao Qisen, who was appointed by the
Board as a Non-executive Director with effect from January 29,
2018, shall hold office until the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

We have entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the Executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is
appointed for terms of three years, subject to re-election in
accordance with our Articles of Association at our general meeting.
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On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
each an Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with
the Company, which is renewable yearly unless terminated (i) with
12 months’ notice by either party, or (ii) by the Company upon
certain events such as the Director having committed serious or
persistent breaches of the service contract. Should the Company
terminate the service contract, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei will be entitled to receive severance payment equivalent
to one year's basic pay under the service contract, save for
circumstances described in item (ii) above.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have entered into a
service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
terminable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUED CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company had
followed policies and guidelines to determine the price and terms
of the CCTs conducted. the Group had the following transactions
with Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”) and Jilin Guotai Petroleum
Development Company, Songyuan Guotai Petroleum Technology
Service Company and their subsidiaries (“Jilin Guotai”), which are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules:

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to the Company
(B)  Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Category | — Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholder’s Approval
(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us

Mrs. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, and is therefore
a connected person of our Company. Since 2008, Mrs. Zhang

has been regularly leasing a substantial number of vehicles to
us.
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On December 31, 2012, we entered into a renewed
framework vehicle rental agreement with Mrs. Zhang (the
"Vehicle Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang
agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the purpose of
the day-to-day business operations of our Group, subject to
the entering into of individual contracts as agreed between
Mrs. Zhang and us pursuant to the Vehicle Rental Agreement.

No individual vehicle rental contract has been entered into
with Mrs. Zhang under above Vehicle Rental Agreement
during FY2017.

Category Il — Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

(B)

Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework oilfield
service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Qilfield Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai agreed to
provide to us various oilfield services including well
maintenance services, well logging services, oil tanker
transportation services, oilfield construction related works
and other oil operations related services, subject to the
entering into of individual contracts as agreed between Jilin
Guotai and us pursuant to the Oilfield Service Agreement.
The service fees will be based on normal commercial terms
and negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties to our Group.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into the Renewed
Oilfield Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of
three years ending December 31, 2015.

On December 31, 2015, we entered into the Renewed
Oilfield Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of
three years ending December 31, 2018. The proposed annual
caps for the transactions under the Renewed Qilfield Services
Agreement are RMB99.0 million, RMB96.0 million and
RMB82.0 million for the three years ending December 31,
2018, respectively.
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HEE BEGRTNSERBILE=7
FAEE iR E -

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—H #HA
HMBERETILALAERT A RS 1 3%
HAEHZ2—_FT—RAF+-_A=+—AHI1
=% o

RN-ZT—RAF+-_A=+—H #HfME
HMBE R AEER AR E - F
HeEHZz-_FT—N\F+-_A=+—AH1L
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As listed below, the aggregate annual transaction amount of
each continuing connected transaction for the year ended
December 31, 2017 has not exceeded the respective
proposed annual cap in the Renewed Oilfield Services
Agreement as set out in the announcement published by the
Company on December 31, 2015.

B TXAS - SRHEBERIREZE
TE—tFF+ AT —HLEZFEXR
SHREINEB T —=FA A —+WUH
BREBFASHENHERZFEL
R ARXERARFR_E—RF
+Z A=+ —HEBEHHAE -

Transaction amount
for the year ended

Connected Person  Nature of transaction Proposed annual cap December 31, 2017
BlL=—2—tF
BB XEME BRFELR tTZA=+-BX5#
Mrs. Zhang Lease of vehicles by RMB5.1 million None
RRA Mrs. Zhang AR®B1087T E
to the Company
RARARARRLETE
Jilin Guotai Provision of oilfield RMB96.0 million RMB60.81 million
ELUEES services by Jilin Guotai to AR#9,6008 7T AR¥6,081 87T

the Company
BN EES EAVANSIE L
PR

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors,
the above transactions were entered into: (i) in the Group’s
ordinary and usual course of business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole. Details of such
connected transactions are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that for the year
2017 the continuing connected transactions (i) have received
approval of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group, where applicable; (iii) have been
entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the
respective cap amounts set by the Company.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited
assurance engagement on the above non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their
conclusion to the Board, stating that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the relevant non-exempt
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the relevant
non-exempt continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the relevant continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.

BIFE ETRAE14AB6E  EEFECE
EARNBZBMIZBESSTMASA
W BB EEEIFER 30005 [F
SIS ER B R EM AN BB T (E]
M2EBHHAE 7405 [FE LHHEE
HENFBEBERZWZEA RG] &
FREFEER IV TETEELSH
BF ZEBMEBERAEESRE -
EFE

a. AZBREDYEF B BT FRS M1
MEZSHBHNIEFREHERER
GARERRBEETGHE

b. MARERHEERKREHTE K
R5 - B EE BB ETEIA
SHMREZERSETEATE
RAERAEENE BBORETT -

c. BREmMIEIEIEAFESMM
MEZERFIEEEATERAR
BEBZS RSN HTELET

d.  BFREFEHEXSNESEM
5 REBTEFEINENFES
PIREZEREHERINEHE
BAARRARIZHZF LR -

B EXEBEES ARBEEARRER
BR(EZR EMRR) SKETMAMEL
AW ERI A EREG R (RFEERRR
HEM B AR M AEERERS)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2017, the Group entered into certain transactions with
“related parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards, details of which are disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, as disclosed in note
38(a) to the consolidated financial statements: (i) the transactions in
connection with the purchase for oilfield services fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, and are subject to reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements; (ii) the
transactions in relation to purchase of spare parts and rental of
vehicles and office premises fall under the definition of continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are fully
exempt from the connected transaction requirements under the
Listing Rules; and (iii) the transactions in relation to sales of
vehicles and loans fall under the definition of connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and are fully exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under the Listing Rules.

During 2017, the Group did not carry out any transactions in
connection with the lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us as
mentioned on page 62 of this annual report, which fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and are exempt from independent shareholder’s approval.

The relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
(as applicable) with respect to all the above connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions have been complied with.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions of the

Group constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15
to 18.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at December 31, 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as follows:

EERFETBRAERAKRQTHEM
BEEBE RS - HEROREEE
FEBNERRBKR

RZZE—+F+RA=+—H KRREEK
EBTHAERAARLEMEBEZE(EER
&7 MBI ([ 7875 R BB 5G] 1) % XV )
m D - MR RERZETHREREES R
HERBIFEXVEBET7 R8N BAMEARE R
BRMERIORR (BRRERE S MERK
{5 B 5 3O B E AR AR B A B R 2 SR
B RIRERE 77 R B R 5 362 (R HO R TE
AERNZIGFENELMANERIORE
SRFHN EHRANALHBETAESETE
5 R 5 ERAEST A ([F2ESFRI)) BRI G AN A ]
FE R e sOR BRI T

Number of ordinary Approximate
shares (including total percentage

Name of Capacity/ options to be of interest in the
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest exercised) corporation
BE ! hEEEEN
- EEAR 513 RERME (BRETTERERE) BHETFA
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Our Company Interest of controlled 1,521,295,234 (L) 51.77%
RIRFTE AAE] corporation (Note 2)
Rzl EERR (f52)
Interest of controlled 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
corporation (Note 3)
Rt LR R (37 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 7,987,000 (L) 0.27%
BERHAAN(Ht4)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei Our Company Interest of controlled 1,621,295,234 (L) 51.77%
HIIREE PAN/NC| corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EEER (H52)
Interest of controlled 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
corporation (Note 3)
Rzt EEER (57 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,187,000 (L) 0.35%

BRBHAWT4)
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Name of Director

£

Name of
Corporation

BT

Capacity/
Nature of interest

51/ EEME

Number of ordinary
shares (including
options to be

Approximate
total percentage
of interest in the

Mr. Zhang Ruilin

Far East Energy

Interest of controlled

RImAR LA Limited (“FEEL") corporation (Note 2)
Rt EEER (57 2)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Interest of controlled
HIIREE corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EEER (H3F2)
Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner
e PN EHBEAA
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Our Company Beneficial owner
Jeffrey Willard Miller %4 YN ESEAA

Notes:

(1

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang"), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr.
Zhang") and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao") as to 80%, 9.99% and 10%,
respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to Mrs.
Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
Champion International Energy Limited (“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in
the Company were transferred from FEEL to Orient International Energy
Limited (“Orient"”), 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited (“New Sun”) and 141,460,000
shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to Power International
Energy Limited (“Power"). Each of Champion, Orient, New Sun and Power is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited, which is itself a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed to act in
concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of the shareholders
of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement, if a unanimous opinion
in relation to the matters that require action in concert is unable to be reached,
Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.
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exercised) corporation

BRAEAE EEERERN
(BREUTRERE) BHEEA
8,999 9.99%

9,000 10%

1,267,933(L) 0.04%
1,811,333 (L) 0.06%

FHILIBRUALTRARTARNTHEFE - F&
[S]IERMATRARBBRMHEKE

FEEL ERBTIE (TRKAD) « sRIGAREAE ([REED)
N Ts S E(THEE]D) D RIFEA80% » 9.99% K
10%Ewm e RZT—=FAA=-+MA ' FEELH
72,000 f% i% 13 3 17 F R KX A » FEEL D RIS A 1R 7]
399,070,000 /% + 399,070,000 fi% * 475,000,000 % &
141,460,000 % % 19 & 3% F Champion International
Energy Limited ([ Champion) * Orient International
Energy Limited ([Orient]) * New Sun International
Energy Limited ([New Sun ) % Power International
Energy Limited ([ Power]) ¢ Champion * Orient
New Sun } Power#J & Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited ) 2 & /& A &) ° ifi Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited Bl FEELH) 2 B KB A A FRKA » Rk
ERBEECI L —BTBHE Bt BERE
MEAFEELRFRAEM — ) FE —ITH) - RIE—
WATE R MRAEERBRR —BITBHFEN —
WER REABERH  REXARBEENRS
EITRERR -
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,521,295,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,887,000 share
options, (iv) the call option which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been
granted, pursuant to a put and call option agreement, over the 88,521,234
shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through Celestial Energy
Limited (“Celestial”), as further described in note (3) below, (v) the 100,000
shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself, and (vi) the 2,300,000 shares owned by
Mr. Zhao himself.

The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of shares (the
"PCA"), pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their shares, and
section 317(1)(a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of
Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

On January 6, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a letter agreement in relation to the put and call option. The Board
was also informed that Great Harmony International Ltd (“Great Harmony")
and Celestial have entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Great Harmony has agreed to acquire (or procure its affiliate or other
person or company designated by it to acquire) and Celestial has agreed to sell
211,855,234 ordinary shares in the Company.

On January 18, 2017, February 23, 2017 and March 7, 2017, Celestial had
ceased to have 53,334,000 shares, 40,000,000 shares and 30,000,000 shares
in long and short positions, respectively.

On May 17, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders”) and Celestial entered into a second letter
agreement in relation to the put and call option agreement. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 17, 2017.

On November 30, 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the supplemental agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated November 30, 2017.

FEEL REAMBEER A2 HFAH
1,521,295,234 I & Hi#E = B35 () FEEL @B E 7 A A
(3R 7o 25 FN#E 2 A0 BB fE FEEL O3 AR) BB AR
A)1,414,600,000 8 Bt # 2 (DREERFEH
7,887,000 fix FE AR 1 - (i) {4 5% A4 1578 #9 7,887,000 Ak
FEARAE - (v) IRIRSRUE AR P8 B 158 - FEEL » 5R%E
A RS 9t A R F Ho Chi Sing % 4 3 18 Celestial
Energy Limited ([Celestial]) # & # & 2 7
88,521,234 IR ARMEEARE - BT XPIFE(3) + (VREE
RAFFEH) 100,000 R B i o + LA K (vi) il 58 AR
A HH2,300,000 & E 25 o

ARARZZT—NF+—A/\NBEE ' TPG Star
Energy Ltd. £ Celestial 5] 32 B & # &% @ ¥ Ut -
Celestial A E Y28 &% TPG Star [ & H % 211,855,234
A& A A R A% o

RZZT—MFE+—HA/\B FEEL: R&E4E - %
4 - 3RK A K Celestial #t & T IR0 5]V R04 R R
MR - Bl ZMBEZATNAREEEZER
HHEROzETEFNLERAESRBEEKHNE
317(1)(a) &2 E ° Ho Chi Sing 5t 4 & Celestial K Mt
— R -

LHES N HoChiSingft £ @B HAE
Celestial {935 % + # A2 7)211,855,234 [ 25 ©
IR b 0320k K 3R A8 HR#E#7a% - Ho Chi Sing 5471
Celestial %A 0% Hi#E - 1S MIFEEL - SRLAEMEE %L
A /011,855,234 fEE o

RZZE—+tF—HA/NH ' FEEL * 5R5tA ~ LA -
iRk A K Celestial £ 7T — {5 S 3200 & 7R 88 B 177 3%
R 1= B EE 2% E  Great Harmony
International Ltd ([ Great Harmony|) £ Celestial
2] T - Bt - Great Harmony A& & B (3L
BREMBAGDNIEENEMAXRREE) - A
Celestial B & H& AN A F] 211,855,234 B i i@ A% o

Celestiadl P IR —ZE—+F—A+/\H —_F—+t
FZRAZH+=HBRZZE—tF=AtH BEES
53,334,000 % * 40,000,000 fi% & 30,000,000 f% &) &F
BRKRE ©

RZZT—tFRA+THEE  FEEL  RIGFRELE - #
THEEE HWIRZKET(RBIERERRD R
Celestial % 5] 780 N 72 % HRE 177 32 00 58 — 10 BRI 1%
# o AMEEB2RAQRR - E—FRAA+L

—T—+tF+—A=18 ' ZERRE K Celestial
FIRERRBEARBENE_CHEBBEOET
Wz o FHMEEBLBARAR T —+tF+—A
=tAEMBZASL -
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(4) These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under the Plan
and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Share
Options”. Mr. Zhang's interests includes the 100,000 shares held by himself.
Mr. Zhao's interests includes the 2,300,000 shares held by himself.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options”, as at December 31, 2017, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she had taken or was deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any
grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the year ended
December 31, 2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware of, as at December 31, 2017, the
following persons (other than the Directors, chief executive(s) or
members of the Group) who had interests and/or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
two and three of Part XV of the SFO, or, which would be required,
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein, were as follows:

@) ZERHEZE RERET BTSSR ITE AR
FifEns - HeFBE2M [HRE] —& - REED
1 % B IE R S £ R AFFA 100,000 IR B a5 2 o
M B R L E AR AR A /2,300,000 IR E
iR o

fr EX R (BB ] —SiFTREES R=F
—t¢+:)ﬁ:+—El ARRBFEHEETT
BABRARA B RET(IEEEAE (TR RE
7 R B AGR G 5H XV #D) M fD - BRI SiE
BETHEREREZ S LIS HROIEXVE
5B 7 N8 BRZA A AR B S Bk X2 BT ) M 2 5
KA (BIEREZ KB RG B 5N E 1E
AR REANERIAR)  IREFHF LB
BIRGIE 32 IR RERE LN ARRFEN
Eroft AR SOXR Y*ETFH&#H'J/A%D
EARARBRANEEIORE REEZ
—tF+A=+—RHFE" ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ%)ﬂﬂ%
&S 2R o

FERRREAQXFHRMD - HERG
REENERR AR

REBEMA WN_E—+E+-_A=+—8"
THAL(HRES  TSTRABHIANEEK
BRAFINRARR ZBRHEERG e
RIEE SR EIEHIZEXVERE 2 K30 ER/A R
RARIEBEORERE R AR RIEES &
HE 5015 336 (5B E BNz G FTis 2 & fit
RS KSR BT

Total number of
Shares (including
options to be

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

Name of interested Party Capacity/Nature of interest exercised) company
RGP BE (BE LERNET b £

L AR B RnttE A{TEBRAE) BN B DT
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,521,295,234 (L) 51.77%
TR Z+ T EE R (7t 2) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
FEEL Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,521,295,234 (L) 51.77%
RESEEER (A2 2) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
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Total number of
Shares (including
options to be

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

Name of interested Party Capacity/Nature of interest exercised) company
BHEE (BE AR E S

RS EB B HnttE AT{EE AR AE) HEENE D
Mr. Ho Chi Sing Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 1,5621,295,234 (L) 51.77%
REwEEE R (M 3) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%

Celestial Energy Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 1,621,295,234 (L) 51.77%
(“Celestial") RS AR (1 3) 88,521,234 (S) 3.01%
Citigroup Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 147,002,894 (L) 5.00%
REwEEER (Mt 4) 203,997 (P) 0.00%

Notes: izt -

(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the 1) FHELEEXVCATRAEARRBRDFHEE - &
Company. The letter “S" denotes the person’s short position in the shares of [SIEFEMATARATIRMGOFEHKXE - FR[P)
the Company. The letter “P" denoted the person’s shares of the Company RN A TR AMEEE RN T HENRARRKY -
held by approved lending agent.

(2) FEEL is held by Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as to 80%, 9.99% and  (2) FEELEHRAA - RAEERBEEEDFIHEBES0%

10%, respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to
Mrs. Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Champion, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Orient, 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
New Sun and 141,460,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Power International Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion, Orient,
New Sun and Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited, which is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao have entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under
which they agreed to act in concert in relation to all matters that require the
decisions of the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting- in-Concert
Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that require action
in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his,
Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,521,295,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,887,000 share
options, (iv) the call option which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been
granted, pursuant to a put and call option agreement, over the 88,521,234
shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through Celestial, as further
described in note (3) below, (v) the 100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhang
himself, and (vi) the 2,300,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhao.

9.99% N 10% i - R-_T—=FHA_+WMH "
FEEL#)72,000 B& & 17 2% 17 T 9R K A - FEEL 9 Al #§
AN A 7]399,070,000 % + 399,070,000 f% -
475,000,000 8% % 141,460,0000% % 15 & % F
Champion » Orient ~ New Sun K& Power °
Champion * Orient ~ New Sun % Power 5 /& Sunrise
Glory Holdings Limited ¥y & &K B-A &) + il Sunrise
Glory Holdings Limited 8| % FEELKI 2 & ME QA
REA - REERBEADIT L —BITBRE - &
It HERERFEHRFEELRI AT —IBE K
T8 - RE—BITHHZE - MKREERNBEESR -
THEEN—RER  REFBERE REXAR
A ERRMDETIRERR ©

FEEL REAMBEER T2 FAD
1,521,295,234 Ji & HifE #8235 () FEEL BB E 7 A &)
(73R 90 4 FNs 2 45 BB fE FEEL O3 AR) B AR A
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The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into the PCA in relation to certain of the shares, pursuant to which the
parties to the put and call option agreement have agreed to grant each other
certain rights in relation to their shares, and section 317 (1) (a) of the SFO
applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

On January 6, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders”) and Celestial entered into the letter agreement in
relation to the put and call option. The Board was also informed that Great
Harmony International Ltd (“Great Harmony") and Celestial have entered into a
sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Great Harmony has agreed to
acquire (or procure its affiliate or other person or company designated by it to
acquire) and Celestial has agreed to sell 211,855,234 ordinary shares in the
Company.

On January 18, 2017, February 23, 2017 and March 7, 2017, Celestial had
ceased to have 53, 334,000 shares, 40,000,000 shares and 30,000,000 shares
in long and short positions, respectively.

On May 17, 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into a
second letter agreement in relation to the put and call option agreement. For
further details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 17,
2017.

On November 30 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated November 30, 2017.

Please refer to Form 2 — Corporate Substantial Shareholder Notice dated 29
December 2017 for further details of the shareholding structure.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2017, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by our Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the Group purchased around 30.82% of its goods
and services from its 5 largest suppliers as well as 8.56% of its
goods and services from the largest supplier; and 57.99% and
79.09% respectively of the Group’s revenue are from PetroChina,
its largest customer, and its 5 largest customers combined.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report (if any), none of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s 5 largest
suppliers and customers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The employees, suppliers and customers of the Company play an
important role in the Company’s development and on which the
Company’s success depends. The Company provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract and motivate the employees. The
Company maintains good relationship with customers, suppliers
and other business partners to achieve its long-term goals. In 2016,
there was no material and significant dispute between our Group
and its customers, suppliers and other business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the process of hydrocarbon production, the Company highly
values the protection of natural and ecological environment and its
comprehensive environmental protection measures to ensure that
the Company complies with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to environmental protection. During the process of
construction and production of oilfields, we place environment
impact assessment, compliance with set standards or targets on
pollutant emissions, control on total discharge amount and
reduction on emissions as our priorities.

The Company views energy saving and reduction in emission as an
important aspect of our cost reduction and maintaining high
management standards. We also continue to strengthen efforts on
technical reformation during daily management, which is the key to
improve energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has
constructed oilfields of green environmental protection in
accordance with regulatory requirements and there were no
matters arising from environmental-related regulatory non-
compliances.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and senior management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group. During the year ended December 31,
2017, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the period
from January 1, 2017 to April 21, 2018(being the latest practicable
date for ascertaining information prior to the issue of this annual
report).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company'’s Articles of Association provides that every Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers

liabilities insurance coverage for Directors and officers of the
Company.
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COMPETING BUSINESS

A non-competition deed in favor of the Company was entered into
by FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao on November 23, 2010. Our
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance and enforcement of the non-competition deed and
were of the view that FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao were in
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the reporting
period.

None of the Directors of the Company had an interest in a business
which competes with the Company or is likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Proposed Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: Nil).

Placing of Convertible Bonds

On January 26, 2018, the Company completed the placing of a
convertible bonds to independent placee(s) (the “Convertible
Bonds"”). The Convertible Bonds is in the principal amount of
HK$340.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB280.3 million)
and with an interest rate of 5.0% per annum payable semi-annually.
The maturity date to the Convertible Bonds is January 26, 2021.
The holders of Convertible Bonds have the right to convert into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time, on or after 41 days
after the completion date, until 10 days prior to maturity. Upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds, a total of 586.2 million shares
will be issued, representing approximately 16.63% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the impact of the full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds. The proceeds of the
Convertible Bonds was utilised for the repayment of the 2018
Notes.
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Proposed Disposal of Certain Assets within the Carrot
Creek Area Located in Central Alberta, Canada

On March 23, 2018, the Group and an independent purchaser
entered into a purchase and sale agreement, pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to purchase
certain assets at a base price of C$60.0 million (equivalent to
RMB312.1 million). The subject matter assets under this
transaction are the legal and beneficial interest held by Canlin in
certain petroleum and natural gas rights, certain tangible assets and
certain miscellaneous interests within the Carrot Creek area located
in central Alberta, Canada. The consideration of this disposal is
subject to any adjustments pursuant to the terms of the purchase
and sale agreement.

This transaction is subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. As
conditions of this transaction did not exist at year end, the
corresponding financial impact will be reflected upon completion of
the transaction.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Friday, May 18, 2018 ("AGM"). For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, May 15,
2018 to Friday, May 18, 2018, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, May 14, 2018 (Hong Kong time), being the last
registration date.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment as the Company’s auditor.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 29, 2018
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QUALITY OF WORKING ENVIRONMENT

(1)

Employment

The Group implements the following employment
policies and regulations for recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, holidays,
diversification and other bonus and benefits:

The remuneration of employees is in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Group's internal
policy titled “MIE Holdings Corporation’s
Remuneration Management System"”. The
Company provides employees with
comprehensive and competitive packages taking
into account market competition and equality
within the Group. An employee’s remuneration
package is based on an overall evaluation of work
performance, the employee’s relevant rank and
position and capability.

The recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees of the Group in China are governed by
the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China", the "Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China" , the "Policies Governing
Employee Relations of MIE Holdings
Corporation”, other national and regional laws and
regulations, and the Company’s administrative
policies. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees in Hong Kong are conducted in
accordance with the “Employment Ordinance”
and other relevant Hong Kong laws and
regulations. The recruitment, promotion and
dismissal of employees of Canlin in Canada are
governed by the “Provincial Employment
Standards"”, " Provincial Human Rights Laws",
" Privacy Laws", "Provincial Case Law", other
national and regional laws and regulations in
Canada, and the Company’'s administrative
policies. Recruitment, promotion, and termination
of employees in the United States are carried out
in conformity with applicable U.S. national and
regional laws and regulations.
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The working hours for employees in China are
strictly in accordance with the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China", namely
eight hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest
days include statutory holidays, Saturdays and
Sundays. The working hours for employees in
Canada are strictly in accordance with the
“Provincial Employment Standards”, namely eight
hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest days
include statutory holidays, Saturdays and Sundays.

The Group provides its employees in China with
paid holidays in strict accordance with the ”Order
of the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China (No.5174) in relation to the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees”. For Hong
Kong employees, paid holidays are provided in
strict accordance with the provisions of the
“General Holidays Ordinance” and the
“Employment Ordinance”. Canlin provides its
employees in Canada with paid holidays in strict
accordance with the Company’s administrative
policies in addition to “Provincial Employment
Standards.”

Based on the principle of equality and anti-
discrimination, the Group complies with the
"“"Administrative Policies for Employee
Recruitment of MIE Holdings Corporation” for
recruitment matters.

The Group has established a scientific and
reasonable performance appraisal system and an
effective incentive and restraint mechanism to
ensure the joint development of the Company and
its employees. During the year ended December
31, 2017, the Group continued to optimize its KPI
assessment system, improved the quantification
of its evaluation standards and enhanced the
feasibility of its evaluation mechanism.
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The Group had 1,495 employees, comprising 1,217
males (81.4%) and 278 females (18.6%) as of
December 31, 2017. Due to the nature of the Group's
business, there are more male employees than female
employees.

Table 1: Staff Numbers by Work Category as of
December 31, 2017

HE_ZT—+F+=-_A=+—08"
NEBHBEET1,495%  Heh B
BT1217A1581.4%  ZE T
278 A » 1518.6% - AN ANEEE
BEE TERRERRE BE8T
HELZHRZEIHE -

K1 HEzE-_ZTZ—+ttF+=A
—t+—BREBEEMBERSEMNET
B

Total
Total Core Support  Operation
Work Category Technical ~ Production Support Management  production services services Total
B HiE 4ER XKE  EBGH  IHAEE  GGBBE  BERAH GH
Total A3t 97 63 218 378 863 254 M7 1,49
Table 2: Staff Numbers by Education Background as of R2-BE-_FT—-—ttF+-A
December 31, 2017 —t+t—HREBEXHUERENENE
TiER
Technical

Secondary Junior

Masters and Junior  School & High School
Education Category above Bachelor College High School and below Total
HERE BENE ABRY  ABHY HF - PPRAT &&t
Total &&t 43 376 277 468 331 1,495
Table 3: Staff Numbers by Age Group as of December X3 HE-_ZT—+tF+=A
31,2017 =T —HRBFRIENETIEN

55yrs and
Age Group 20-24yrs 25-34yrs 35-44yrs 45-54yrs above Total
Fi 208245 25%34%; 35F 44 45FE54E; S5ERULE &t
Total EH 24 419 451 419 182 1,495
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Table 4: Staff Numbers by Geographical Region as of
December 31, 2017

R4 BE_T—+F+ A
=+t—HRBMESENETIER

Geographical Region PRC Hong Kong us Canada Total
i35 HE R %H mEX &&t
Total &t 1,082 2 404 1,495

(2) Development and Training

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Group organized tailored training programs based on
Group's development strategy, employee job
requirements and employees’ personal development
needs to accelerate the growth of employees’ working
ability and professional quality. Through the various
tailored training programs, the Group comprehensively
developed the management ability and skill levels of all
employees across various positions.

Aimed at improving the business standards, and
management ability and also overall ability among
management staff, the Group also offered targeted
professional knowledge training to strengthen their
common general skills. With the purpose of improving
the professional and technical ability of technical
personnel, the Group also placed emphasis on the
cultivation of their business knowledge and ability,
including the learning of basic knowledge, application
software tools, and new technology and cutting-edge
knowledge. As regards operational staff, the Group
aimed to strengthen their operating skills, standardize
the operation process and improve operation ability by
providing various trainings.

Table 5: Staff Training Statistics by Gender as of
December 31, 2017
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(3)

Table 6: Staff Training Statistics by Gender and Hours ®x6:HE-_ZT—+FE+=A8

as of December 31, 2017 —t+—HELZEBEIZAFHZIIRE
&

Gender Male Female

£ 51 B z

Average Training Hours FEHER 46 19

As there are more male than female employees in the
Group, the number of male employees who have
received training is also higher as compared to the
female employees. Also, due to the business scope and
working environment of the Group, project staff who
work outdoors receive more training opportunities than
the staff based in the office. Given that there are more
male employees working on projects outdoors, the
difference between the number of average training
hours for male and female appear marked.

Labor Standards

The Group primarily implements the relevant laws and
regulations including the “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China" and the "Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” for the prevention of child
labor and forced labor.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations and conducts a rigorous inspection of the
identity of employees during recruitment and
employment to ensure that they are above 18 years old,
in an effort to eliminate the employment of child labor
or forced labor with in the Group. During recruitment,
we enter into employment contracts with employees
on the principle of equality and voluntarism and keep
track of work performance to avoid any forced labor
situations.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
did not have any serious violations of the relevant
standards or rules.
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. ENVIRONMENT AND OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

(1)

Occupational Health and Safety

Since its establishment, the Group has placed great
emphasis on health, safety and environmental
protection management. It has adhered to the following
core management principles: scientific management,
health upmost, safety first, environmental protection
prioritization and sustainable development. The Group is
dedicated to the creation of a culture rigorous corporate
safety culture and the establishment of a sound
management system. Concurrently, the Group focuses
on increasing employees’ and contractors’ attention
towards safety and environmental protection during the
production process, raising awareness and skills of
employees and contractors on safety risks identification
and awareness, accelerating clean production
management and reducing the business's
environmental impact.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group's
health, safety and environmental management system
was endorsed by the auditors of the Beijing CNPC
Certification Center, and has also passed its renewal
audit.

The Group has consistently implemented the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”, " Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases", " Provisions on the
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health
at Work Sites”," Regulations Governing the Declaration
of Projects with Occupational Hazards", “ Regulations
Governing the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance of Employers”,
“Interim Regulations Governing the Supervision and
Administration of “Three Simultaneities” for
Construction Projects”, and national standards including
“Technical Specifications for Occupational Health
Surveillance”, " Regulations on Labor Protection in
Workplaces Where Toxic Substances Are Used",
" Regulations on the Control over Safety of Dangerous
Chemicals” and other relevant laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, national standards, industry
standards and technical specifications in its provision of
a safe working environment.
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The Group strictly enforces the above laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, standards and technical
specifications, strives to provide a safe work
environment for all employees and also protects
employees against occupational hazards. During the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Group did not
violate any relevant laws, regulations, rules, normative
documents, standards and technical specifications.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
did not have any work- related injuries or deaths from
work-related matters.

Table 7: Safety Statistics of the Group

(1)

(2)

REBEBRRNIT LlUERE BB
IRE R AR R AT AR
B SHAZBRETRMELE2THE
RENMREETHEBEIERE -
HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—8I1
FEAEBSHEREREERAH
AR RE - REME
EERFIMRBOER - HEZT
—+tFE+-_A=+—HBIFE" &
EERBLEET IS EEIRT
TERBRILT -

K7 AREREHR

Projects in China: (1) FEIEAR
Recordable Lost time
Total Recordable incident  Lost time incident
Scope work hours incidents rate  incidents rate Deaths
BIERE BIERE RI RI Bt
gE BT EHY EfE 24y EH4X AE
Company staff KRBT 2,506,428 0 0 0 0 0
External contractors NEPEB T 291,936 0 0 0 0 0
Project in Canada: (2) mEXKIEHR
Recordable Lost time
Total Recordable incident  Lost time incident
Scope workhours incidents rate incidents rate Deaths
B B RI RI ¢4
&E BT 24y EfE EhY EHX A
Company staff RFEEI 889,970 5 1.12 2 0.45 0
External contractors INEPEBT 981,354 1 0.20 0 0 0
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The occupational health and safety measures, related AREBMERNBERREETSE
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by i B ITHERFATES

the Group mainly include:

Establish an occupational health and safety
management administration team which is staffed
with full-time employees. The Group currently has
13 registered national safety engineers. Improve
the safety production responsibility system,
improve the occupational health management
archive and management system, strengthen the
basic management of occupational health and
safety measures, strictly implement management
policies, refine the management scope, and
effectively avoid health and safety risks. During
the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
organized multiple special inspections to
continuously track and rectify any discovered
problems.

Establish occupational health monitoring archives
for employees of the Group, implement the
occupational health notification system, regularly
arrange occupational health examinations for staff
and make corresponding work adjustments for
employees that do not suit their particular
position.

Provide employees with requisite occupational
hazards precaution facilities and labor protection
supplies based on the findings of occupational
health assessment reports. Authorize a third party
occupational disease prevention and control
institution to regularly monitor and assess
potential occupational health hazards of the Group,
and evaluate the Group's occupational hazards
protection measures and the efficacy of protection
provided.

Provide work injury insurance, basic medical
insurance, serious illness insurance for employees
of the Group to fully protect their interests.
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(2)

5.  Since the Group is engaged in oil exploration and
oil has certain dangerous and hazardous
characteristics, such as combustion, explosion
and secondary environmental pollution, the Group
has paid special attention to emergency
management and engaged experts to assess the
sources of hazards and pollution of the Company;
it has also developed contingency plans for major
sources of hazards and key sources of pollution,
and also regularly conducts emergency drills.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
organized a number of practice emergency drills, to
practice the implementation of plans such as
“Emergency Plan for Fire and Explosion Accidents”,
“Emergency Plan for Sudden Environmental Incidents”,
“Comprehensive Plan for Flood and Drought
Prevention”. Results of the practice emergency drills
were evaluated for feasibility and any plans that were
not applicable to the actual scenarios were revised.

Emissions

The emissions discharged during the development and
production process of the Group’s projects mainly
include: furnace heating exhaust gas and hazardous
wastes (such as oil sludge, oil residuals and drilling
muds generated during oil exploration). Such hazardous
wastes are disposed of by service providers certified by
environmental protection authorities.

Table 8: Waste Emission Data of Each Project of the
Group

5 RAAXAEERAOMRARITE
Ao EA —TEMRGE - IB’IE
MRERBSRERBRE
1 REHESEE TR
MESR BEEREAAL
PR 5 R AETTRIE - B
EXBRR EE2)5RRE
HESER THHEGET
HESTARETER -

BE_T—tF+-A=1t—HLt
FE  AEBEAB(RENRIE
EMESTAR)ER (RERRS
HRESTRER)ER - KBkt~ TRAR
BER)EREFZHBARERT
tF BIBERGER - FHERSTEAR
R RIRIEE - B A BRAIRED
EITIERTRHE

=) BB

AEEIEE R EEBETBEE
BYTEAR - NAERER N ERE
W) (40 5 B SR OB A2 P E 4 A Ui
JE o M EHERER) Bk
E) ¥ R IR AR HR T R RE 1O IR 75 A 3R
RERIE °

*8: ARBERIABEMHHERE

(1) Projects in China (1) HE®EAH
Natural ~ Hazardous
Gas Waste Water Power
Consumption Transferred Consumption Drilling Mud Consumption
(Wiv3) (tonnes) (Wive) (IV3) (WKW.h)
ERRAAR REEBYHE BkE TRE HEE
(BIAX) (W) (BYmXK) (L5%) (BTRH)
Daan K% 1,711.8722 4144 40.00 5200  8,578.0075
Moliging REZF 415.0000 256.1 18.25 0  1,335.2300
Total A 2,126.8722 670.5 58.25 5200  9,913.2375
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(2) Project in Canada (2) MmEXKIEB
Hazardous
Natural Gas Waste Water Power
Consumption Transferred Consumption Drilling Mud Consumption
(WIVE) (tonnes) (W) (VB) (WKW.h)
ERARAR REEBHE ke ERE HEE
(BypX) (W) (BupX) (XHK) (BTRE)
Canlin ik 31,006.2510 5,543 64.1624 Notrecorded  15,725.8604
Total &t 31,006.2510 5,543 64.1624 Notrecorded  15,725.8604

Environmental protection measures and related
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by
the Group at present mainly include:

Underground environmental protection measures, cyclic
utilization of drilling muds and other measures can
reduce the amount of hazardous waste produced. Any
hazardous waste generated will be disposed of and
recycled by qualified units under the supervision of the
local government environmental protection department.

Production wastewater passes through the sewage
treatment plant for filtering and purification. Part of the
purified water will be heated and enters into the
pipeline for production while the rest will be injected
underground to supplement the formation pressure, so
as to achieve zero emission targets for waste water.

The Company chooses energy efficient furnaces that
can use clean energy as the combustion material and
the fuel used is natural gas, which mainly releases
carbon dioxide and water vapor after combustion.

The Group entrusts third party organizations to regularly
monitor the surface water, ground water, sewage,
noise, soil within the operation boundary and monitor
the environmental changes brought about by the
production and development processes to the
surrounding area.
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The total amount of hazardous wastes of our projects in
China generated during the year ended December 31,
2017 was 670.5 tons, approximately 2,870.5 tons less
than that 2016, and that of our project in Canada
generated in 2017 was 5,543M?3. The drilling mud
wastes of projects in China produced in 2017 were
5,200M?®, and the amount of its" wastewater efflux was
zero; in 2017 about 331.3312 million M?® of natural gas
was used by all projects of MIE group; and greenhouse
gas emissions were about 4,164.75 tons. Given that the
acquisition of Canlin Project was completed in
September 2017, relevant data was not recorded for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

In terms of emissions, projects in China mainly adhere
to the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "“Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law of the People's
Republic of China on Promotion of Cleaner Production”,
the "Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment”, the “Catalog of
State Hazardous Wastes”, the “People’'s Republic of
China’s Emergency Response Law"”, the “Interim
Regulations Governing the Sudden Environmental
Emergency Contingencies”, “China’s Oil and Gas
Production Enterprises Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines (Trial)"”;
Canadian Projects mainly implement the “The Canadian
Environmental Protection Act, 1999 (CEPA)", the
“National Energy Board Act”, at Alberta Province
implement the “Climate Change and Emissions
Management Act”, “Water Act” and other relevant
laws, regulations, rules and regulatory documents.

The Group strictly enforces the laws, regulations, rules
and regulatory documents of the above-mentioned
countries, intensifies recycling and reuse of wastes,
strives to reduce waste discharge, and actively
promotes clean production and use of clean energy.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group
did not violate any laws, regulations, rules and
regulatory documents.
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(3)

Use of resources

The Group has strictly adhered to the “Energy Law of
the People’s Republic of China", the " Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the " Electricity Law of the
People’s Republic of China", the "Law on Energy
Conservation of People’s Republic of China"; our
Canadian project strictly implement “National Energy
Board Act " and “Oil and Gas Conservation Act” and
other relevant laws and regulations for effective use of
resources (including energy, water, and other raw
materials).

Resource conservation is a fundamental requirement
for the Group to implement scientific management,
improve the economic efficiency of the Group and
enhance the Group’s core competitiveness. To this end,
the Group has done a lot of work in 2016 surrounding
business management, technological innovations and
energy saving goals and has achieved satisfying results.
Details are as follows:

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group's
annual water consumption was approximately 1.2241
million tons; electricity consumption was approximately
256.3909 million kWh, whereas our projects in the PRC
consumed 5.587775 million kWh more as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The consumption of gasoline by our projects in the PRC
was 244.12 tons in 2017; the consumption of diesel
was 167.32 tons, 18.44 tons more than that of 2016. As
the acquisition of Canlin project in Canada was
completed in September 2017, relevant data was not
recorded for our project in Canada for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

Major measures and relevant implementation methods
adopted by the Group in the use of resources include:

1. Establish a three-tier energy management
network comprising a supervising manager,
relevant department heads and entry-level
personnel, formulate scientific and strict
management of quantitative energy consumption,
and have a good grasp on the basic assessment
work.
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2. Achieve high efficiency using technology and
reduce energy consumption through technological
advances.

(1) Usage of automatic control frequency
systems, automatically analyze motor
operation parameters, real-time adjustment
of operation parameters, and achieve the
aim of energy saving.

(2)  Strengthen equipment management, e.g.
adoption of high-performance motors;
elimination of high-energy transformers;
timely adjustment of balance rates and other
measures to reduce power consumption.

(3) As for production wells with poor liquid
supply capacity, optimize the production
parameters, carry out intermittent
production, suspend wells, shut down wells
and implement other measures to reduce
inefficient production rate.

Table 9: Energy Saving Statistics of Each Project
of the Group

Statistics on Energy Conserving Compared to
the Year Ended 31 December 2016
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Energy Energy
Conservation Conservation
Natural Gas  on Electricity on Oil
(WIMVB) (WKW.h) (tonnes)
RAR, s Bi5h
(BFK) (BTEEK) (Mg )
Daan N4 (284.8722) (663.1775) (15.71)
Moliging EBE (83) 104 (2.73)
(367.8722) (5659.1775) (18.44)
Note: As the acquisition of the Canlin project in Canada was it - m&EKCaninBEE R =%

completed in September 2017, relevant statistics were
not recorded for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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The Group strictly observes relevant laws,
regulations, rules and regulatory documents of the
above mentioned countries and it did not and
violate any abovementioned laws, regulations,
rules regulatory documents in 2017.

Environment and natural resources

The Group is an enterprise engaged in the oil
exploration business which consumes mineral
resources, land and other natural resources during the
process of oil production. The Group abides strictly by
the “Mineral Resources Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Land Administration Law of the
People's Republic of China”, the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “the
Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999 (CEPA)",
the “National Energy Board Act "and other related laws,
regulations and requirements. The Group aims to
reduce its impact on the environment and natural
resources via the following: make good use of natural
resources, improve comprehensive recycling ability of
natural resources, reduce the consumption of natural
resources and all kinds of waste emissions.

The Group aims to establish the concepts of conserving
resources, reducing waste emissions, protecting the
ecological environment, increasing investment in new
technology, formulating policies on improving the level
of enterprise technology for comprehensive utilization
of resources, technology innovation, energy
conservation and emissions reduction, constantly
promoting enterprise to improve resource utilization
efficiency, environmental protection compliance in
accordance with the laws and regulations, continual
improving of the regional environment as well as
improving sustainable health development.
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICES

(1)

Supply chain management

The Group continuously optimized its supply chain
management and established a comprehensive
management mechanism for supplier access, selection,
review and withdrawal. As of December 31, 2017, the
Group has established relationships with 533 suppliers
comprising 199 Chinese suppliers and 334 overseas
suppliers. The Group adopts a prudent attitude and
strict standards on supplier selection. Not only do we
value product quality, service level, business ethics,
corporate reputation, but we also place importance on
their social responsibility performance. At present, the
Group’s supply chain management is carried out in
accordance with the “Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China” and other laws of the countries
where resources are located. The Group has updated
and improved its “Policies Governing Tenders of MIE
Holdings Corporation”, the “Policies Governing
Contracts of MIE Holdings Corporation”, the “Policies
Governing the Procurement of Goods of MIE Holdings
Corporation”, the "“Policies Governing the Management
of Materials of MIE Holdings Corporation” and the
“Policies Governing the Early Implementation of Service
Projects without Signing Contracts under Special
Circumstances”, together which provide a unified basis
and procedures for the selection and management of
suppliers and contractors. The Group has developed
four supply chain management modules centered on
tender management, contract management, material
management and supplier management. During the
process, suppliers and contractors are provided with an
opportunity for participation based on openness,
fairness and transparency. The Group puts forward the
requirements of honesty, trustworthiness, legal
operation, due attention to health, safety and
environmental protection for our suppliers and
contractors during pre qualification, bidding, provision of
products and services, and performance evaluation. At
the same time, the Group also includes anti-bribery and
anti corruption clauses into contract terms, creating a
clean environment for supply chain management.
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The Group implements a unified order system and
makes purchases in accordance with the “Purchase
Plan Order” issued by the material services department.
The relevant order would cover the budget amount,
material model, service contents and specific time
requirements, which subsequently makes the
completion of remaining steps in the supply chain more
smooth and efficient.

The Group selects vendors through tendering or price
negotiations. During the procurement process, priority
will be given to those suppliers that offer a more
favorable price for a product of the same quality and
also regular suppliers that have passed the Group's
yearly examination.

Input from multiple departments is tapped during the
acceptance inspection and quality control process to
more effectively control the quality of goods and
services. To confirm the quality of purchased goods,
joint acceptance inspection is conducted by the
procurement department and also the relevant
department that will use the goods. This is
supplemented by quality feedbacks during use. For
service projects, the safety, environmental protection,
production, supervision and other relevant departments
will submit their feedback onsite. A timely feedback
system is implemented to receive information feedback
during the process. Feedback and processing results
are filed for review and integrated into yearly business
evaluations.

To guarantee the overall quality of its suppliers, the
Group organizes an annual assessment of suppliers,
based on their performance of contracts, standards and
quality system certification, health, safety,
environmental protection and other qualifications. The
Group will issue warnings to or remove suppliers who
have failed the assessment from its internal list. The
Group implements a dynamic management system of
registered suppliers and any supplier who demonstrates
serious non-compliance during the business
collaboration or fails the assessment will be dismissed.
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(2)

(3)

Product responsibility

No information is disclosed in this report as the
indicators are not applicable to the industry to which the
Group belongs.

Anti-corruption

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC against Unfair
Competition” and “The Basic Norms of Internal
Control”, the Group has formulated and implemented
policies such as the “Internal Audit System of MIE
Holdings Corporation”, the “Audit System for
Management Departures of MIE Holdings Corporation”,
and “Special Audit (Interim) Policies of MIE Holdings
Corporation” and such policies have been in place since
2015 in order to standardize the operation and
management of the Group, strengthen internal control
and audit supervision, ensure the safety and integrity of
the Group's property and materials, and ensure the
smooth achievement of the Group's objectives, provide
reasonable guarantees for use of objective, truthful and
effective management information by all levels of
management, ensure that the business activities of
various departments and units are carried out in
accordance with the operating principles and policies of
the Group and reduce operational risks and improve
performance.
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Whistle blowing, as one of the sources of information in
the audit plan, is set out as part of the “Internal Audit
System of MIE Holdings Corporation”. Whistleblowing
methods includes correspondences, visits, telephone
calls and internet submissions and the abovementioned
policy specifies the reporting hotline and email, and is
distributed as a management policy among all
employees for study and comprehension. During the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Group did not
receive any reports of crimes such as duty-related
crimes, bribery, extortion, blackmail, fraud and money
laundering. In accordance with the audit plan, the
business operation department conducted a
management investigation of correspondences and
records, the expense management audit of Gobi Energy
Company and other audits. It was found in the audit
that the archive deadlines, archive directories, archive
persons in charge and relevant ledgers needed to be
improved upon, and the control exercised over
expenses incurred or approved by the general manager
of the project was insufficient. Relevant responsible
persons and departments have been reorganized in line
with the internal audit process for rectifications.

IV. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

The Group takes an interest in the spiritual and cultural life of
its employees and has organized a series of cultural and
recreational activities from time to time including hiking,
badminton, autumn outings and sports games which have
been well received by employees. The Chinese New Year
condolence activities were carried out and efforts were made
to improve the working environment for staff through the
provision of staff dormitories, a canteen, and an activity room
and tea parties were held together with local villagers in
villages where the Group has operations.

The Group has organized a series of cultural and recreational
activities including corporate donations and volunteering at
local food banks, homeless shelters and other local charities.
The Group also has an active employee-led Social Committee
that organizes events including Christmas Parties, Calgary
Stampede events and other seasonal activities.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Overview

The world economy recovered moderately, uncertainties such as
international political and economic risks increased, the Chinese
economy continued to develop steadily, and the supply and
demand of the global oil market began to balance in FY2017. West
Texas Intermediate (“WTI") oil prices fluctuated within the range of
US$42 to US$52 per barrel in the first half of 2017 (“1H2017").
With the fact of Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries
("OPEC") reducing crude oil production, crude oil prices, the oil and
gas industry and the global economy rebounded moderately in the
second half of 2017 (“2H2017") and the WTI oil price stabilized at
around US$60 per barrel at the end of the year. International oil
prices fluctuated widely, and the average oil prices increased
significantly year-on-year during the period. However, the US shale
gas production and the number of drilling rigs started to rise again,
bringing global oil prices uncertainties and potential fluctuations. In
such a challenging macro environment, on the one hand, subject to
the Group adheres to the principle of stable development as well
as strengthening management, controlling costs, and improving
operating efficiency, on the other hand, it continuously evaluates
strategic investment opportunities globally, optimizes existing
asset allocation and acquires valuable strategic assets.

During FY2017 (“Current Period"”), the gas and oil operational
production and net production of the Group increased sharply
compared with the same period in FY2016 (“Prior Period”). The
Group's oil and gas production increased by 43.0% to about 9.44
million barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE") compared with the first half
of 2016 (“1H2016"). Net oil gas production increased by 87.8% to
about 6.76 MMBOE compared with the Prior Period. During the
Current Period, our crude oil sales decreased by 26.5% to
approximately 2.38 million barrels from the Prior Period, while our
natural gas sales increased 13.7 times to 25,315.4 million standard
cubic feet (“MMscf”). In 2H2017, the Group’s acquisition of 100%
of partnership interests of CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ
Energy”) in Canada boosted the Group’s oil and natural gas
reserves, production capacity and revenue substantially.
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The average realized crude oil price of the Group increased by
33.3% to US$48.96 per barrel, with average natural gas prices
rising to US$1.50 per thousand metric cubic feet (“Mscf”) in
Current Period. As the recovery in crude oil prices and the increase
in oil and gas production brought about by the acquisition of CQ
Energy, the Group's revenue of FY2017 increased by 110.5% to
RMB1,126 million compared with the Prior Period. EBITDA
recorded a decline of RMB676.0 million from the Prior Period to a
loss of RMB383.7 million. The adjusted EBITDA increased by
22.9% to approximately RMB348.1 million in the Current Period.
During the Current Period, the Group recorded a net loss of
RMB1,099.5 million.

In 2H2017, the Group successfully acquired 100% of the
partnership interests of CQ Energy, a Canadian oil and gas
exploration and development company with a very comprehensive
and mature oil and gas business, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary in Canada, Canlin Energy Corporation (“Canlin Energy”).
CQ Energy owns a diverse base of producing, resource and
infrastructure portfolio located throughout the Western Canadian
Sedimentary and Williston basins in Alberta, Saskatchewan,
Manitoba, Ontario and British Columbia in Canada. Canlin Energy
has an average working interest (average percentage of ownership)
of 67% in the relevant asset sand properties in relation to its oil and
gas reserves, which as of June 6, 2017 covered an area with gross
land coverage of 3,492,600 acres (or net coverage of 2,200,814
acres). CQ Energy possesses natural gas resources producing low
decline, long life asset base products and infrastructure. It has vast
acreage of undeveloped land and has potential for growth. The
acquisition enlarged the Group's business scope from oil
production to natural gas production, acquired new profit growth
points, and allowed the Group to entered the Canadian market at
the same time. Based on the Company's globalization development
strategy, the acquisition enhanced oil and natural gas production
capacity and improved the Company's profitability and
competitiveness.

AEM FHERERBER EA3B3I%E
48.96% T,/ 1+ FHEBRAAK[EK1.50%
TL FAZES FER - AR ERERE A&
I B CQ Energy A5 5R AR REERIE I - EE
—E—EFAEEERMEERAR Z AT
11110.5% = 11.26018 7t A R ¥ - EBITDA®
ZHIE TR AREG760E T 5B EBAR
#3.83718 7T o & B M EBITDAR b £ Ff
229% EHARE3.48118 T - AEHAEE
IS FEEAARK 10,9958 T ©

ZE—tFTEF  AEEBEBNERANEE
FRBIEB RN R ([BEBREIR ) - FIIUEE
7 CQ Energy K1 100% & % # % - CQ Energy
EINEXHEMEMEAR BEIEEE2EM
KA A BARARER - CQ Energy FEINE
AMMBEES BEHREHEE  SERE
HBARBARTYETRLEEANMNEARA
HPBELREANTERMHEE S TEHEESR
- ERREEERES - AR E LG
H 18 /53,492,600 @A ( k)% (5 H 18 &
2,200,814 ) B RBEE - WEHRLLAE
HAREHENEERMENGET% FHIE
Hm(FHmE#EE ) ° CQ Energy B =
EREREE  £FEFRENRAZERLE
e RRNERENRKEMAMAELERE
BERERAEND ARWEBRETEEELKE
EEN A AR E - P IHEERAREESE
o B THOF SR RFEANEX
5« ER A AR KRBEREAEREE - 2K
U A M RAREER T - IRARRAT
KEMGABEF S

MIBERIER AR A E / 2017 3k

97



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE S LT ()

98

Completion of the acquisition of 100% of the partnership interests
of CQ Energy from the Vendors took place on September 29, 2017.
Upon Closing, the partnership arrangement of CQ Energy
consequently dissolved by way of operation of law due to having
only one partner which being Canlin Energy. The entire business of
CQ Energy was transferred to and operated by Canlin Energy.

In 2H2017, the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of
Riyadh Energy Limited (“Riyadh Energy”). The principal business
activity of Riyadh Energy is oil and gas development operations in
China pursuant to the Moliging PSC. Riyadh Energy holds 90% of
the participating interests in the foreign contractor’s entitlement
and obligations covering Moliging block within Jilin oilfield and is
the sole operator.

Following the acquisition and divestment exercises of the Group
during FY2017, based on the year-end 2017 oil and gas reserves
and resources estimate prepared by independent consultants, the
Group's Proved +Probable (“2P") oil and gas reserves were 398.71
MMBOE, representing 4.31 times increase from year-end 2016.
The increase in the Group's 2P oil and gas reserves is largely
attributable to the Group's acquisition of CQ Energy.

In FY2017, the Group implemented efficiency management,
focused on optimizing the allocation of existing assets,
implementing a cost leadership strategy, striving to reduce costs,
increasing efficiency, and stabilizing the production of old wells to
delay the trend of declining production. In 2017, while the oil prices
were significantly higher than the Prior Period, the lifting cost
remained stable. Direct lifting costs for Daan and Moliging
increased slightly by 2.0% to US$8.48 per barrel as compared to
the Prior Period, As of December 31, 2017, except for over 8,500
production wells belonging to Canlin Energy, the Group operated a
total of 2,369 wells, of which 2,364 were located in China and five
wells were located in the United States. Taking CQ Energy
acquisition and Riyadh Energy disposal into account, the total
headcount of the Group increased from 1,387 as of December 31,
2016 to 1,495 as of December 31, 2017.
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The following table provides a recap of the Group's key operational A TNRAEE -_ZET—+F2rFHNHAHELSHY

metrics and product prices for the FY2017: S
FY2017 FY2016 % Change 2017 Guidance
20175 2016 E3lds 4] 20175455
Average Daily Gross Production HiBmREES
(BOE/day) (REE/X) 64,664 18,359 252.2%
Average Daily Net Production A mRFES
(BOE/day) (BEE/F) 57,297 10184 462.6% 8,932-9,566
Average Daily Net Oil Production BEREFESE
(barrels/day) (1@, X) 9,745 9,241 54%
Average Daily Net NGL Production HERARBITRFES
(barrels/day) (1, %) 1,690 - -
Average Daily Net Gas Production AYRARFES
(Mcf/day) (FIXHER,/K) 275,170 5,663 4,759.1%
Notes: Kz -

(1 For reference purpose only, barrels of oil equivalent is calculated using the (1) hEREEER6TEEL FRRAAR=1HERHA

conversion factor of six Mscf of natural gas being equivalent to one barrel of oil MRELLIETAE  BH2EREN
(2)  Gross Production means total production from all assets of the Group (2) HEE=-FTEECSEETRNRES
(3)  Net Production means entitled production from all assets of the Group Q) FEE=FrEEESEHETHNFURRES

(4)  The data of China does not include the last 16 days of 2017 as the Group ~ (4)  FENBBEHTREEESFHE T —LtFEFKRE
disposed of Moliging on December 15, 2017. 16 AMEE  RASRER=-FT—+F+=-A+HAH
HETULIEE -

(5)  The data of Canlin Energy only include the 4th quarter of 2017 since the  (5) BB RNEBRA B sHERKRBEN -2 —tF
acquisition completed in September 2017. EEMNEERIBUE -

The following table is the summary of the expenditures incurred in A TEAREE T -+ FEEHEMIK - M
our exploration, development and production activities for FY2017:  RAEX HAIEREE

Production/

Exploration Development operating
(millions of RMB) expenditures expenditures expenditures
(AR¥BET) G S 3 EE- S EEME
China Onshore Projects (Daan, Moliging) HEEMIER (KL BEF) - 51 292
USA (Condor) 2B (Condor) - - 4
Canada (Canlin Energy) MEX (BERER) - 36 248
Total =X - 87 o44
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Review of Operations by Segment
China Operations (Daan, Moliqing, South China Sea)

By introducing some advanced new technologies and optimizing
traditional oilfield development technologies, our projects in
northeastern China maintained a relatively high level of production
in FY2017. During FY2017, the total gross operated production for
our two China oil projects in Daan and Moliging decreased by 9.5%
to 4.65 million barrels as compared to FY2016. Total net production
allocated to the Group decreased by 6.6% to 1.98 million barrels.
During FY2017, the gross operated production per day decreased
by 9.0% to 12,812 BOPD as compared to FY2016, and net
production per day allocated to the Group decreased by 7.1% to
5,454 BOPD. With the recovery of international crude oil prices, the
average oil price of Daan and Moliging increased by 33.1% from
US$36.73 per barrel in FY2016 to US$48.89 per barrel in FY2017.
Based on rising oil prices, there were 15 wells drilled in Daan in
FY2017, including 14 vertical wells and 1 horizontal well. Direct
lifting costs for Daan and Moliging increased by US$0.17/barrel, or
2.0%, from US$8.31/barrel for FY2016 to US$8.48/barrel for
FY2017. EBITDA per barrel for Daan and Moliging increased by
US$11.93/barrel, or 53.1%, from US$22.45/barrel for FY2016 to
US$34.38/barrel for FY2017. The increase in EBITDA per barrel was
primarily due to the rise in average realized oil price. Considering
the Group's development strategy, the Group disposed of the
entire interest in the Moliging oil project through the disposal of
Riyadh Energy in the 2H2017. The free cash flow contributed by
the Daan is crucial for the development and operation of the
Group's other projects.

As of the end of 2017, the Group had a 34% interest in the South
China Sea project. On August 11, 2017, the Ministry of Land and
Resources examined and approved our South China Sea project
reserve report, and we obtained the approval of the review of the
Ministry of Land and Resources on November 30, 2017. At
present, the block has commissioned China National Offshore Qil
Corporation (“CNOOC") research institute to make the overall
development plan (“ODP") and plans to complete the preparation
and review of the ODP by the end of 2018. The successful
exploration of this block has provided good experience for the
operation of MIE in offshore oil fields.
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North America Operations

Canada (Canlin Energy, Journey)

As of the end of 2017, Canlin Energy’'s 2P reserves were
334.5 MMBOE, accounting for 83.9% of the Group’s total
reserves, and Canlin Energy accounted for 5.21 times the
reserves of other projects in the Group. Canlin Energy was
consolidated into the Group's financial statements from the
fourth quarter of FY2017, and its net annual production was
4.77 MMBOE, accounting for 70.5% of the Group's total
annual production, Canlin Energy’s production in one quarter
is about 2.39 times the total annual production of the Group’s
other projects. The successful acquisition of Canlin Energy
has greatly enhanced the scale of the Group and achieved the
Group's leap-forward development, making the Group an
international large-scale oil and gas company and enhancing
the financial stability and strength of the Group.

Canlin Energy is an oil and gas company that prefers natural
gas development. Canlin Energy has more than 11,500 oil
and gas wells, of which more than 8,500 are producing wells.
Daily oil and gas production was 51,811 BOE, of which
natural gas and natural gas condensate accounted for about
91.8%, the crude oil accounted for about 8.2%. Daily oil
production was 4,262 barrels, daily natural gas condensate
production was 1,690 barrels, and daily nature gas production
was 275.2 MMscf. Despite average realized gas price was
only US$1.50 per Mscf in the fourth quarter 2017, considering
the natural growth in global energy demand and the
substitution of natural gas for coal and oil as a kind of clean
energy, the Group is confident in the development of natural
gas.

e (BBEEIR - Journey)
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Canlin Energy has a high level, international and professional
management team. To face the current low gas prices, Canlin
Energy optimized management, improved staffing and asset
allocation, downsized staff and improved efficiency, and
strived to reduce lifting costs, satisfactory results were
achieved in the fourth quarter of FY2017. As a large-scale oil
and gas company in Canada, Canlin Energy’s high-quality
business management had improved the international
management of the Group and improved our ability to further
expand our business market in Canada. At present, the focus
of the Group’s business has shifted from the Chinese market
to the Canadian market. The business structure, personnel
composition and management methods of the Group will be
more international in the future, which would be beneficial to
the widening of our global footprint, development of a more
balanced oil and gas business portfolio, expansion of our
operational capabilities and enhancement of our profile and
image as an international energy company.

Journey Energy Inc. (“Journey”) planned to drill 14 wells in
FY2017, with 14 wells having been completed in FY2017.
Daily production increased by 14% to 9,962 barrels per day
from 8,712 barrels per day in FY2016. The Group generated
investment loss of RMB63.0 million in FY2017.

USA (Condor)

There were no drilling activities during FY2017 in relation to
our US business. The Group’s subsidiary, Condor Energy
Technology LLC (“Condor”), operates 5 horizontal wells in
the Niobrara project. For FY2017, the average daily operated
oil and gas production was 38 BOPD and 23 Mscf per day,
net oil and gas production was 29 BOPD and 18 Mscf per
day, respectively. Average realized oil and gas price was
US$47.44 per barrel and US$4.47 per Mscf, respectively.
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LLC ([Condor]) 7£ 3 B Niobrara I8 B #t
BYES OIKFEH o ZZF—+4F Niobraralg
BERBAERBMRRARIEEZEEN A
388,/ AM2BFUFER K FEE
DRIB29M, RIS TFILHER /X -
THERRENMRES B B47.443%
T RMA4AT R, TR ER o

Kazakhstan Operations (Emir-Qil)

With the recovery of oil prices, six production wells had been
opened again in FY2017 and the total number of producing wells
was 20 at the end of 2017. Daily production of crude oil decreased
by 28.0% from 3,328 barrels per day in FY2016 to 2,396 barrels per

day in FY2017.
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Review of Reserves

The Group's net reserves evaluation for 2017 year-end shows a
significant increase over 2016, primarily driven by the acquisition of
CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ", subsequently dissolved by
operation of law due to having one partner being the Group's
subsidiary, Canlin Energy Corporation or “Canlin”). Highlights of
the Group's 2017 year-end reserves are as follows:

1. Overall, the Group's total net Proved (“1P") oil, gas and
natural gas liquid (“NGL") reserves increased by 593% to 256
million barrels of oil equivalents ("BOE"”, where 1 BOE =
6,000 cubic feet gas), total net Proved + Probable (“2P") oil,
gas and NGL reserves increased by 431% to 399 MMBOE,
and total net Proved + Probable + Possible (“3P") oil, gas and
NGL reserves increased by 361% to 431 MMBOE™®. The
increases in these reserve categories were mainly
contributed by the gas and NGL reserves of Canlin properties
in the Western Canada Basin.

2. The Group's net 1P oil reserves for 2017 increased by 9% to
31.0 million barrels, while 2P net oil reserves slightly
decreased by 2% to 60.0 million barrels and 3P net oil
reserves increased by 11% to 86.0 million barrels
respectively, reflecting the combined impact of the
production of Daan Project and the divestment of Moliging
Project in Jilin Province, China, the revision on Emir-Oil's
reserves for 2017 year-end in Kazakhstan and the acquisition
of CQ in Canada in 3Q 2017.

3. Canlin’s 1P and 2P reserves are 226 MMBOE and 335
MMBOE respectively for the year-end of 2017 and these
reserves represent 88% and 84% of the Group’s net 1P and
2P reserves on BOE basis, of which approximately 90% is
natural gas and the balance crude oil and NGL. Canlin's highly
proved and prolific reserve, long life assets and vast
undeveloped lands provide great growth potential for the
Group.

4. Based on the 2017 year-end reserves estimates reviewed by
independent consultants, the Group’s 2P net present value,
before tax and discounted at 10% (“NPV10") is approximately
US$1.965 billion, which represents 123% increase from the
reported 2016 year-end 2P NPV10 value of US$881 million.

Note:

As per industry practice, exploration and production companies in Canada do not
prepare or disclose possible reserves. As such, Canlin and Journey have followed the
same approach. Accordingly, the Group's total 3P reserves only include the 2P
reserves of Canlin and Journey.
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ATREE —FE—R"ERR-_FT—LFRRFHE

The following were the prices used to determine the reserves and

resources at the year-end of FY2016 and FY2017: FTARMER

Segment Basin FY2017 FY2016

B 2 2017 R 2016 £ X

China — Gobi Energy Songliao Escalated price profile based on price Escalated price profile based on price
projections published by Sproule for  projections published by Moody's
WTI Crude. An average differential ~ Analytics for WTI Crude. An average
for 2017 January — November differential for 2016 between WTI
between WTI Cushing Spot and Cushing Spot and Daging of —$5.94
Daging of — $2.16 was used. The  was used. The differential is
differential is assumed to remain assumed to remain constant in the
constant in the future. future.

B — KB RE &5 Sproule AMMEAYWTIURERTE  REBES T AMEWTI FAERE
Bl o BRA2017F1-11 AWTIEMRRZ Bl - SR 2016 FWTIEMRR B EFA
ERMAERMERTE-216% EBERMERKFHEDSYMET - ZEH
T ZENBREERRRFIE o BREERRERFIE -

Kazakhstan — Emir-Qil Mangistau Export oil at escalated price profile ~ Export oil at escalated price profile
based on price projections published based on price projections published
by GCA for Brent Crude which has by Moody's Analytics for Brent
been estimated to be $51.31/Stock  Crude which has been estimated to
Tank Barrel in 2018. Domestic oil be $58.00/Stock Tank Barrel in 2017.
price is estimated to be $13.67/Stock Domestic oil price reduced by VAT
Tank Barrel in 2018. Domestic gas ~ 12% resulting in 17.98/Stock Tank
price $0.62/MSCF has been utilized  Barrel in 2017. The price is forecast
for solution gas sales and assumed  to gradually increase related to Brent
to be constant throughout the price. Domestic gas price $0.77/
report. MSCF has been utilized for solution

gas sales and assumed to be
constant throughout the report.

1A 7 2 B748 — Emir-Oil Mangistau SMERMEBRRGCAR M MR  IMERGEREBRES N AMAMR

FmZE S ROERTER - 2018F
BIMERE51.31%T /1 ° 20184
AHEAR13.67FET,/ - AR
BR062F L/ TUFER  ERE
PIRFFIETE °
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FY2017
2017 X

FY2016
2016 £ K

Segment Basin
B i
US — Condor Niobrara
% & — Condor Niobrara

Canada — Journey Western Canadian

JE A — Journey mEXEE
Canada — Canlin Canadian
NE K — Canlin MEX

Escalated price profile based on price
projections published by Sproule.
Appropriate oil and gas price offsets
were determined by examining
Condor’s current oil and gas sales
contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has actually
received. The realized price is
estimated to be $51.85/Stock Tank
Barrel in 2018.

& Sproule MR SIS RERTEA -
BiBBE Condor B ATEMAKXAR
HEWE  THBRELNERER
REEZNAIBRFANRARE
1% 2018 FERRMHEEBRR
$51.85% 7T,/ °

Forecast pricing used is the
average of the published price
forecasts for GLJ Petroleum
Consultants Ltd., Sproule
Associates Ltd. and McDaniel &
Associates Consultants Ltd. as at
January 1, 2018. It is estimated
to be $57.5/Stock Tank Barrel
WTI Cushing Oklahoma in 2018.

TEAERERIEGL) A RERERA
@ » Sproule M McDaniel =K B A
AR 20184 1 A1 B AMAERIER
fFI91E © 2018 FWTI ERE 2 hr
S EMER A7,/ -

Escalated price profile based on
price projections published by
Sproule. Canadian Light Sweet
Crude 40° API oil price is
estimated to be 65.44 $Cdn/bbl
in 2018. Alberta AECO-C Spot
gas price is estimated to be 2.85
$Cdn/MMbtu in 2018.
HSproule DM E 1L KB TEA

—\EMEKRL0°API &L R (E
HRes44 T,/ | —T-N\F
AlbertaAECO- CSpotE!’J?M 52.85
D07 /MMbtu °

Escalated price profile based on price
projections published by Moody's
Analytics. Appropriate oil and gas price
offsets were determined by examining
Condor's current oil and gas sales
contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has actually
received. The realized price is
estimated to be $48.46/Stock Tank
Barrel in 2017.

BERED T AW R BEFE &
ERETER - iBiBIRE Condor B BT R
MAARBEERZ  THBELNE
RER  HWEESHAERRANX
ARER - 2017 FERAHEER
5$48.46,/ 1 °

Forecast pricing used is the
average of the published

price forecasts for GLJ Petroleum
Consultants Ltd., Sproule
Associates Ltd. and McDaniel &
Associates Consultants Ltd. as at
December 31, 2016. It is
estimated to be $55.00/Stock Tank
Barrel WTI Cushing Oklahoma in
2017.

FRIERZREGL E‘?EEEEFEIEFE“
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5 RM B £55.00/1
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FY2018 Guidance

The following is our preliminary guidance for FY2018. The Group
will closely monitor the situation and we may revise our work
program as warranted in a timely manner, based on changes in oil
prices. We believe it is very important to maintain a high degree of
flexibility in order to ensure the stability and profitability of our
business in this current volatile oil price environment.

—E-N\Fig5

ATRAEE —F— \FENNLES] - R
EE L RIERIOR E 2B BRI THE
HE - RABERFEERNETEHNRER
SEZ2FRELZRBANENFREE -

Group Net Capex
Numbers of Investment
Interest (%) Wells (Gross) (millions of US$)  Net production
SBER
MXREFHE
5 (%) EHHE(H) (BBEZn) ZFEE
China Onshore Projects (Daan) 90% 13 9  4,200-4,500 BOPD
— crude oil 4,200-4,500 BOPD
REREIER (K%R) 4,200-4,500 %,/ &
— A 4,200-4,500 18,/ K
Canada (Canlin Energy) 100% - 50 47,500-51,170 BOED
— crude oil 3,750-4,275 BOPD
—NGL 1,250-1,425 BOPD
— natural gas 255,000-272,820 MSCF
mex (EEER) 47,500-51,170 BEE /K
— A 3,750-4,275 8,/ &
— RARRINR 1,250-1,425 18,/ %
— XAR 255,000-272,820 F 315 5
R/X
USA (Condor) 100% - 27 BOPD
— crude ol 27 BOPD
2B (Condor) 2718/ %
— R 271/ X
Group Total 13 59 51,727-55,697 BOED
=@ 51,727-55,697 BEE,/X
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's management and shareholders approved the disposal
of 60% equity interest in PBV on June 20, 2016. Emir-Oil, which is
located in Kazakhstan, is the 100% wholly-owned subsidiary of
PBV (collectively, the “PBV Group”). The Kazakhstan operation is
recognized as a disposal group and discontinued operation as at
December 31, 2016, as Emir-Oil represents the business in
Kazakhstan segment, which is a major line of business of the
Group. Emir-Oil's operating results from the Kazakhstan operation
were recorded as a loss for the period from discontinued
operations, and were not included in the results of continuing
operations.

Continuing operations
Revenue

The Group's revenue is generated from sales of oil and gas
products and provision of services.

The Group's revenue from sales of oil and gas increased by
RMB553.7 million, or 105.6%, from RMB524.3 million for 2016 to
RMB1,078.0 million for 2017.

This increase was mainly due to the acquisition of CQ Energy in
September 2017, which contributed revenue RMB421.8 million
during the three months ended December 31, 2017. There was
increase in crude oil prices during the course of 2017 as well.
Average realized oil price was US$48.96 per barrel for 2017,
compared to US$36.74 per barrel for 2016. The Group's total crude
oil sales volume was 2.38 million barrels for 2017, compared to
2.14 million barrels for 2016.

REXRR

AEFEZEBEIMET S —R"FAAZT
B #t R B =8I PBV A B160% RIHEZS © Emir-
Oifi AMFE T HT A » 2 PBVAI100% 2 & T
NEI (& [PBVEE]) - AR EmMIr-OIlRE
WA TEST AMA D EREEFS - ATUAMREE T HTIA 25 R
T RNF+ A=+ BWEAERELE
X5 EmirOlIlMEEEE  AETHELE

AEEWGEE RRANHEE D BMAARRER
KR AR

AEBAARHEE R AT UKFE
AR 524318 018 0 A R #5537 18 7T 5%
1066%ZE —T—+PBFEARKE10.78E
7T|:O

ZENMEERHANR=Z—+F 1A CQ Energy
Wi BT —tF T+ A=1T—HA={#
AEIRAEUR A B4.21818 7T - I8 IH B —
RAR-Z—tFRHEERMER =T —+
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The Group’s revenue from rendering of services is RMB48.0 million
for 2017.

PRC

Revenue from our China oil fields increased from RMB519.6
million for 2016 to RMB652.2 million for 2017. The average
realized oil price was US$48.89 per barrel for 2017, compared
to US$36.73 per barrel for 2016. Our sales volume was 1.98
million barrels for 2017, compared to 2.12 million barrels for
2016.

North America
Canada

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada oil fields realized revenue from crude oil sales of
RMB130 million. The average realized oil price was US$49.32
per barrel, with sales volume of 392,129 barrels.

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada operations realized revenue from gas sales of
RMB256 million, with a realized gas price of US$1.50 per
MSCF and total gas sales volume of 25.3 BSCF for 2017.

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada operations realized revenue from NGL sales of
RMB27.92 million, with a realized gas price of US$26.64 per
barrel and total NGL sales volume of 155,466 barrels for
2017.

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, our
Canada oil fields realized revenue from sulphur sales of
RMB18.88 million, royalty income of RMB10.96 million, and
other revenue (incl. processing income) of RMB21.25 million.
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BIRE S LT ()

USA

In 2017, our America oil fields realized revenue from crude oil
sales of RMB3.2 million. The average realized oil price was
US$47.44 per barrel, with sales volume of 9,956 barrels. In
2016, our America oil fields realized revenue from crude oil
sales of RMB3.9 million. For 2016, the average realized oil
price was US$37.77 per barrel, with sales volume of 15,328
barrels.

Our America operations realized revenue from gas sales of
RMBA43,025, with a realized gas price of US$4.47 per MSCF
and total gas sales volume of 1,428 MSCF for 2017. In 2016,
revenue from gas sales of RMBO0.2 million was recorded from
realized gas price of US$2.30 per MSCF and total gas sales
volume of 13,981 MSCF.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

The Group's depreciation, depletion and amortization increased by
RMB126.0 million, or 34.6%, from RMB363.9 million for 2016 to
RMB489.9 million for 2017. The increase in depreciation, depletion
and amortization was mainly due to the acquisition of CQ Energy in
September 2017, which has a depreciation expense of RMB137.2
million during the three months ended December 31, 2017.
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Taxes other than income taxes

The Group’s taxes other than income taxes increased by RMB0.8
million, or 6%, from RMB13.4 million for 2016 to RMB14.2 million
for 2017. The following table summarizes taxes other than income
taxes for 2017 and 2016:

BiR (FTEBLERSM)

REBTIB (FIEHRIIN B =S —SHBF
EAR®1340BTHEMARESOE THK6%
ET—+UBFREARARK1,42087L - T
RBEEE-_T—+tF+-_f=+—HEK=ZE

—ANFETZA=+—HOBRIE (PSRRI

Year ended December 31,

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥TRT

PRC =

Urban construction tax and education surcharge 3 @R LA BT NE 3,488 2,839

Others Hith 91 96

3,579 2,935

Corporate and other segments IR HAth 5 2B

Withholding tax and others RADR T S Bt 10,635 10,479
14,214 13,414

PRC A

The Ministry of Finance of the People’'s Republic of China
announced that the threshold of the special oil income levy was
revised from US$55 to US$65 per barrel, effective from January 1,
2015. As no sales were realized at or above US$65 per barrel
during 2017, no special oil levy was incurred for our China oilfields.

Corporate and other segments
Withholding Tax and others

Withholding tax represents accrual of withholding tax on interest
charged on intercompany loans.

1170 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

AR\ B UM B B IR R 3 B ANME BT 1 R R
Wam BB HERSES B E65%E
e/ BZE-RE-A-HER -BER=
TLUBFEERBELABAEEM65X
T ORBEERAFHRES

AR H At 5D
RARBB R E A

RINBBIEH Q R E R S ERHRR R
B -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EIREN MO (B8)

Employee compensation costs

The Group's employee compensation costs increased by RMB73.2
million, or 54.9%, from RMB133.3 million for 2016 to RMB206.5
million for 2017. The increase in employee compensation costs
was primarily due to acquisition of CQ Energy, which has
compensation cost of RMB84.5 million during the three months
ended December 31, 2017, and partially offset by the reduction of
headcount during 2017.

Purchases, services and other expenses

Our purchases, services and other expenses increased by
RMB194.8 million, or 184.5%, from RMB105.6 million for 2016 to
RMB300.4 million for 2017. The increase was due to acquisition of
CQ Energy, which had purchases, services and other expenses of
RMB199.5 million during the three months ended December 31,
2017.

Distribution expenses

The Group's distribution expenses increased by RMB37.5 million,
or 206%, from RMB18.2 million in 2016 to RMB55.7 million in
2017. The increase in distribution expenses was primarily due to
acquisition of CQ Energy, which has distribution expenses of
RMB38.6 million during the three months ended December 31,
2017.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by
RMB103.3 million, or 152.6%, from RMB67.7 million for 2016 to
RMB171.0 million for 2017. The increase in administrative
expenses was primarily due to: (i) the acquisition of CQ Energy,
which had general and administrative expenses of RMB65.0 million
(including transaction fee for acquiring CQ Energy of RMB16.7
million) during the three months ended December 31, 2017; (ii) the
other portion of transaction fees incurred in relation to the
acquisition of CQ Energy charged on the Company of RMB17.3
million.
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Impairment charges

The Group recognized: (i) impairment charge amounting to
RMB33.5 million on the investment in PetroBroad; (ii) impairment
loss on available-for-sale financial assets amounting to RMB2
million.

Other (losses)/income

The Group incurred other loss of RMB652.5 million for 2017,
compared to other income of RMB297.8 million for 2016. Other
loss for 2017 arose primarily from the provision for receivables of
RMB730.1 million due to long aging and lower collectability, which
was offset by (i) gains on disposal of subsidiaries of RMB46.3
million; and (i) gains on financial instruments of RMB45.7 million;
Other income for 2016 includes mainly: (i) gain on disposal of a
subsidiary of RMB526.1 million in July 2016; (i) gains arising from
acquisition of Journey of RMB29.8 million, which was offset by (i)
provision for receivables of RMB252.8 million due to long aging
and lower collectability; and (ii) losses on derivative financial
instruments of RMB19.6 million.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group's finance income increased by RMB31.7 million, or
181.1%, from RMB17.5 million for 2016 to RMB49.2 million for
2017.

Finance cost decreased by RMB216 million, or 563.5%, from
RMB404.0 million for 2016 to RMB188.0 million for 2017.

Share of loss of associates

As at December 31, 2017, the Group holds a 34.0% interest in
PetroBroad, 31.9% interest in Journey and 40.0% in PBV,
respectively. These investments are accounted for as associates
by the Group and our share of loss of amounted to RMB63.0
million in 2017.
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Loss before income tax

The Group’s loss before income tax was RMB1,012.3 million for
2017, compared to the loss before income tax of RMB458.0 million
for 2016. This was primarily due to the cumulative effects of the
above factors.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of RMB87.2 million for
2017, compared to an income tax expense of RMB147.2 million for
2016. The effective tax rate for 2017 is negative 9% compared to
an effective tax rate for 2016 of negative 32%.

Loss for the year from continuing operations

As a result of the foregoing, our net loss from continuing operations
for 2017 was RMB1,099.5 million, compared to a net loss from
continuing operations of RMB605.1 million for 2016.

Loss for the year

The Group's net loss for 2017 was RMB1,099.5 million, compared
to the net loss of RMB1,322.2 million for 2016.

EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to
profit for 2017, our most directly comparable financial performance
calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS. EBITDA refers
to earnings before finance income, finance costs, income tax and
depreciation, depletion and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA refers
to EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash and non-recurring items
such as share-based payment to employees, Impairment loss,
provision for receivable, geological and geophysical expense,
withholding tax, gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments,
gains on disposal of subsidiaries, gains arising from acquisition of
an associate and any other non-cash or non-recurring income/
expenses.
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA reflects the Group’s recurring cash
flow earnings from its core operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are used
as supplemental financial measures by our management and by
investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to assess our
operating performance, cash flow and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry, and our
ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA
should not be considered in isolation or construed as alternatives to
profit from operations or any other measure of performance or as
an indicator of our operating performance or profitability. EBITDA
and adjusted EBITDA fail to account for corporate tax, finance
income, finance costs and other non-operating cash expenses.
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not consider any functional or
legal requirements of the business that may require us to conserve
and allocate funds for any purposes.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations to loss before income
tax from continuing operations for the years ended December 31,

2017 and December 31, 2016:

TRET A EKLEBITDA MK FBFEK
SEBITDAREHE -_Z—+F+-_A=+—H
M E—RNE+_A=+—BIFEZHER
BRI AFE IR L -

Year ended December 31,

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—XRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT
Not loss for the year from continuing operations REAESTE (1,012,296) (457,981)
Finance income Y ON (49,248) (17,490)
Finance costs B 75 & 187,997 403,951
Depreciation, depletion and amortization WrE - i 489,863 363,860
EBITDA from continuing operations FHELS & EBITDA (383,684) 292,340
Share-based payment to employees AT EI TR B RIS A 20,158 27,990
Impairment loss DERIEECES 35,524 234,667
Provision for receivable sHEEU R 730,116 252,756
Geological and geophysical hE R kIR & - 1,227
Exploration and evaluation expense BRETEEERBAER 10,737 -
Withholding tax RN & 10,633 10,647
Gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments ~ $74 &g T A (Ygzs) 18k (52,390) 19,595
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries REFARFE (46,318) (526,132)
Gains arising from acquisition of an associate g P REE S - (29,798)
Others HAith 23,339 -
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations KRS B AC 2 EBITDA 348,115 283,292

The Group generated negative EBITDA of RMB383.7 million for
2017, compared to the positive EBITDA of RMB292.3 million for
2016. The decrease in EBITDA in 2017 was primarily due to: (i)
share of loss of investment accounted for using the equity method
of RMB63.0 million for 2017, compared to the gain of RMB32.3
million for 2016; (i) bad debt provision of receivables of RMB730.1
million for 2017, compared to the amount of RMB252.8 for 2016.
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA increased by approximately
RMB64.8 million, or 22.9%, from approximately RMB283.3 million
for 2016 to approximately RMB348.1 million for 2017. The increase
in adjusted EBITDA was primarily due to the acquisition of CQ

Energy and the increase in oil price as well.

The Group’s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing

operations by operating segment are set out below:

REFNKFALEBITDAR T —~FBEE
AR 2833 LM AR 6,480 8
TTH29% E_FE—+tMBFENHARE
348118 7T - KL FHLEBITDAE MM EE R B
CQ Energy FYUSEE R (ERY L3R ©

REEIZLE DB D K IFELEEBITDA K
(R R B S EBITDA IR FAT/R -

Year Ended December 31, 2017
BE-ZE—tF+-A=1t—HLEE

PRC

FEl
RMB'000

North
America

%
RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TR

Corporate
and others
mE
REA
RMB’000

Total

att

RMB’000

ARBTRT AR® TR

Loss before income tax from

REQERMEHAER

continuing operations (35,209)  (237,756) (739,331) (1,012,296)
Finance income TR A (366) (1,284) (47,598) (49,248)
Finance costs BER 57,618 149,771 (19,392) 187,997
Depreciation, depletion and P& ~ IR EEsH

amortization 349,853 139,829 181 489,863
EBITDA from continuing operations #FEICE EBITDA 371,896 50,560 (806,140)  (383,684)
Share-based payment to employees BRI 8 T & B BRIEA AR 5,788 - 14,370 20,158
Impairment loss VERI=EES 2,000 - 33,524 35,524
Provision for receivable sHRIEWUZBRE 82,798 1,503 645,815 730,116
Exploration and evaluation expense HENEEERBAER - 10,737 - 10,737
Withholding tax RMRHR - - 10,633 10,633
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries BREFARFE - - (46,318) (46,318)
Gains on derivative financial THES R T AU

instruments - (61,677) 9,287 (52,390)
Others Hih (3,534) 6,652 20,221 23,339
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing TR B E EBITDA

operations 458,948 7,775 (118,608) 348,115
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Year Ended December 31, 2016

HEZZ—R"FT_A=T—HLFE
North  Corporate
PRC America  and others Total
B
H % READ &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTIT ARBTI ARBTI
Loss before income tax from BFERERMEHRAIEE
continuing operations (346,756) 22,191 (133,416)  (457,981)
Finance income BITS I (700) (3277)  (13,513)  (17,490)
Finance costs BBER 24,724 43 379,184 403,957
Depreciation, depletion and wE  FRREH
amortization 360,141 3,258 461 363,860
EBITDA from continuing operations ¥ 4484 EBITDA 37,409 22,215 232,716 292,340
Value of employee services under BRI B T R B RS A
stock options schemes 4,853 - 23,137 27,990
Assets impairment loss REBRL 150,245 3,083 81,339 234,667
Losses from changes in fair value of AR EBEFTE BEHEA
derivative financial instrument EHIERSMEEEX - - 19,595 19,595
Geological and geophysical I8 N Ik IE & A - - 1,227 1,227
Withholding tax RINRET - - 10,647 10,647
Provision for bad debt JRE M52 Tz EL At FE LSS58 AR 18 2k 136,944 36,029 79,783 252,756
Gain on disposal of subsidiary EE AR - - (626,132) (526,132)
Gains arising from acquisition of W EEE 2 A R E ARG
an associate - (29,798) - (29,798)
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing SR R B AR EB|TDA
operations 329,451 31,529 (77,688) 283,292
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

The Group's primary sources of cash during 2017 were cash
generated from financing activities.

In 2017, we had net cash generated from operating activities of
RMB40.9 million, net cash used in investing activities of
RMB3,959.3 million, net cash generated from financing activities of
RMB3,160.8 million, an exchange loss on cash and cash equivalent
of RMB15.2 million, and a net decrease in cash and cash equivalent
of RMB757.6 million.

Cash generated from/used in operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB40.9 million
in the year ended December 31, 2017. In the year ended December
31, 2017, our net cash generated from operating activities included
loss before income tax of RMB1,012.3 million adjusted for,
depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB489.9 million, net
interest expenses of RMB143.3 million, provision for receivable of
RMB730.1 million, impairment loss of RMB35.5 million, share of
losses from investments in associates of RMB63.0 million, share-
based payment to employees of RMB20.2 million, exploration and
evaluation expense of RMB10.7 million, others of RMB23.3 million,
which was offset by gains on disposal of subsidiaries of RMB46.3
million, exchange gains of RMB4.6 million, gains on derivative
financial instruments of RMB52.4 million. The cash movements
from changes in working capital which included an increase in trade
and other receivables of RMB18.0 million and an increase in trade
and other payable of RMB76.7 million and a decrease of inventories
of RMB6.2 million, interest paid of RMB422.0 million and income
tax paid of RMB2.4 million.
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Net cash used in operating activities was RMB370.9 million in the
year ended December 31, 2016. In the year ended December 31,
2016, our net cash used in operating activities included loss before
income tax of RMB458.0 million adjusted for, depreciation,
depletion and amortization of RMB363.9 million, net interest
expenses of RMB362.6 million, provision for receivable of
RMB252.8 million, gains arising from acquisition of an associate of
RMB29.8 million, share-based payment to employees of RMB28.0
million, share of losses from investments in associates of RMB35.7
million, exchange loss of RMB23.9 million, impairment loss of
RMB234.7 million, losses on derivative financial instruments of
RMB19.6 million, which was offset by gains on disposal of
subsidiaries of RMB526.1 million. The cash movements from
changes in working capital which included an increase in trade and
other payables of RMB65.5 million, an increase in trade and other
receivables of RMB123.0 million and an increase in inventories of
RMB4.6 million, and interest paid of RMB383.0 million and income
tax paid of RMB69.6 million, and net cash used in discontinued
operations of RMB81.1 million.

Cash used in/generated from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2017 amounted to RMB3,959.3 million, as a result of proceeds
from disposals of subsidiaries of RMB90.7 million and interest
received of RMB3.7 million, which was offset by payment for
acquisition of subsidiary of RMB3,557.0 million, purchases of
property, plant and equipment of RMB60.7 million, increase in
financial assets of RMB336.7 million, loans and deposits to third
parties of RMB24.7 million, contribution and loans to investments
accounted for using equity method of RMB33.5 million and others
of RMB41.2 million.

Net cash generated from investing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2016 amounted to RMB1,790.7 million, as a result
of proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries of RMB2,283.7 million,
decrease in restricted cash of RMB462.6 million, and interest
received of RMB20.2 million, which was offset by purchases of
property, plant and equipment of RMB21.6 million, increase in
financial assets of RMB96.4 million, loans and deposits to third
parties of RMB375.0 million, contribution and loans to/acquisition
of investments accounted for using equity method of RMB277.0
million, and net cash used in discontinued operations of RMB205.7
million.
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Cash generated from/used in financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2017 amounted to RMB3,160.8 million primarily due
to: (i) repayments of borrowings of RMB609.9 million, (i) payment
for repurchase and cancellation of 2018 & 2019 Notes of
RMB791.2 million, (iii) payment of others of RMB27.7 million,
offset byl(i) proceeds from borrowings of RMB3,431.9 million, (ii)
increase in other payable of RMB67.9 million and (iii) proceeds
from financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of
RMB1,089.7 million.

Net cash used in financing activities in the year ended December
31, 2016 amounted to RMB750.3 million primarily due to: (i)
repayments of borrowings of RMB930.2 million, (ii) payments
relating to share-based compensation of RMB63.7 million, (iii)
payment for repurchase and cancellation of 2018 & 2019 Notes
RMB110.7 million, (iv) cash paid to non- controlling interest for
additional interest in subsidiary of RMB103.9 million, (v) others of
RMB33.2 million, offset by proceeds from borrowings of
RMB491.5 million.

As at December 31, 2017, the Group’s borrowings from the bank
and third parties amounted to approximately RMB6,049.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,358.9 million as
compared to December 31, 2016. Among which, borrowings
repayable within one year amounted to approximately RMB1, 529.
0 million, representing an increase of RMB1,425.0 million as
compared to December 31, 2016. All of the Group's borrowings
are denominated in RMB, United States Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars
and Canadian Dollars. The Group’s borrowings all at fixed interest
rates. No hedging instruments are used for bank borrowings.

Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased from 85.5% as at
December 31, 2016 to 104.8% as at December 31, 2017,
principally due to a decrease in equity.

Our total borrowings to Adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is defined as
total borrowings divided by Adjusted EBITDA increased from 16.56
as at December 31, 2016 to 17.38 as at December 31, 2017.
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Market Risks

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
and gas prices and exchange rates.

Oil and gas price risk

Our realized oil and gas prices are determined by reference to oil
and gas prices in the international market, changes in international
oil and gas prices will have a significant impact on us. Unstable and
highly volatile international oil and gas prices may have a significant
impact on our revenue and profit. During 2017, the Group entered
into oil and gas hedge options contracts to manage its price risk.

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US dollars,
while production and other expenses in China are incurred in RMB.
The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is regulated by
the PRC government. Limitations on foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could cause future exchange
rates to vary significantly from current or historical exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Canada subsidiary is in Canadian
dollars and all sales are in Canadian dollars. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the fluctuations between the
Canadian dollar and RMB exchange rates, and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the Group's results of
operations or financial position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

The Group currently does not engage in hedging activities designed
or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will
continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the
Group’s cash value.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As of December 31, 2017, certain assets, comprising principally oil
assets and properties in Alberta, Canada, were pledged to banks as
collateral security for banking facilities with outstanding amount of
RMB870.3 million. In addition, as of December 31, 2017, certain
available for sale financial assets, bank accounts and shares of
subsidiaries of the Group were pledged to secure borrowings in
the aggregate amount of RMB1,958.8 million.

EMPLOYEES

As at December 31, 2017, the Company had 1,495 employees,
with 1,089 based in China (Mainland and Hong Kong), two based in
USA and 404 based in Canada. There have been no material
changes to the information disclosed in the Annual Report 2016 in
respect of the remuneration of employees, remuneration policies
and staff development.

CONTINGENCIES

On August 28, 2000, MI Energy Corporation (“MI Energy”) entered
into a PSC with China Petrochemical Corporation (“Sinopec”) for
exploration and development of the Shengli oilfield in Shandong
Province. In 2000, MI Energy began the trial-development phase of
its operations at the Shengli oilfield and drilled a dry hole. The
project has been suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005,
MI Energy requested an extension from Sinopec to restart the
project at the Shengli oilfield. On September 27, 2006, M| Energy
received a letter from Sinopec denying the request to restart the
project and seeking to terminate the PSC on the grounds that the
extension period of the trial-development phase had expired and
MI Energy had not met its investment commitment of at least
US$2 million under the PSC. MI Energy believed its investment in
the project at Shengli oilfield had met the required commitment
amount under the PSC. The PSC with Sinopec has not been
formally terminated and the dispute has not entered any judicial
proceedings. On November 17, 2017, the Group completed the
sale of the entire issued share capital of MI Energy.
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DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: NIL).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") is scheduled
to be held on Friday, May 18, 2018. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, May 15,
2018 to Friday, May 18, 2018, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, May 14, 2018, being the last
registration date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2017 including the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of MIE Holdings Corporation
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 137 to 308, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Recoverability of the carrying amount of oil and gas properties
° Allocation of purchase price in respect of the acquisition of

the entire partnership interests in CQ Energy Canada
Partnership
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE

B AR E
BMIBERZRAR D FRE ()
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BREESTEER)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAENEST A EEEARETSEE

Recoverability of the carrying amount of oil and
gas properties

HI 5% 6 2 AR T (1L A9 T R [ 1

Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2 A HM B MARMES -

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of oil
and gas properties of the Group amounted to
RMB6,700.8 million.

RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H EXEHREERAE
BE®ERARKE,7008BETT °
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In addressing this matter, we performed following
procedures, amongst others:

BT T T OB R AR B XA Bt 08 ¢

° Understood the key processes and controls
relating to the identification of impairment
indicator, determination of cash generating
units and the assessment of the recoverable
amount.

TEHRERENETRETR  BERSMEDH
BT R T4 AT Y [0 < BE AR BA A B 4R R AR AN AR
PR o

° Evaluated management’s identification of
potentially impaired assets. Where an
impairment indicator was identified by
management, procedures were performed on
their impairment assessment, as below:
AHEREEHECREEENSNN SEERE
BRAHGFEEERENR - AEE BN TR
BEFHHEER :

° Compared the forecast oil or gas prices
used in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of respective oil and
gas properties against a range of oil or gas
price forecasts published by various
reputable banks and industry organisations.
1S E IR B AT (hh R & B AT 0] & FE R ER
AR TR R B E R R AR RITRITE
REEAHTEANR REEHE ML
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN EST A EERARETSE

Management assess the oil and gas properties for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable. When indicators of
impairment were identified, management assessed the
recoverable amount of oil and gas properties of the
cash generating units (“CGU") based on their value in
use as estimated using discounted cash flow models.
In performing such assessment, management adopted
key assumptions, including:
EFAESENIMNOIRRE BN NRE ERE(E R LR
EWE - ERERE MR EEERREN G EEEE
BRHFERETRE - EEBRAERTRRESRE
AEEGHNEENCRAEESEREREhREER
W Bl REETA G - EEMHBZIEN AR EEERAT
AT RS RER -

—  Forecast oil or gas prices;
FERDH R B

—  Forecast production volumes;
TEREE

—  Forecast operating costs and capital expenditures;
and

BRRIEBRAAMRESH &

— Discount rates.

IR

Assessed the forecast production volume
by comparing it against (i) the approved
production plan; (ii) forecast production
volume for the remaining concession
periods prepared by management and as
set out in the reserve report; and (iii)
historical actual production volume. We
also performed procedures to evaluate
the competence, capability and objectivity
of external reserve experts engaged by
management for preparing the reserve
report.

FERIETERESR - BEAESE TME
HH LR (1) A Bt & By AR EE AT EI (i) B IR AR
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N BT -

Assessed the forecast operating costs
against (i) the approved budget; and (ii)
the historical actual costs. Compared the
forecast capital expenditures against the
approved budget.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMESNAERERRETSE

Given the significant balance of oil and gas properties
as at 31 December 2017, together with the use of
significant management judgements over various
assumptions in estimating the recoverability of their
carrying amount, we had identified this matter as a key
audit matter.
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° Challenged the underlying assumptions
adopted in the determination of the
discount rates based on external market
data and published information of
comparable companies.
ERINEBTTSEE R AT R B E B E T E
IR R P A R R ERETT AT o

o Tested mathematical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow projections.
REFRBR SRR EROBRATE
W o

Based on our work, we found the key assumptions
adopted were supported by the audit evidence we
gathered.
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RFEAPIPTRE RN BT BIEPERIFF -



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B Az BA RS ()

_E
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMNESNAEERRETSE

Allocation of purchase price in respect of the
acquisition of the entire partnership interests in CQ
Energy Canada Partnership

W B8 CQ Energy Canada Partnership 2 & BB
BEERNDE

Refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2H AU ERERMEST -

On 29 September 2017, Canlin Energy Corporation (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, completed the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire partnership interests in the
CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ Energy”) for a
consideration of approximately C$699.4 million
(equivalent to RMB3,735.9 million). CQ Energy owns a
diverse base of producing, reserve and infrastructure
assets located throughout Western Canada.
RZBE—tFNLAZ+TNA  ERFNEZENBTAF
Canlin Energy Corporation ([ & 75 J) LA ¥ & %7699.4 &
B (ITd ARY3,735.98 & JT) 52K ¥ CQ Energy
Canada Partnership ([CQ Energy]) 2 %8 & B I
& (TAE 1) - CQ Energy #E B iR M A2 K FEE0 % #h #) 4
B REMEREEEE -

In addressing this matter, we performed the
following procedures, amongst others:

BT T THER R AR %R R 518

o Obtained the sales and purchase agreement of
the Acquisition and shareholder agreement to
understand the transaction details including
considerations, conditions of completion, the
respective rights and obligations of the Group
upon completion.
DEZBBEENESHELRRRGE AT
BBEZZHE B TKGE UREEE
MRREITEHEBERAENENEBRBERSHF

=

o Evaluated the competence, capability and
objectivity of the external professional valuer
engaged in preparing the fair value assessment.
EERAABEM NI ERTEMNE
B R hMEHIN -

o With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessed the appropriateness of
the valuation methodology and the underlying
assumptions adopted in determining fair value
allocation. We checked the mathematical
accuracy of the valuation models.
EEAMASEEZIRORE T - HEEES
EREBEALBESERAKANEBRRS
HEMN - BMRE T HEERSBENEESE
WM -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAENEST A EEEARETSEE

With the assistance of an external professional valuer,
management performed the fair value assessment on
the allocation of purchase price in respect of the
Acquisition as of the completion date. Based on the
assessment, a goodwill of C$135.6 million (equivalent
to RMB724.3 million) arose from the Acquisition. The
goodwill is attributable to the synergy expected from
the Acquisition.

EINDEEMGERN R T - BEEERKNESTENEE
BRHENUETK BRI AR EEEIT TG - IRIEFT
i WEELEB1B6AEMT(FTEARKT72438
& IT) o B IR B W HE = IETE BIHY 15 R KU o

Management exercised significant judgement in the fair
valuation of assets acquired particularly when developing
key assumptions including forecast gas and oil prices,
forecast production volume, forecast operating costs
and capital expenditures.
EREHMWBEENAABEETHEERATEKRE
BREHE - SRR ENEFR S RATERRRER - TR
EE - BAREBEBRNMRE HE@RMER -

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the purchase consideration and
significant management judgments involved in the
allocation of the purchase price for the Acquisition.
ERBEUHBERENEREERZWETREEER S
R RHEREIREHE - RS EIERR AR
FTEIE -
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o Assessed the fair value adjustments on the assets

acquired. Our assessment was based on our
understanding of the business of CQ Energy and
the business plan in respect of the Acquisition. In
addition, we considered comparable market
transactions and market factors relevant to oil and
gas assets in Western Canada when assessing
the fair value adjustments.
BB EENRAABERAE - MG
ERFAMIE CQ Energy 15 A LW EI80 T
B o pbAN  HPIEFE AR BERAEFEER
TENEAEIEREERBOAILTISER S
MmimEZE o

° For key assumptions, our audit procedures
included:
HRARREBR  HAINETIEREHE -

° Compared the forecast gas and oil prices
used against the forecast published in the
reserve report prepared by the external
reserve experts.

A FEORIEY SR B AR B OMNED (B ERR HI1 80
FEEWME P AMEOTBABEEITEHL



Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

B Az BA RS ()

_E
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESBE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EST A EERARETSE

Assessed the forecast production volume
by comparing against (i) forecast
production volume for the remaining
concession periods prepared by the
external reserve experts as set out in the
reserve report; and (ii) historical actual
production volume. We also performed
procedures to evaluate the competence,
capability and objectivity of the external
reserve experts engaged by management
for preparing the reserve report.
FERIETERESR - BEAESE TMmE
LR () BB BRGNS TR FEEREP
WERSHERBRABIES - R(IESL
ERES - LI BRMEBBEEETE
Fr HERES|IAZ2EFHHREREANIN
HERNEE - e REBMEITE -

Compared the forecast operating costs
against historical actual costs.

HRIANRIEE MEE L BIRE AETHLE -

Assessed the forecast capital expenditures
against the approved budget.
HETERIIR & S BRACHE O TR EETTEL R ©

Assessed the underlying assumptions
adopted in the determination of the
discount rates against external market
data and published information of
comparable companies.

e B T B 2R R R T ER AR A B AR R aR B 1N ED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RENEST A EEBARETSE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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o Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
goodwill calculation and assessed as to
whether the business rationale supported the
goodwill recognition.
RAEFEAEPOEUREERILE - YT EE
BHEERMESEEUFEENESR -

Based on our work, we found the key assumptions
adopted were supported by the audit evidence we
gathered.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

BERAE

B AR E
BMIBEREZERAR D FRE ()
(RAASHEZMA A BRAA])

BRBMRET AU BRRARNE
£ (&)

ERE(BIBREAERDETEHBRES
BPERTERHE - RisTEREREE -
BAITL

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

B Az BA RS ()

e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is: LEONG Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese

version of this independent auditor’s report, the English version
shall prevail.)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ERAR

As at December 31,

R+=-—HA=+-—H
2017 2016
—EB—+tF ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®T T AREFIT
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THAERE 6 7,719,859 2,407,958
Intangible assets B A E 7 708,193 8,849
Investments in associates Bt EINE 8 182,541 246,667
Deferred income tax assets BB HREE 23 334 40,590
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 12 67,132 63,330
Derivative financial instrument PTHEERIA 13 25,652 -
Prepayments, deposits and other R - RE® REHA
receivables FEWL R 15 727,966 820,224
Restricted cash PR IR S 18 43,285 =
9,474,962 3,587,618
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 16,745 30,155
Prepayments, deposits and other AN RES REM
receivables FEWL R 15 751,426 1,131,001
Trade receivables e BR X 16 407,035 103,568
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmMT AR 13 342,763 90,325
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE 12 111,228 =
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 18 72,012 =
Cash and cash equivalents Be RBESZEED 19 132,172 904,961
1,833,381 2,260,010
Total assets EEAH 11,308,343 5,847,628
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of BEBREATREEN
the Company DR
Share capital A& A 20 1,068,796 1,068,796
Other reserves Hib 22 47,265 (143,963)
Accumulated losses RETEE (1,384,495) (285,019)
(268,434) 639,814
Non-controlling interests FEE S M i (27) (27)
Total equity S (268,461) 639,787
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
BRI FEARK (B)

As at December 31,

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B &E AR®BFT ARBTE

Liabilities =E

Non-current liabilities FRBEME

Borrowings RN 26 4,520,457 4,586,555

Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTSTaE 23 589,281 66,401

Trade and notes payable FERTBR RN M B 2245 24 26,529 14,161

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities % - B2 R E b & (& 25 2,620,311 60,809

Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 13 5,574 —

Financial liabilities at fair value IAREBEFEBEESE

through profit or loss AZHIEENEmEE 14 1,067,626 =

8,829,778 4,727,926

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and notes payable FERTBR RN M B 2245 24 392,984 74,199

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities %8 - B2 R E b & (& 25 718,598 226,999

Current income tax liabilities EHREHAaE 97,233 54,141

Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 13 9,200 20,576

Borrowings RN 26 1,529,011 104,000
2,747,026 479,915

Total liabilities i=REfitc] 11,576,804 5,207,841

Total equity and liabilities EzkEEBEE 11,308,343 5,847,628

The accompanying notes on pages 146 to 308 are an integral part &M 146 EEFE 308 B 2 T RA& G175
of these consolidated financial statements. WERA LS5 o

The consolidate financial statements on pages 137 to 308 were 5137 EZ £ 308 A Z &M BHRKEN T
approved by the Board of Directors on March 29, 2018 and were —/\F=AZTHhBEZESFSHETIE - K

signed on its behalf. REFEFE:
Zhang Ruilin Zhao Jiangwei
Director Director
3 3
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

aftiRae W

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
ZE—tF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR®T T AREFIT
Continuing operations BHERE
Revenue Iz 5 1,125,982 534,974
Depreciation, depletion and E - Rk
amortisation 5 (489,863) (363,860)
Exploration and evaluation expense RN EEERBAER 6 (10,737) -
Taxes other than income taxes I8 (FraRiBR o) 28 (14,214) (13,414)
Employee benefit expense 8 THM A 31 (206,510) (133,291)
Purchases, services and other RKiE - R MEMERE
direct costs B AN (300,435) (105,573)
Distribution expense HESH (55,689) (18,172)
General and administrative expense EIEEH (171,017) (67,666)
Impairment charges BERMEEX 6,7,8 12 (35,524) (234,667)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hab(3BKR) FIE - FE 27 (652,517) 297,849
Finance income B R URA 29 49,248 17,490
Finance costs B & 29 (187,997) (403,951)
Share of (losses)/profits of ZHEBMEPELEN
investments in associates (E518),/FBRH 5 8 (63,023) 35,682
Share of losses of investments in ZEAEEKREN
joint ventures ERNE - (3,382)
Loss before income tax BREFT B AIEE (1,012,296) (457,981)
Income tax expense FeHiEH 32 (87,180) (147,166)
Loss for the year from continuing REZBEREHRE
operations BB (1,099,476) (605,147)
Discontinued operations rirge
Loss for the year from discontinued REFELR | HEEFTS
operations 518 - (717,086)
Loss for the year NEEIE (1,099,476) (1,322,233)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
aftiRalamE (8

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B &E AR®BFT ARBTE

Other comprehensive income Hitt iR E W ¢

Items that may be reclassified to HENHEEESHZREZH

profit or loss HH
Change in value of available-for-sale At &SR EENEE

financial assets HE) 8,168 18,405
Share of other comprehensive income ZHHEPERERN

of investments in associates HAith4R & =m0 58 (3,758) 2,788
Currency translation differences INEEAT A RE 166,660 (129,976)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEXRFEHMES

for the year, net of tax Uz (%) 171,070 (108,772)
Total comprehensive loss for rEREERER

the year (928,406) (1,431,005)
Loss for the year attributable to: REFERBBERN :
Owners of the Company RARIFIBES (1,099,476) (1,322,453)
Non-controlling interests JEFR R 25 - 220

(1,099,476) (1,322,233)

Loss for the year attributable to BERAQARMEEN

owners of the Company arising WEBRIRER :

from:
— Continuing operations — BFERE (1,099,476) (605,367)
— Discontinued operations — R b - (717,086)

(1,099,476) (1,322,453)

Total comprehensive loss for the AEZEBREERTER
year attributable to:

Owners of the Company RNARIFTEE (928,406) (1,431,225)
Non-controlling interests FEF R 2R _ 220

(928,406) (1,431,005)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
aftiraliamk (E)

Year ended December 31

BEt-A=1T—-HLHEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B eE AR®BFT AR®ETE

Total comprehensive loss HERAEQATMEENTE

attributable to owners of HEBKRBEEER

the Company arising from:
— Continuing operations — EERS (928,406) (714,139)
— Discontinued operations — R PR - (717,086)

(928,406) (1,431,225)

Loss per share for loss attributable ZAEXRQTFEEELEEN
to owners of the Company for the SREIE (GRARE)
year (expressed in RMB per share)

Basic loss per share HEEXERKRER 34

— Continuing operations — BERKE (0.39) (0.21)

— Discontinued operations — R - (0.25)
(0.39) (0.46)

Diluted loss per share wESKRERE 34

— Continuing operations — BEgE (0.39) (0.21)

— Discontinued operations — R PR - (0.25)
(0.39) (0.46)

The accompanying notes on pages 137 to 308 are an integral part &5 137 B = 5 308 B 2 M at BANH ik
L (7NN
of these consolidated financial statements. HEERRHE Y
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—H— N7
/ N II\I:III\

EHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

GENALNRMEE
Retained
Earnings/ Non-
Ordinary Share Other  (Accumulated controlling Total
shares premium reserves losses) Total interests Equity
Bk
LEk RAEE ke (ZHER) B JEERIER Enl®
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETR
As at January 1,2016 RZE-xE-A-H 19,489 1,049,307 65,457 1,037,434 2,171,687 39,309 2,210,996
Comprehensive income rEGRNE
for the year
Loss for the year REER - - - (1322453)  (1,322,453) 20 (1,322,233
Available-for-sale financial AHESREAR
assets (Note 12) (RitzE12) = = 18,405 = 18,405 - 18,405
Share of other comprehensive  SHETRIEREAEH
income of investment REMAhEA
accounted for using the Wi
equity method - - 2,79 - 2,799 - 2,799
Currency translation differences M E £ = - (129,976) - (129,976) - 129,976)
19,489 1,049,307 (43,315) (285,019) 740,462 39,529 779,991
Transactions with ownersin ~ EfEENEREEN
their capacity as owners SRETHRS
Employees stock option [EEERETE
schemes
—value of employee services  — EBRIBER
(Note 31) (Ft3E 31) - - 27,990 - 27,990 - 27,990
— shares to settle SARs — E R ERHE
under the plan N - - 599 - 599 - 599
Share purchased under Share k{3 #&Eh5t 2 FTEEIR ()
Award Scheme (Note 21(a)) (PzE21(a) - - (63,706) - (63,706) - (63,706)
Acquisition of additional interest 4N EVSF A AR
in a subsidiary = = (65,531) = (65,531) (39,556) (105,087)
= = (100,648) = (100,648) (39,556) (140,204)
As at December 31, 2016 R-E-RE
T-A=1+-H 19,489 1,049,307 (143,963) (285,019) 639,814 (27) 639,787

142 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
MR EER(E)

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG
Non-
Ordinary Share Other Accumulated controlling Total
shares premium reserves losses Total interests Equity

EER  BARE ARG RiER B FEeMEE  RGSE
RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARNTR ARRTR ARRTR ARETR ARETZ

As at January 1,2017 RZB-t%5-f-H 19,489 1,049,307 (143,963) (285,019) 639,814 (27) 639,787

Comprehensive incomefor ~ AEZAKE

the year
Loss for the year rEER - - - (1,099476)  (1,099,476) - (1,099476)
Available-for-sale financial assets Wt E S HARE
Note 12) (Mx12) - - 8,168 - 8,168 - 8,168
Share of other comprehensive  ZHRIEREARH
income of investment REMHEbEA
accounted for using the e[t
equity method - - (3,758) - (3,758) - (3,758)
Currency translation differences  SMEHE£%E - - 166,660 - 166,660 - 166,660
19,489 1,049,307 21,107 (1,384,495) (288,592) 27) (288,619)
Transactions with ownersin ~ EfiEENEFEEN
their capacity as owners BRETNRS
Employees stock option EEBRELE
schemes
— value of employee —EEMREER
senvices (Note 31) (FizE 31) - - 20,158 - 20,158 - 20,158
- - 20,158 - 20,158 - 20,158
As at December 31, 2017 R=B-tf
+-B=t-H 19,489 1,049,307 47,265 (1,384,495) (268,434) (27) (268,461)

The accompanying notes on pages 137 to 308 are an integral part  14F15 137 B £ 5 308 B 2 [ 3£ A A #3R&K
of these consolidated financial statements. HEEHD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FIREIMER

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR®T T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating RETHNRERE
activities
Continuing operations BERE
Cash generated from operations LEEBEENES 465,380 162,742
Interest paid ERFE (422,038) (382,997)
Income tax paid EATFEH (2,401) (69,567)
Discontinued operations RIS - (81,057)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &E&SEEELE (EA)
operating activities WIREFE 35 40,941 (370,879)
Cash flows from investing activities REFZEHNEERE
Continuing operations FERE
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, & F 2 F1FT #3018
net of cash acquired & 55 (3,557,006) -
Purchases of property, plant and HBETHE  ITH&
equipment B (60,685) (21,621)
Increase in financial assets B RbE E A N (336,686) (96,422)
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries W 2|5 & F A B FT{5 5018 90,660 2,283,724
Loans and deposits to third parties Y NE=ZFETNRES (24,656) (375,045)
Contribution and loans to/acquisition & A U BE LAREZS A A BRHY
of investments accounted for KENRER
using equity method (33,490) (277,007)
Interest received B WS 3,718 20,171
Others i) (41,153) =
Decrease in restricted cash 2 BR HI2R £ KR A - 462,646
Discontinued operations Sl S - (205,736)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (EH) EL
investing activities HIREEEE (3,959,298) 1,790,710
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
EHBEEREXR(E)

Year ended December 31

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-KF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®BTFT  AR¥KTE

Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEBNEERE

Continuing operations HERE
Repayments of borrowings BEER 35 (609,921) (930,224)
Proceeds from borrowings BT EIA 35 3,431,882 491,534
Payment for repurchase and BI85 2018412019

cancellation of 2018 and 2019 Notes ~ B&Z# 35 (791,173) (110,739)
Increase in other payables oA e FR A N 67,909 =
Proceeds from financial liabilities at WERIAA R BEFERR

fair value through profit or loss FE AS B SE

BEMBHFIE 1,089,748 —

Cash paid to non-controlling interest  ZESNEUS F /A Bl FEHR &

for additional interest in subsidiary RS FTSE TR IE - (103,919)
Payments relating to share-based EARR M BT BB S T Y

compensation TR - (63,706)
Others Hib (27,677) (33,2006)

Net cash generated from/(used in) @A EEELE(FH)H
financing activities IR FRE 3,160,768 (750,260)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBESEEYN

and cash equivalents CR2),/#BhnFEE (757,589) 669,571
Cash and cash equivalents at FHHERIES

beginning of the year EEY 904,961 202,967
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash Re KRB EEYH

and cash equivalents (ERRi=F (15,200) 32,423

Cash and cash equivalents at end FERRENASE
of the year ZEY 132,172 904,961

The accompanying notes on pages 137 to 308 are an integral part & M58 137 = F 308 B .2 Mzt RS O A1 5
of these consolidated financial statements. WEREERED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ISR M5

GENERAL INFORMATION

MIE Holdings Corporation (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the exploration, development, production and sale of oil,
gas and other petroleum products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") under production sharing contract (the
“PSC"”) and in the exploration, development and holding
interests in petroleum and natural gas properties directly and
through investments in other partnership holdings in oil and
natural gas properties or related production infrastructure in
Canada. The Group also participates as associates in the
exploration, development and production of petroleum assets
located in the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “Kazakhstan”),
western Canada and the northern part of the South China Sea
in the PRC.

On September 29, 2017, Canlin Energy Corporation (“Canlin”
or the “Purchaser”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, completed the acquisition of all the partnership
interests in the CQ Energy Canada Partnership (“CQ Energy”)
(the “Acquisition”). The aggregate purchase price for the
Acquisition is C$699.4 million (equivalent to RMB3,735.9
million). The purchase price was paid in cash to the vendors
upon completion. A goodwill of RMB724.3 million arose upon
completion of the Acquisition. Further details of the
Acquisition are provided in Note 37.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company's shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") on December 14, 2010.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB") unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board of Directors”) on March 29, 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBER(E)
2.1.1 Going Concern 211 BELSE

On December 31, 2017, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB913.6 million, which was mainly due to the
approaching maturity of the outstanding principal
plus accrued interest of the 2018 Notes in the
amount of US$188.0 million (equivalent to
RMB1,222.0 million). As described in Note 41, the
Company has repaid the outstanding balance and
accrued interests in relation to the 2018 Notes in
full upon its maturity on February 6, 2018. The
directors of the Company have taken measures
and are confident to obtain available sources of
long term funding from financial institutions in the
foreseeable future. Based on their assessment,
the Board of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that the Group has sufficient working
capital to enable it to repay its debts as and when
they fall due. The Group therefore continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after January
1,2017:

o Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses — Amendments to
IAS 12; and

° Disclosure initiative — amendments to
IAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not
have any impact on the current period or any
prior period and is not likely to affect future
periods.

The amendments to IAS 7 require disclosure
of changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below:

(i) IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact
on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets given fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") election is available for the
equity instruments which are currently
classified as available-for-sale (“AFS").

150 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EESEHBRAE (H)

21 wREWR (R

212 S BRENRBEOL2E (F)

(b) ZIEFERIFIERHI1E
ARHBRBRE—F—LF
—A—HEBIBHFE
HELR  BEREEXR

OB E TR -
WEER - K FIFE
AT EHFEBMYE
I BHREEREAXT
& MUTIEEER
s
()  BIFRRA R ¥RE £
AIE9R 2/ T
H]

Itk T8 F % RIS 4
TREEMD R
BENSE G
EMKILER
YNHRERSS
B ¥ AR TE A & Al
BENFRER

_ﬁgo

7N £ B TR B H 45
ST eHHES
MEENDEM
AAEEAEARY
E-ARRNE
SARHESR
B E[AFS] &9
@ TEMNEERN
maBRARR
EEtEAHE
Bt AEMES
Y # [FVOCI] -
Atz EEEN
SHREERTE
BHEBEAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR (8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

There will not be a significant impact
on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss. The
derecognition rules have been
transferred from IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and have not been
changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new hedge accounting rules will
align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with the
Group's risk management practices.
As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based
approach. However, at this stage the
Group does not expect to identify any
new hedge relationships. It would
appear that the Group’s current hedge
relationships would qualify as
continuing hedges upon the adoption
of IFRS 9. Accordingly, the Group does
not expect a significant impact on the
accounting for its hedging relationships
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR (8

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new impairment model requires
the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit
losses (ECL) rather than only incurred
credit losses as is the case under IAS
39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI,
contract assets under IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

IFRS 9 must be applied for financial
years commencing on or after 1
January 2018. Group does not intend
to adopt IFRS 9 before its mandatory
date. The Group does not expect this
new standard to have a material
impact to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i)

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) has issued a new
standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which
covers revenue arising from the sale of
goods and the rendering of services
and IAS 11 which covers construction
contracts.

The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognized
when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after January
1, 2018. Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective
date. The Group intends to adopt the
standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognized in retained
earnings as of January 1, 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.
The Group does not expect this new
standard to have a material impact to
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, 'Leases’

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right
to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, ‘'Leases’ (Continued)

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating
leases. The Group has not yet
determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the
recognition of an asset and a liability
for future payments and how this will
affect the Group's profit and
classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be
covered by the exception for short-
term and low-value leases and some
commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under IFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below: (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

The new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after
January 1, 2019. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC
interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZESTHRBE (&)

22 EHRFAT

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation 22166

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
IFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTBEREEAE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued) 22 EHRFARE(E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 221 &6t (&)

(a) Business combinations (Continued) (a) ¥EBESOF(E)
Intra-group transactions, balances and SERAAZEBHR
unrealised gains on transactions between 5 BRERGHRE
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised WFNE FLAL$E - K&
losses are also eliminated unless the IBIBRIN T AEE - B
transaction provides evidence of an R SR FTEE A E
impairment of the transferred asset. When FUREREE o T2 AR
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries EHNEEERTEED
have been adjusted to conform with the R LAREREAAREE
Group's accounting policies. HRAMBERFFE — B o

(b) Changes in ownership interests in (b) FRAMEEEREE
subsidiaries without change of control BEE TS
Transactions with non-controlling interests 7 £5 (B B FE A ) 14
that do not result in a loss of control are ST TERLE
accounted for as equity transactions — that T HI R R P AR A
is, as transactions with the owners of the w5 — HEFRE
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The EENEEAAE
difference between fair value of any FHEITHRS - T
consideration paid and the relevant share HEREEHN AR EE
acquired of the carrying amount of net AR (L TR T A
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in R EERMEENE
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non- R AR - I
controlling interests are also recorded in I R Y R B Y RS
equity. INEeEk e o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZEEHBRAE (H)

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued) 22 SHERFAT(E)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 22188t (&)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (c) HEFAF
When the Group ceases to have control any EEEBTBEEEAEE
retained interest in the entity is remeasured - EEEREARE
to its fair value at the date when control is HEEAETSEE
lost, with the change in carrying amount EFEEEAAEE
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is REEMNZFHTERT
the initial carrying amount for the purposes R AN BEAERR
of subsequently accounting for the retained BESNEEAERMS
interest as an associate, joint venture or R BRTEE @ 1A
financial asset. In addition, any amounts BN EREE
previously recognised in other Utoh - Z R E AR S
comprehensive income in respect of that g A R M (I 28R
entity are accounted for as if the Group had MNASEEERRE
directly disposed of the related assets or HEEEMBG - B8
liabilities. This may mean that amounts KEZRIEEAMERE U
previously recognised in other RS EEN D
comprehensive income are reclassified to HEE o
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 222 BUGBBHRE

FRERERKAMGRRE
SRR - RABRRENEE
BB - FTRAIKEEH
AR AR B U e W B A A
B o

40 P A R 5B B IR BRI ER A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FIE RN ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eg%ﬁﬁ& ﬁg(nﬁ)

2.3 Associates 23 BEQT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method' in the statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Company has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures and joint operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued) 24 SERH(E)
2.4.1 Joint ventures 241 88 01E

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group's share of the net fair
value of the joint venture's identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEITIE KM ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eggﬁﬁk ?ﬁg(nﬁ)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued) 24 SERHEGE)

2.4.2 Joint operations 242 HEKE

The Group's development and production
activities in the PRC are conducted, through its
subsidiaries, jointly with others through PSCs.

AEBEPEBBEFARE
EmoKAERTREMT K
RETHEREELS - &

These PSCs establish joint control over the SRFEKBEEREREELS
development and production activities. The assets B EE R o R EEEINIE

are not owned by a separate legal entity but are
controlled by individual participants in the PSCs.

MBI EAEEES M/
EmPKERMEALHSE

Each participant is entitled to a predetermined Pl o BRREEFEZ AN
share of the related output and bears an agreed MELELAEBEEN DT I
share of the costs. EERROEAKA o
The consolidated financial statements reflect: NE B RS Rk S bk -

° the Group's share of any assets used in the
joint operations;

° any liabilities that the Group incurred;

° the Group's share of any liabilities incurred

o AKERARNH
BENHE

£<<< AEA E’]

s AKRECDELAWIFA

&

e HHAREEMEHEME

jointly with the other PSC partners in relation mAKE RSEEEE
to the joint production; MERMEEAREERRN
(k=

o any income from the sale or use of the
Group's share of the output of the
production, together with its share of any
expenses incurred in the production; and

o any expense that the Group has incurred in
respect of its interests in the production.

s RAHEEXEMEMA
AEBDEORA - &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FIE RN ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollar (“US$"). The
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘finance income’ or
‘finance costs'.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the statement
of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposals of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposals of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposals of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposals involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposals involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposals involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposals that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZESHERREBE (&)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 T8BE - IREEE

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion, amortisation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised at the
field level based on the unit of production method. Unit
of production rates are based on oil and gas proved and
probable developed producing reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
Group's reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 26 TBE- - ITREEE(E)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-10 years

Office equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles and production 10 years
equipment

Facility turnarounds 4-6 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other (losses)/gains, net' in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZEEHBRAE (H)

27 WK FEEENHREE

2.7 Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, supporting
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests in
oil and gas properties are capitalised. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs
of exploratory wells (including certain geophysical costs
which are directly attributable to the drilling of these
wells) are capitalised as exploration and evaluation
assets pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil and natural gas
which geological and engineering data demonstrate
with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the
date the estimate is made. Prices include consideration
of changes in existing prices provided only by
contractual arrangements, but not on escalations based
upon future conditions.

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well costs
are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that such
economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the related
well costs are reclassified to oil and gas properties and
subject to impairment review. For exploratory wells that
are found to have economically viable reserves in areas
where major capital expenditure will be required before
production can commence, the related well costs
remain capitalised only if additional drilling is under way
or firmly planned. Otherwise the related well costs are
expensed as dry holes. The Group does not have any
costs of unproved properties capitalised in oil and gas
properties. Expired lease costs are expensed as part of
exploration and evaluation expense as they occur.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
(Continued)

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognised
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of business combinations. Exploration and
evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to the
acquisition of an exploration asset in a business
combination is accounted for in accordance with the
policy outlined above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, mineral
extraction rights, mining rights and goodwvill.

(a) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of three years.

(b) Mineral extraction and mining rights

Mineral extraction rights and mining rights are
amortised based on the unit of production
method.

Unit of production rates are based on oil and gas
proved and probable reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the
current terms of the respective production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR AT ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each
reporting date.

2.10 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and

discontinued operation

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The disposal group, are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates), which are classified as
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note
2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and
discontinued operation (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operations and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposals of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operations.

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZESTHRBE (&)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

211 ERMEEE)

2111 28 (&)

(b) Loans and receivables (b) EFREWKES
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ERRERERAEEE
financial assets with fixed or determinable TE 2K Al g FE A B RE BLOR
payments that are not quoted in an active BHERTS LRED
market. They are included in current assets, EVTESTREE - hE
except for the amounts that are settled or HEREERDEE
excepted to be settled more than 12 months A BT ER R R B
after the end of the reporting period. These RBFHEBEBI1218 A &
are classified as non-current assets. The EHEnEE - Bl A E
Group's loans and receivables comprise REEE  -ANEENE
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and NN FE U BR 20 B A% ik
cash equivalents’ in the statement of SR [ FE U BR 3R & H Ath
financial position. K] BE e R
SEEW ] AR -
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (c) HERHELHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non- Al E S RE EAK

derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
211 S REE (EF)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

2112 BT E

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivable are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in profit or
loss within ‘Other gains, net’' in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains,
net’ when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
profit or loss as ‘Other gains, net'.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of ‘Other (losses)/gains,
net'. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss as part
of ‘Other (losses)/gains, net" when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset'’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan or held- to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZEEHBRAE (H)

213 TRMEERE (&)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale
(Continued)

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The Group has not designated any derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss with ‘Other
(losses)/gains, net'.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Materials and supplies costs are determined
using the first-in first-out method. Crude oil costs are
determined using the weighted average cost method.
The cost of crude oil comprises direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related production
overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Trade and other receivables 2.16 FE X BR =X K2 H 1th FE UL =X

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
oil and gas and other petroleum products sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks or other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZESHERREBE (&)

2.18 Share capital (Continued) 2.18 [ A (48)

Where any group company purchases the Company's
equity share capital (shares held in trust), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company'’s equity holders.

Where the company’s shares are acquired from the
market by trust under the employee share scheme, the
total consideration of shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable incremental costs) is
presented as shares held for employee share scheme
and deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the
related costs of the vested shares for employee share
scheme purchased from the market are credited to
shares held for employee share scheme, with a
corresponding decrease in employee share-based
compensation reserve for employee share scheme.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 EMRIEAE RS S ()

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EEZESHERREBE (&)

2.21 Borrowing costs 2.21 R A

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from th'e
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (B)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHHERE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions 2.23 &

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Asset retirement obligations (including future
decommissioning and restoration) which meet the
criteria of provisions are recognised as provisions and
the amount recognised is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements, while a
corresponding addition to the related oil and gas
properties of an amount equivalent to the provision is
also created. This is subsequently depleted as part of
the costs of the oil and gas properties. Interest
expenses from the assets retirement obligations for
each period are recognised with the effecti